
P.T.O.

www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek, Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ.  Tel:  0345 605 3010

 

AGENDA
for a

MEETING OF THE CABINET
Tuesday, 1 December 2020 at 2.00 pm 

 Virtual Meeting
Contact Officer: Linden Vernon Email: linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

or Tel: 01538 395613

Membership
Councillors:-

S. Ralphs MBE
M. Deaville
M. Bowen
T. Hall
J. Porter
S. Scalise
E. Wain

Leader of the Council (Chair)
Leisure and Sports (Deputy Leader)
Communities
Customer Services
Climate Change and Biodiversity
Environment
Planning, Development and Property

Reports enclosed unless noted otherwise.

1. Apologies 

2. Minutes of the previous meeting (previously circulated) (Pages 3 - 8)

3. Urgent items of Business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman) 

4. Declarations of Interest, if any 
1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
2. Other Interests

5. Matters referred by an Overview and Scrutiny Panel, if any 

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 
scanning the code below:

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A  (Continued)

5 .1 Reconsideration of Cabinet Report - Cheadle Town Centre Projects (Pages 9 
- 26)

6. Items requested by Cabinet and/or Non-Cabinet Members in accordance with 
Cabinet Procedure Rules 8.5(b) and (e), if any 

7. Reports of Monitoring Officer and/or Chief Finance Officer, if any 

8. Leader 

8 .1 Forward Plan (Pages 27 - 38)
8 .2 Annual Report 2019/20 (Pages 39 - 108)
8 .3 Second Quarter 2020/21 Finance, Procurement & Performance Review 

(Pages 109 - 150)
8 .4 Medium Term Financial Plan 2021/22 - 2024/25 Update (Pages 151 - 178)

9. Communities 

9 .1 Wildfire Public Spaces Protection Order (Pages 179 - 188)
10. Customer Services 

10 .1 Information Governance Update (Pages 189 - 192)
11. Exclusion of the Press and Public 

The Chair to Move:-

“That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the 
business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely 
that confidential information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would 
be disclosed to the public in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt 
information as defined in Section 100 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act would be disclosed to the public by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.”

12. Leader 

12 .1 Application for write off of Non- Recoverable Debts (Pages 193 - 198)
(Paragraph 7 - Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in 
connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. )



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET DECISIONS

TUESDAY, 6 OCTOBER 2020
PRESENT: Councillor S E Ralphs MBE (Chair) 

Councillors M Bowen, M A Deaville, T Hall, J Porter, S Scalise and 
E Wain

IN ATTEDNANCE: Councillors E Fallows, M Gledhill, K Hoptroff, K Jackson, 
L Page, L Swindlehurst and N Yates

70 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (PREVIOUSLY CIRCULATED)

DECISION:

That the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 4 August 2020 be approved 
as a correct record.

71 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST, IF ANY

The following declarations were made:

Agenda Item Member Declaring 
Interest Nature of Interest

Cllr. T Hall Other Interest – Son-in-Law 
is Director of MF TylerAgenda Item 12.1 – 

Disposal of Plots 12 – 15 
Victoria Business Park

Cllr. S Scalise Lobbied 

Any reference to 
government grants 
administered by the 
District Council to small 
businesses

Cllr. M Deaville
Cllr. E Wain

Proprietor of a small 
business in the Staffordshire 
Moorlands

72 MATTERS REFERRED BY AN OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL, IF ANY

Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 16 September 2020

An exempt Cabinet decision made on 4 August 2020 (Disposal of Plot 12-15 Victoria 
Business Park) was called-in and considered by the above Panel.  It was 
recommended that the Cabinet reconsider this decision (included in the exempt part 
of the agenda).

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Panel - 23 September 2020

The Cabinet noted a recommendation from the above Panel that consideration be 
given to the removal of car parking charges for a further period of time, to allow for a Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Cabinet - 6 October 2020

pre-planned, systematic survey to be carried out on the uptake of free parking and 
footfall in the town centres.  The Cabinet would consider this recommendation and 
make a decision in due course.

73 FORWARD PLAN

DECISION:

That the Forward Plan be approved for publication.

74 FIRST QUARTER 2020/21 FINANCIAL, PERFORMANCE & PROCUREMENT 
REPORT

The purpose of the report was to inform members of the Council’s overall 
performance and financial position for the period ended 30th June (“First Quarter 
2020/21”).  The position was summarised as follows:

Subject Headline Reference
Finance The Finance headlines for the First Quarter were:

Performance against Budget
 At the First Quarter stage the General Fund projected outturn for 

2020/21 was an overspend of £345,160 (net of Government 
Covid funding)  

Efficiency Programme
 At Quarter One no savings had been taken against the 2020/21 

general fund efficiency target of £519,000.

Capital Programme
 The revised Capital Programme budget for 2020/21 was 6.6 

million including the carry forward of capital underspends from 
2019/20.  The projected outturn for the year was £3.1million; a 
variance of £3.5 million – mostly in respect of programme 
slippage due to Covid19.

Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 30 June 2020 totalled £15.4 million. 

The Ascent loan and debenture sttod at £19 million.
 Council borrowing at 30 June 2020 totalled £12 million (related to 

the Ascent loan)
 The Council’s net interest income receipts were projected to be 

£55,210 surplus above budget.

Revenue Collection
 28.76% of Council Tax was collected by 30 June 2020 compared 

to 29.38% for the same period last year.
 22.30% of Business Rates was collected by 30 June 2020 

compared with 28.62% for the same period last year.
 At the end of the First Quarter, sundry debt that was over 60 days 

old was £97,395 which compares with £82,560 at 30 June 2019

Appendix 
A

Page 4



Cabinet - 6 October 2020

Procurement The Procurement headlines for the First Quarter were:

 12 procurement activities were completed 
 The Procurement forward plan included 57 procurement 

activities for completion in 2020/21 (either SMDC only or joint)
 At the 30 June 2020, 97% of procurement activity 

undertaken was on the forward plan and the Council paid 97% of 
its invoices within 30 days during the year

Appendix 
B 

Performance The Performance headlines for the First Quarter were:

 69% of the key performance indicators were on track (33% of 
which were better than the previous year)

 The Council received 10 complaints and 22 compliments in the 
First Quarter.

 10 projects on track, 16 not yet commenced, 1 completed, 1 Red 
rated and 2 Amber.

Appendix 
C

The report was considered by the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Panel on 23 
September 2020.  The Cabinet noted a recommendation from the Panel that 
consideration be given to the removal of car parking charges for a further period of 
time, to allow for a pre-planned, systematic survey to be carried out on the uptake of 
free parking and footfall in the town centres.  The Cabinet would consider this 
recommendation and make a decision in due course.

Options considered:

Detailed Analysis is contained within the main body of the Report.

DECISION:

That the First Quarter 2020/21 financial, procurement and performance position 
detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of the covering report be 
noted.

75 REVISED PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2020/21DUE TO COVID

This report provided information on the proposed amendments to the current 
performance targets for 2020/21, which had been made necessary because of the 
effects of the coronavirus pandemic on the council’s ability to meet its previously 
agreed targets.  The report was considered by the Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel on 23 September 2020.

Options considered:

This report is for information only and therefore no alternatives have been presented. 
However, if the target review had not taken place the 2020/21 Q4 report would show 
a higher than usual proportion of ‘off track’ measures due to lockdown and on-going 
coronavirus restrictions, which were outside the council’s control.

DECISION:

That the proposed amendments be noted.
Page 5



Cabinet - 6 October 2020

76 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2020/21 - 2023/24 UPDATE

The purpose of the report was to present an updated summary version of the 
Medium-Term Financial Plan 2020/21 – 2023/24.  This forecasted the longer term 
impact the Coronavirus pandemic had had on the financial position of the Authority.  
The report was considered by the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Panel on 23 
September 2020.

Options considered:

There were no options to consider at this stage.

DECISION:

That the forecast updated Medium Term Financial Plan position be noted.

77 CHEADLE TOWN CENTRE PROJECTS

The report outlined proposals for the establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre 
Delivery Board, supported by a Stakeholder Panel, to oversee development and 
delivery of town centre projects.  This included an options appraisal for the emerging 
Cheadle town centre Masterplan and the High Streets Task Force programme of 
activity. The report also provided an update on progress with regards to the Cheadle 
Town Centre Options Appraisal Report and the High Streets Task Force and sought 
to agree next steps.

Options considered:

Option 1 (recommended) – that the Council approved the proposals for 
establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre Delivery Board and Stakeholder Panel and 
noted the progress on Cheadle town centre projects.

Option 2 (not recommended) – that the Council did not approve the proposals for 
establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre Board, to be supported by a Panel of 
Stakeholders.  This was not recommended.  There was potential for significant 
change in Cheadle arising from the implementation of proposals in the emerging 
Masterplan and recommendations from the High Street Task Force.  Effective 
partnership working would be required to deliver this change.  Without a Board of 
partners to help direct and coordinate activities, there was a risk that the views and 
resources of some stakeholders may be lost to the process and the Council would 
not be in a position to capitalise on opportunities for added value from the work of a 
range of partners.

DECISION:

1. That the proposals for the establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre Delivery 
Board and Stakeholder Panel, as set out in the report be approved.

2. That the progress on current Cheadle town centre projects be noted.

Page 6



Cabinet - 6 October 2020

78 APPOINTMENT TO STAFFORDSHIRE DESTINATION MANAGEMENT AND 
PARTNERSHIP BOARD

The purpose of the report was to re-appoint a representative of the Council to the 
Staffordshire Destination Management and Partnership Board.

Options considered:

The Cabinet may consider other councillors to be the Council’s representative for 
this appointment.    

DECISION:

That the appointment of Councillor Mike Bowen to the Staffordshire Destination 
Management and Partnership Board be approved.

79 RECENT AND PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE PLANNING SYSTEM 
INCLUDING THE PLANNING WHITE PAPER 2020

The report appraised Members of recent changes to the planning system enacted in 
the Business and Planning Act 2020, proposed changes to the current Planning 
System as set out in the Government Consultation Document Published 6 August 
2020 and proposed changes as set out in the White Paper “Planning for the Future” 
which was published for consultation by Government on 6th August 2020.  The 
report also sought to consider the Council’s response to the consultations. The 
report was considered by the Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel on 16 
September 2020.

Options considered:

As detailed in the report.

DECISION:

That Members note the report be noted and authority be delegated to the Executive 
Director (Place) to prepare a final response to both consultations based on the 
attached summary tables, incorporating any comments of the Service Delivery 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel and Cabinet and to submit them to Ministry of Housing, 
Communities & Local Government before the end of the consultation periods.

80 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED:

That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential 
information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public 
in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in Section 
100 I (1)  of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public by 
virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.

Page 7



Cabinet - 6 October 2020

81 DISPOSAL OF PLOT 12-15 VICTORIA BUSINESS PARK - REFERRAL 
FROM SERVICE DELIVERY AND OVERVIEW COMMITTEE

The Cabinet re-considered a decision made on 4 August 2020 following referral from 
Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel of the previous disposal report 
regarding the plots at Victoria Business Park.  The report recommendation was 
approved.

The meeting closed at 3.38 pm

_________________________________Chairman 
Page 8



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet

1 December 2020

TITLE: Reconsideration of Cabinet Report - Cheadle 
Town Centre Projects

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Sybil Ralphs - Council Leader 

CONTACT OFFICER: Linden Vernon – Senior Officer Governance 
and Member Support

WARDS INVOLVED: Cheadle West

Appendices Attached – 
Appendix A – Cabinet Report 6th October 2020
Appendix B – Cheadle Town Centre Projects Governance Structure

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To consider the request from the Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel to reconsider the Cabinet decision in relation to Cheadle Town Centre 
Projects.

2. Recommendation

2.1 To reaffirm the Cabinet Decision made on 6th October 2020 to approve the 
proposals for establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre Delivery Board and 
Stakeholder Panel, 

2.2 To commission a public consultation exercise and survey, overseen by the 
Stakeholder Panel, to seek the views of local people, businesses and 
organisations of Cheadle on all the regeneration issues & opportunities for the 
town centre, which will inform the priorities for delivering regeneration projects.

2.3 To prepare a Cabinet Report on the results of the public consultation exercise 
and to set out the next steps in delivering the regeneration of Cheadle Town 
Centre.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 On 6 October Cabinet considered a report which outlined proposals for the 
establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre Delivery Board, supported by a 
Stakeholder Panel, to oversee development and delivery of town centre 
projects including options appraisal for the emerging Cheadle town centre 
Masterplan and the High Streets Task Force programme of activity. The report 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5.1



also provided an update on progress with regards to the Cheadle Town Centre 
Options Appraisal Report and the High Streets Task Force and sought to 
agree next steps.

3.2 The decision made was: -

1. That the proposals for the establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre 
Delivery Board and Stakeholder Panel, as set out in the report be 
approved.

2. That the progress on current Cheadle town centre projects be noted.

3.3 Following this decision, call-in requests were received from Councillors: - L. 
Malyon, P. Wilkinson, K.  Martin, I. Whitehouse, I. Plant and G. Bentley.

3.4 The call-in request confirmed the following principles of decision making
which they believed had not been adhered to:

 taking due regard of all relevant considerations and disregarding 
irrelevant considerations; 

 proportionality (i.e. the action will be proportionate to the desired 
outcome); 

 respect for human rights and equalities; 
 a presumption in favour of openness; and 
 clarity of aims and desired outcomes. 

3.5 Councillors also provided the statement below:-

“We would like to call in the report that went to Cabinet on 6th October 2020, 
Cheadle Town Centre Projects, as we believe that all relevant considerations 
i.e. health and well-being of the town and it’s facilities will be compromised, it 
will not be proportionate for the outcome for Cheadle, in respect of the human 
rights of the people of Cheadle and surrounding areas that use Cheadle and 
it’s facilities i.e. the hospital and leisure centre, lack of openness with the 
people of Cheadle and the surrounding areas and lack of clarity as to where 
people will park when the car parks are built on.  This needs full consultation 
with the whole of the District Council, Cheadle Town Council and the people of 
the Staffordshire Moorlands. This will have an adverse effect on Cheadle 
Town as a whole, not even considering demolishing the hospital or the leisure 
centre.”

3.6 The Service Delivery and Overview Panel considered the call-in request on 18 
November 2020 at which members raised the following points:

 The hospital was vital to serve the increased population, many services 
were provided from the site which included one of the trials for a Covid-19 
vaccination.

 Cheadle Leisure Centre was an excellent facility and had received funding 
from the community, it was well attended by various clubs and disability 
swim sessions were accessed from this pool. 

Page 10



 A document dated 2009 within the masterplan for Cheadle, stated that 
there were no alternative sites for car parking in the town centre so 
therefore, it would not be possible to develop the Tape Street Car Park.   

 A 45 minute town centre site tour snapshot analysis of Cheadle was not 
acceptable.

 Members were pleased that Cheadle was being considered for investment, 
however, there were concerns as this had been promised previously, but 
little had been in delivered in terms of regeneration.

 There was concern around prescriptive options being contained within the 
report, prior to any consultation being carried out with residents. 

 Tourism should be taken into account and it was suggested that a site for a 
hotel in the town was considered as part of the project.

 A suggestion that the Stakeholder Panel and Cheadle Town Centre 
Delivery Board should be one entity.

3.7 Following considerable debate the Panel voted to refer the decision back to 
Cabinet for reconsideration.
  

Neil Rodgers
Executive Director (Place)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Cabinet report attached Linden Vernon – Senior Officer Governance 
and Member Support
linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet

6 October 2020

TITLE: Cheadle Town Centre Projects

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Ralphs - Council Leader SMDC

CONTACT OFFICER: Sarah Porru- Head of Regeneration

WARDS INVOLVED: Cheadle West

Appendices Attached – Governance structure

1. Reason for the Report

1.1. To outline proposals for the establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre Delivery 
Board, supported by a Stakeholder Panel, to oversee development and delivery 
of town centre projects including options appraisal for the emerging Cheadle 
town centre Masterplan and the High Streets Task Force programme of activity.

1.2. To provide an update on progress with regards to the Cheadle Town Centre 
Options Appraisal Report and the High Streets Task Force and to agree next 
steps.

2. Recommendation

2.1 To approve the proposals for establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre Delivery 
Board and Stakeholder Panel, as set out in the report.

2.2 To note the progress on current Cheadle town centre projects.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 A number of externally funded projects are proposed for Cheadle town centre 
during the next financial year.  It is recommended that the Council establishes 
a Cheadle Town Centre Project Delivery Board, supported by a Stakeholder 
Panel, to oversee coordination of the work and the effective delivery of individual 
project work programmes.

3.2 The proposed governance structure is set out as Appendix 1 to this report.

Page 13



3.3 The projects to be overseen by any Project Delivery Board and Panel would 
include, but not be limited to:

 consideration of the options set out in the Cheadle town centre report;
 oversight of any wider engagement proposed with appropriate stakeholders 

as part of the ongoing options appraisal;
 recommending preferred options for key sites in Cheadle town centre;
 coordinating delivery of agreed proposals for key sites in Cheadle town 

centre;
 directing the activities of the Future High Street Fund Task Force and any 

follow up work.

3.3 Membership of the Stakeholder Panel would be drawn from local elected 
members of the District Council, Cheadle Town Council, the Chamber of 
Commerce, a business representative and the voluntary sector.

3.4 Membership of the Project Delivery Board would include the Staffordshire 
Moorlands District Council, Staffordshire County Council, the North 
Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Group and the Chair of the Stakeholder 
Panel.

3.5 This governance structure will ensure that the Delivery Board remains focused 
on the delivery of town centre projects.  The Stakeholder Panel will ensure that 
the Board has access to the views and resources of stakeholder groups, the 
Chair of the Panel being part of the Board to ensure that this is achieved.  The 
Board will make recommendations to Cabinet with regard to the direction and 
management of town centre projects, with the Cabinet retaining control of 
decision making within the Council’s Assurance structure.

Cheadle town centre Options Appraisal Report

3.6 Consultants Cushman and Wakefield have prepared an Options Appraisal 
report to support a masterplan and investment strategy for Cheadle town centre.  
The report sets out opportunities to increase the vibrancy of Cheadle by 
delivering new homes as well as community facilities that will help to attract and 
retain additional residents and visitors to the town centre.  

3.7 The Options Appraisal report proposes a number of options for key sites in the 
town, including Well Street and Tape Street car parks, the Community Hospital 
and Newlands Care Home on Royal Walk and South Moorlands Leisure Centre.  
The report makes recommendations on using the key sites, all in public sector 
ownership, as a basis for the re-configuration of Cheadle town centre to help 
the town become an even more attractive and compelling place to live, work 
and visit.

3.8 The report includes recommendations for the location of a new community hub 
building in the town centre.  Decisions on the future of Cheadle Hospital and the 
South Moorlands Leisure Centre may provide opportunities to offer replacement 
health, well-being, leisure and other community facilities from a single location.  
The report recommends that the preferred location for any community hub 

Page 14



should be at Tape Street car park, bringing additional footfall directly into the 
town centre.

3.9 In the medium and long term it may be possible to bring forward residential 
development at Royal Walk and the site of the existing Leisure Centre, subject 
to decisions on the future of the existing buildings on these sites.  In the short 
term, residential development may be brought forward at Well Street car park, 
potentially in conjunction with proposals from Your Housing Group for the site 
of the former Lightwood care home.

3.10 Should all or parts of both Tape Street and Well Street car parks be 
redeveloped, it will be important to ensure that a review of parking in Cheadle 
is undertaken to ensure that adequate parking provision remains for the town. 

High Streets Task Force

3.11 In December 2019 Cheadle town centre was named as one of the first pilot 
towns to receive expert advice and support from the Ministry of Housing 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) High Streets Task Force.  The 
support is designed to help build local capacity with a view to reviving Cheadle 
High Street.

3.12 The first step in the Task Force pilot project is an ‘Unlocking your place potential’ 
diagnostic visit.  The visit will include a meeting with key stakeholders to 
examine plans, identify challenges and provide feedback on the Council’s 
original application to the Future High Street Fund.  The visit will also include a 
site tour with a High Streets Task Force expert who will undertake a snapshot 
analysis of Cheadle town centre.

3.13 The Council will receive a formal report of the visit with recommendations for a 
strategy considered to be effective for “unlocking your place potential”.  
Recommendations of the report are also expected to assist the Council submit 
an expression of interest for later rounds of the Future High Street Fund.  

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The Cheadle Town Centre Delivery Board with support from the Stakeholder 
Panel, through the projects to be delivered, will have implications for the 
following aims of the Corporate Plan: 

 Aim One – To help create a safer and healthier environment for our 
communities to live and work.

 Aim Three – To help create a strong economy by supporting further 
regeneration of towns and villages.

5. Alternative Options

Page 15



5.1 Option 1 (recommended) – that the Council approves the proposals for 
establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre Delivery Board and Stakeholder Panel 
and notes the progress on Cheadle town centre projects.

5.2 Option 2 (not recommended) – that the Council does not approve the proposals 
for establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre Board, to be supported by a Panel 
of Stakeholders.  This is not recommended.  There is potential for significant 
change in Cheadle arising from the implementation of proposals in the emerging 
Masterplan and recommendations from the High Street Task Force.  Effective 
partnership working will be required to deliver this change.  Without a Board of 
partners to help direct and coordinate activities, there is a risk that the views and 
resources of some stakeholders may be lost to the process and the Council will 
not be in a position to capitalise on opportunities for added value from the work 
of a range of partners.

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

No implications.

6.2 Workforce

Officer time will be required to service a Cheadle Town Centre 
Delivery Board and Panel of Stakeholders.  This time will be drawn 
from existing resources.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

The report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations

Work undertaken under the direction of the Board would be grant 
funded or assisted by contributions from the partners.

6.5 Legal

Legal advice will be sought as appropriate to inform the work of the 
Delivery Board.

6.6 Climate Change

The delivery of new facilities to replace ageing buildings will have a 
poitive effect on reducing carbon emissions.

Page 16



6.7 Consultation

The Board will be responsible for engaging with the Stakeholder 
Panel in developing town centre projects who in turn will be 
responsible for engaging the wider communities they represent.
The chair of the Stakeholder Panel will sit on the Delivery Board 
and be responsible for representing the views of the Stakeholder 
Panel to the Delivery Board. 

6.8 Risk Assessment

Risks have been addressed in the body of the report.

Neil Rodgers
Executive Director (Place) 

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

**INSERT NAME OF ANY PAPERS AND  WEB LINKS” Joanna Bagnall, Sarah Porru
Senior Regeneration Officer, Head of 
Regeneration
joanna.bagnall@highpeak.gov.uk, 
sarah.porru@highpeak.gov.uk

7. Detail

7.1 The proposed Cheadle Town Centre Projects Delivery Board, and supporting 
Stakeholder Panel, will be made up of representatives from partner 
organisations and local groups.  The purpose is to oversee the development 
and delivery of projects including the emerging Cheadle town centre Masterplan 
and the FHSF Task Force pilot.  The Board and Panel will also consider other 
projects as appropriate, such as the submission of a Future High Street Fund 
bid (should a second round be called).

7.2 The Board and Panel will ensure that the implementation of proposals is in 
accordance with the aims of the Staffordshire Moorlands Growth Strategy.

7.3 The proposed governance structure is set out as Appendix 1 to this report.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

7.4 The Board and Panel will: 

1. Play a strategic role in the formulation of joint goals for Cheadle.
2. Receive reports from partner organisations concerning the delivery of 

projects in line with joint goals. 
3. Be responsible for considering the recommendations set out in the 

Cheadle Masterplan options appraisal report, and for recommending 
preferred options.

6.4

Page 17



4. Develop a programme for delivering the agreed Cheadle Masterplan 
proposals, supported by an application to the One Public Estate 
programme as required.

5. Oversee the development of a bid for the 2020/21 funding round of the 
Future High Street Fund if appropriate.

6. Coordinate the resources required to deliver a town centre development 
programme.

7. Establish a means of engaging and communicating with the local 
community and other stakeholders.

8. Regularly review the delivery of the Cheadle Town Centre Projects.

Cheadle town centre options appraisal report

7.5 The District Council, working in partnership with Staffordshire County Council, 
commissioned consultants Cushman and Wakefield to prepare options for a 
masterplan and investment strategy for Cheadle town centre.  The emerging 
masterplan is intended to support regeneration of the town centre by identifying 
opportunities to increase town centre living and the vitality of the High Street.  

7.6 In August 2019 the consultants met with Cheadle Town Council to listen to ideas 
for the town centre that would reflect the ambitions of the Town Council and its 
residents.

7.7 In January 2020 Cushman and Wakefield met with the three GP practices in 
Cheadle and the North Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG).  
There was an acknowledgement that planned housing growth in the town will 
have implications for demand on their services and that additional facilities may 
be required.  There was a cautious interest expressed by the practices in 
participating in the provision of a new town centre community health and well-
being hub.

7.8 In preparing the Masterplan options, Cushman and Wakefield have been 
mindful of the fact that given the relatively low residential values in Cheadle, 
delivering new homes is fairly marginal in viability terms.  This is a key issue 
that has restricted the development of a healthy housing market for some time 
and is evidenced by the lack of new housing development in Cheadle over 
recent years.  Adoption of the SMDC Local Plan will help to address these 
issues.

7.9 The options appraisal for the town centre looks in detail at land in public sector 
ownership, where public authorities have most ability to facilitate change.  The 
sites are:
 Tape Street car park
 Well Steet car park and Lightwood site
 Royal Walk (Community Hospital and Newlands Care Home)
 South Moorlands Leisure Centre
 Depot off Leek Road (Stoddards – site allocation in the SMDC Local Pan)
 Market Place

Page 18



7.10 A number of options have been explored for each of these sites.  Those options 
considered suitable for shortlisting and viability appraisal are summarised 
below:

7.11 Tape Street car park

 Option D: Delivery of a new Leisure Centre (3200 m²) and a Health hub 
(1520 m²), along with parking, public realm improvements and small 
residential development.  

 Option G: Delivery of a new Leisure Centre (3500 m²) and a Health hub 
(1700m²), along with parking, public realm improvements and small 
residential development. Town centre car parking is moved slightly north to 
facilitate a new access road onto the site. 

 Option H: ‘Big Bang’ option – Demolition of all units on and adjacent to the 
north of the car park enabling delivery of a consolidated community health 
hub and Leisure Centre scheme fronting onto the High Street, with public 
realm improvements including creation of a “pocket park”, small residential 
development and public car parking.  

7.12 Royal Walk

 Option A: Demolition of existing hospital and Newlands Care Home and 
replacement with new build residential development.

 Option B: Retention and conversion of the existing hospital site as an extra 
care facility.  Demolition of the former Newlands Care Home site and 
development of new build residential.

 Option C: Demolition of all buildings on the site and delivery of a new 
Leisure Centre on the hospital site, with outdoor sports facilities provided at 
the Newlands Care Home.

 Option for a dementia village: No scheme designs have been prepared or 
costed for this option.  The nature of such a scheme would require 
provision of high quality residential accommodation with extensive 
additional services.  The scheme would need to be funded by a relatively 
high service charge which is unlikely to be funded by the CCG.  Relatively 
low residential values would impact on the viability of delivering a dementia 
village meaning that attracting a private sector developer would be difficult - 
unless the CCG were to commission and fund such services.

7.13 Well Street and Lightwood site

 Option A: Conversion of the existing car park to residential as a separate 
scheme from the development plans at the Lightwood Site.  

 Option B: Conversion of the existing car park to residential as a joint scheme 
with the development plans already existing for the Lightwood site.  

7.14 South Moorlands Leisure Centre

 Option A: Existing leisure centre to be demolished and developed as 
residential development.  Residential scheme developed in a more 
aesthetic, lower density design (42 units).  

Page 19



 Option B: Existing leisure centre to be demolished and developed as 
residential development.  Residential scheme developed to include 
maximum residential capacity (46 units).  

 Option C: Existing leisure centre to be demolished and a leisure and 
wellness centre to be developed on the site.  

7.15 Depot off Leek Road

 Option A: Conversion of the site to residential space, with the retention of 
one of the existing on-site buildings (12 units).  

 Option B: Conversion of the entire site to residential space, demolition of all 
existing buildings that are on site (9 “premium” units).  

7.16 Market Place

Various proposals to improve the site, including replacing tarmac surface with 
natural stone flags; providing a central feature potentially incorporating seating; 
painting/lighting the north-east wall; and reconfiguring the steps to integrate a 
new ramp.  

7.17 Following viability modelling of each of these options, taking into account the 
value of the completed scheme and allowing for a developer profit, the following 
conclusions were drawn about the proposals for residential development:

 The parcel of land owned by SMDC at the southern end of Tape Street 
car park (east of the Police Station) can be viably developed for a small 
scheme of five homes.

 The best performing option for the Royal Walk site is Option A, potentially 
delivering 42 new homes across the hospital and Newlands Care Home 
sites.  However due to the demolition costs and relatively low residential 
values achievable, the NHS and County Council are likely to receive only 
very modest capital receipts for site disposal.

 Both Options A and B for Well Street / Lightwood are viable.  Option B 
has cost savings due to a more efficient road layout and this option also 
maximises development.  The schemes could be delivered as phases 1 
and 2, enabling the Council to sell Well Street car park to a third party 
(Option A) but it would be more prudent to financially incentivise the 
Lightwood site owner to deliver a comprehensive scheme (Option B).

 Both options A and B for South Moorlands Leisure Centre are viable.  
Option B is the better performing option as there is more value (higher 
development density) and lower cost (less road infrastructure).

 Option A is the more viable scheme for the depot off Leek Road.  It 
carries a lower demolition cost and would provide a reasonable profit for 
both developer and landowner.

7.18 The Options Appraisal has provided the above guidance relating to 
opportunities to increase town centre living in Cheadle.  The report has also 

Page 20



considered opportunities to deliver community facilities that will help to attract 
and retain additional visitors to the town centre.  

7.19 Future decisions on Cheadle Hospital and the South Moorlands Leisure Centre 
provide options to consider delivering a new community hub building in the town 
centre to provide replacement health, well-being, leisure and other community 
facilities from a single location.  It is expected that such a new community hub, 
centrally located, would be a significant draw onto the High Street, providing 
spin-off benefits to other town centre shops and services.

7.20 The Options Appraisal has considered options for locating a new health hub, 
leisure centre and / or joint facility.  Potential locations considered are:

 Tape Street car park (either side of an extended and improved Greyhound 
Walk, (Options D and G) or, subject to site assembly and demolition, a 
combined facility fronting the High Street - Option H).

 Royal Walk – Option C – a wellness and leisure hub with outdoor sports 
provision such as tennis courts.

 South Moorlands Leisure Centre – Option C: re-providing a wellness and 
leisure hub on the existing site.

7.21 Analysis of these options led to the following conclusions:

 Locating a leisure and wellness building within a residential area will fail to 
introduce new use, footfall and associated vibrancy to the commercial heart 
of the town.  

 Should leisure services be re-provided on the existing site, there will be 
disruption and a period of time when no Leisure Centre will be available to 
residents.

 Residential development at South Moorlands Leisure Centre and Royal 
Walk could potentially cross fund delivery of a new hub facility in a more 
central location.

7.22 The report recommends that the preferred location for any community hub 
should be at Tape Street car park, bringing footfall and vibrancy into the town 
centre.

Risks and mitigation measures

7.23 It is important to note that in taking forward the recommendations set out in the 
emerging Masterplan for Cheadle town centre there are a number of risks for 
the Council to address.  These are considered below, along with proposed 
mitigation measures.

7.24 The report proposes new uses for both Tape Street and Well Street car parks.  
Whilst options for Tape Street retain some public car parking, it will be 
necessary to undertake a review of proposed parking provision in Cheadle to 

Page 21



ensure that residual parking provision is adequate to support all town centre 
uses.

7.25 The report proposes new uses for Cheadle Hospital.  Stoke-on-Trent and North 
Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Group has announced proposals to close 
the Community Hospital and move to a new model of outpatient care provided 
by community hubs.  A date for the closure of Cheadle Hospital has yet to be 
announced.  Any wider consultation on options should be timed to take account 
of the CCG public information proposals.

7.26 The report proposes residential development on sites not allocated through the 
emerging SMDC Local Plan.  Whilst Local Plan proposals for Cheadle assume 
windfall delivery, any wider consultation on options should be timed to take 
account of the timetable for Local Plan adoption.

Next steps

7.27 The Options Appraisal report has highlighted short term opportunities for 
residential development at Well Street and Tape Street car parks.

7.28 At Tape Street car park there is a plot behind the Police Station that could deliver 
a small scheme of five new homes.  Demand is likely to be from a local house 
builder / developer rather than a volume housebuilder.

7.29 At Well Street car park there is an opportunity to engage with Your Housing 
Group to consider opportunities to bring forward an integrated development 
scheme across the car park and Lightwood sites.

7.30 In the medium and long term it may be possible to bring forward residential 
development at Royal Walk and the site of the existing Leisure Centre.  However 
this depends on the decisions to be taken about the wider future of the existing 
buildings on these sites.

7.31 The Council will set up a Project team to focus on the delivery of key sites in the 
emerging Masterplan, steering decision making about the best future use for 
the South Moorlands Leisure Centre and Tape Street and Well Street car parks.  
The project team would report to the Cheadle town centre Project Board, to 
ensure wider engagement and the capture of opportunities to enable co-location 
and expansion of GP and other community services in the town.

7.32 The collaboration of public sector partners in Cheadle to consider the most 
efficient use of their assets and opportunities to improve both service delivery 
and generate cost savings through co-location and integration supports taking 
a One Public Estate approach to delivery.  

Future High Street Fund Task Force for Cheadle

Page 22



7.33 In December 2019 Cheadle town centre was named as one of the first 14 pilot 
towns to receive bespoke expert advice and support from the MHCLG High 
Streets Task Force to build local capacity and expertise to help regenerate 
Cheadle high street.

7.34 The first step in the Task Force pilot project is an ‘Unlocking your place potential’ 
diagnostic visit. The visit will consist of:

 A review of desk-based research into the performance and perceptions of 
the town. 

 A three-hour meeting, with up to 10 key stakeholders from your area. This 
allows the Task Force time to examine plans, identify challenges and 
feedback on your Expression of Interest application to the Future High 
Street Fund and identify additional support that may be beneficial, from the 
High Streets Task Force.

 A 45 minute town/city centre site tour with a High Streets Task Force Expert 
who will conduct a snapshot analysis based on repositioning, reinventing, 
rebranding and restructuring approaches.

7.35 After the visit we will receive a visit report summarising the Expert’s findings – 
including their recommendation for the strategy that is likely to be most effective 
at “unlocking your place potential”.

7.36 It is expected the support provided through the ‘unlocking your place potential’ 
visit will assist in the development of an expression of interest for later rounds 
of the Future High Street Fund’ if appropriate.  

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Cheadle Town Centre Projects Governance Structure

Alliance Leadership Team

 Chief Executive
 Executive Director 

(Place)
 Executive Director 

(People)
 S.151 Officer   

 TOR

Staffordshire Moorlands 
Cabinet

Service Delivery
Select Committee

Transformation Board

 Alliance Leadership Team
 Alliance Management Team

Stakeholder Panel 

(suggested groups)

 District Councillors/Town 
Councillors – Cheadle West 
(Chair),
Cheadle South East,  
Cheadle North East

 Team Cheadle,
 SM Chamber of Commerce
 Creative Cheadle
 Cheadle Historical Society
 Business Representative  
 Support Staffordshire·   

Destination Staffordshire
 Archdiocese of Birmingham 

(responsible for St. Giles)

TOR

Town Centre Project Delivery Board

 The Leader – Staffordshire 
Moorlands District Council

 Deputy Leader– Staffordshire 
Moorlands District Council

 Executive Director (Place)
 Chair of The Stakeholder Panel
 Staffordshire County Council 
 Clinical Commissioning Group
 NHS Trust

Supported by:
 Head of Regeneration 
 Head of Finance
 Head of Legal
 Project Manager

Project Delivery Group Project Delivery Group Project Delivery Group

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



1

CABINET FORWARD PLAN 

December 2020 – February 2021
The Forward Plan is a list of decisions the Council’s Cabinet intends to take 
shortly. Some of these decisions are known as ‘Key Decisions.’  The Plan is 
updated and published 28 days before each meeting of the Cabinet and is 
available, together with all public reports referred to, from our website 
www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk and offices, Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, 
Leek, Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ.  Should you have any questions 
regarding these documents please contact the Council’s Member Services Team 
via our website or by telephoning 01538 395613.

A key decision is one defined as:

"One likely to result in expenditure or savings which are significant having regard 
to the Council's budget for the service or function to which the decision relates."

OR

"To be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an 
area comprising two or more District Wards."

Documents relating to matters listed, and which are open to the public, will be 
available five working days before the date of the meeting by visiting the 
Council’s website www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk or by telephoning 01538 395551. 
They are also available from our offices – Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, 
Leek Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ. Other documents relevant to decisions 
to be taken may be submitted to the decision maker.

Meetings of the Cabinet are held in public.  However, occasionally, some 
meetings, or part of meetings, may need to be held in private due to the content 
of the reports to be discussed (e.g. commercially sensitive or personal 
information).  This document indicates which reports and dates of meetings 
where this will apply and the reason for this. 

Five days before a private meeting takes place the Council will publish a further 
notice of its intention to hold a meeting in private.  This will again state why this is 
necessary and give the details of any representations received about why the 
meeting should be open to the public.  This will also include a statement of the 
Council’s response to any such representations.

Page 27

Agenda Item 8.1

http://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/
http://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/


2

I N D E X

Matter to be decided Date of decision 
to be made

Page 
No.

COMMUNITIES

Wildfire Public Spaces Protection Order 1 December 2020 3

CUSTOMER SERVICES

Information Governance Update 1 December 2020 4

LEADER

Re-consideration of Cheadle Town Centre Projects 1 December 2020

Annual Report 1 December 2020 5

Second Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review 1 December 2020 6

Medium Term Financial Plan Update 1 December 2020 7

Third Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review 9 February 2021 8

2021/22 Budget & Medium Term Financial Plan 2021/22 to 2024/25 9 February 2021 9

Leek Market Hall 9 February 2021 10

PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT AND PROPERTY

Joint Venture Partnership to Delivery Facilities Management Services 9 February 2021 11

LEISURE AND SPORTS

Sports Village Project 9 February 2021 12

Page 28

https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/documents/s18976/Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Plan%20202021%20202324%20Update.pdf


3

Communities

Matter for decision Wildfire Public Spaces Protection Order

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 1 December 2020

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Bowen

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Communities

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Report of the Executive Director (People)

Public/Private report Public

Page 29



4

Customer Services

Matter for decision Information Governance Update

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 1 December 2020

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Hall

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Resources

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Executive Director (People)

Public/Private report Public 

Page 30

https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/documents/s18981/Performance%20Update%20COVID.pdf


5

Leader

Matter for decision Annual Report

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 1 December 2020

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Resources

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Chief Executive

Public/Private report Public 

Page 31



6

Leader

Matter for decision Second Quarter Financial, Procurement & 
Performance Review

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 1 December 2020

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Resources

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Acting Executive Director (Finance and 
Customer Services)

Public/Private report Public (Private appendix - Information relating to 
any individual.)

Page 32



7

Leader

Matter for decision Medium Term Financial Plan Update

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 1 December 2020

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Resources

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Acting Executive Director (Finance and 
Customer Services)

Public/Private report Public 

Page 33

https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/documents/s18976/Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Plan%20202021%20202324%20Update.pdf


8

Leader

Matter for decision Third Quarter Financial, Procurement & 
Performance Review

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 9 February 2021

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Resources

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Acting Executive Director (Finance and 
Customer Services)

Public/Private report Public 

Page 34



9

Leader

Matter for decision 2021/22 Budget & Medium Term Financial Plan 
2021/22 to 2024/25

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council No

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 9 February 2021

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Resources

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Acting Executive Director (Finance and 
Customer Services)

Public/Private report Public 

Page 35



10

Leader

Matter for decision Leek Market Hall

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 9 February 2021

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Service Delivery

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Report of the Executive Director (Place)

Public/Private report Public

Page 36

https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/documents/s18977/Planning%20White%20Paper.pdf


11

Planning, Development and Property

Matter for decision Joint Venture Partnership to Delivery Facilities 
Management Services

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 9 February 2021

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Wain

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Resources

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Report of the Executive Director (Place)

Public/Private report Private - Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person

Page 37



12

Leisure and Sports

Matter for decision Sports Village Project

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 9 February 2021

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Deaville

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Service Delivery

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Report of the Executive Director (People)

Public/Private report Private - Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person

Page 38



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet

1 December 2020

TITLE: Annual Report 2019/20

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Sybil Ralphs - Council Leader 
SMDC

CONTACT OFFICER: Vanessa Higgins - Information Business 
Partner

WARDS: All

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A: Annual Report 2019/20

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the Council’s Annual Report for 2019/20, 
which compares Staffordshire Moorlands’ performance and costs with councils 
in the West Midlands region and nationally; and highlights further action where 
needed.  

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Cabinet notes the findings of the benchmarking exercises and the small 
refocus of the Corporate Plan suggested for the following 12 months.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Annual Report establishes the context for the Council in planning its 
performance delivery. This includes both the financial backdrop against which 
the council must deliver its services but also the local place context of the 
Staffordshire Moorlands and how it compares against a range of socio-
demographic measures.

3.2 The report looks back over the Council’s achievements in 2019/20 and uses 
national benchmarking data (2018/19) to assess value for money.

3.3 The analysis is built around the Corporate Plan priorities and provides a small 
refocus for the next 12 months

Page 39

Agenda Item 8.2



4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The Annual Report is built around the priorities contained within the Corporate 
Plan and therefore links into all four main aims and the supporting objectives.  

5. Alternative Options

5.1 This report is for information with no decision required of the Panel. 

ANDREW P STOKES
Chief Executive

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Information Team files
Benchmarking platforms

Vanessa Higgins
Information Business Partner
vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk

Page 40



6. Detail

6.1 The purpose of an Annual Report is to look back and take stock of the progress 
and achievements made against the Council’s stated objectives and to use this 
intelligence to understand what still needs to be done and what new challenges 
lie ahead.

6.2 The Annual Report does this by:

 looking at performance against targets
 analysing performance and costs against national and regional comparisons
 presenting a place profile for the Staffordshire Moorlands, such as health 

factors, deprivation levels, economic indicators and access to housing 
 outlining the financial challenges facing the authority over the course of its 

Medium Term Financial Plan. 

6.3 The highlights from the place profile are as follows:  

 Over 32% of the area is classed as rural 
 Ageing population, 65+ years expected to become the largest resident group 

possibly in 10 years’ time
 Higher than average levels of unqualified residents
 Health outcomes – issues with alcohol related illness and under 18’s 

conception rates
 Indices of Multiple Deprivation – low overall but geographic and thematic 

pockets
 Employment – higher than county average unemployment 
 Covid Recovery – Staffordshire 15th highest economic vulnerability out of 

26 areas 

6.4 The benchmarking issues are highlighted below along with the relevant actions 
that are in progress:

Aim One: Healthier and safer

Benchmarks Action in Progress
 Benefits – low spend, performance 

dropped in 18/19 (improved in 19/20)
 Review of Local Council Tax Reduction 

Scheme, Universal Credit project, Access to 
Services Strategy

 Temporary accommodation low  Housing projects - homelessness strategy

 CCTV – high spend, crime low  CCTV project completion, priority area

 Leisure – high spend, participation 
rates improving

 Sports strategy, facilities plan, active 
communities programme

Page 41



Aim Two: Use of resources

Benchmarks Action in Progress
 Council Tax / Business Rates 

Collection – high performing, low 
spend but significant increase 

 Package of support measures for businesses 
and tailored payment plans. 2020/21 rates are 
likely to be negatively affected by the impact on 
the local economy from lockdown

 Ombudsman Complaints – lowest 
20% nationally. Reducing levels of 
complaints generally

 Working with Institute of Customer Services on 
an Access to Services Strategy

Aim Three: Local economy

Benchmarks Action in Progress
 Business formation rate – increased 

but below average
 Accelerated business growth and employment 

programme

 Planning processing speeds – 
performance is high, spend increased 
and is now mid 20%
 

 Embedding new team structures

 Tourism – above average spend  Tourism (recovery) Strategy

Aim Four: Environment

Benchmarks Action in Progress
 Waste & Recycling – high performing 

but high cost 
 AES Efficiency Programme
 Review of current arrangements in light of 

national waste strategy in 2021
 Public Toilets – high spend  Local priority
 Fly-tipping – amongst lowest in region 

(increase in 19/20)
 Education / Enforcement - review of 

enforcement policy

 Parks and Open Spaces – mid 20% 
nationally on spend

 Parks Development Plans and specific projects 
e.g. Brough Park

Page 42



 

Staffordshire Moorlands: Annual Report    

2019-2020  

P
age 43



Contents Page 

Chapter 1: Profile of the District – Life in Staffs Moorlands: contextual information on housing provision, 
employment and skills, health issues and levels of crime 

Chapter 2: Financial Context – The financial challenges and opportunities facing local government and how 
the Council is addressing them 

Chapter 3: Our Vision – The key priorities for the Council for 2019 to 2023 

Chapter 4: Demonstrating Value for Money – Progress against our corporate priorities and how we 
perform compared to other councils  

Chapter 5: Our Priorities 2020-2021 - The Council’s roadmap for the next twelve months    

Appendices 

Appendix A: Aim 1 Analysis of comparative performance and costs 

Appendix B: Aim 2 Analysis of comparative performance and costs 

Appendix C: Aim 3 Analysis of comparative performance and costs 

Appendix D: Aim 4 Analysis of comparative performance and costs 

 

P
age 44



Chapter 1: Profile of the District 

The District of Staffordshire Moorlands covers an area of 57,600 hectares, of 
which 32.16% is classed as rural, and serves a usual resident population of 97,106 
(census) - 50.8% of which are female. There were 44,263 domestic households 
on the Council Tax valuation list at the end of March 2020.    

Who lives in the Staffordshire Moorlands?  

• Staffs Moorlands has an ageing population. Over 25% of the local 
population are aged 65+, up from 20% ten years ago. The majority (29%) 
of Staffs Moorlands residents are currently aged between 45 and 64   

• Only 2.52% of the local population is non-white, compared to 6.44% in 
Staffordshire and 20.25% nationally. Mixed or multiple ethnic groups 
make up the second largest proportion of the local population at 0.62%  

• One person households make up the largest group in the District followed 
by couples with no children 

• 33.22% of the population are educated to degree level or higher, which is 
lower than the county average. The proportion of residents with no 
qualifications has risen to over 8%, again higher than the county average.     
  

What’s it like to live in the Staffordshire Moorlands? 
 
Crime – Figures show that Staffs Moorlands is amongst the lowest 20% of councils in the West Midlands region for levels of crime.   
 
Deprivation – Staffs Moorlands is ranked in the bottom half of districts nationally for its overall deprivation score but has a higher 
deprivation score for living environment.   
 
Health – Average life expectancy for both men and women is the 4th longest in the county at 79.76 and 83.12 years respectively. Compared 
to the West Midlands region, the health indicators below are higher than the comparative average:   
 
 

P
age 45



• Under 18 conception rates  
• Hospital admissions rate due to alcohol (per 100,000 population) 

 

Housing – Staffs Moorlands has a housing affordability ratio amongst the lowest 20% of the region (this ratio compares house prices to 
annual earnings, the lower the ratio the more affordable the housing). The average house price in the area was £179,677, placing the district 
6th lowest in the county. 
 

• 79.69% of households in Staffs Moorlands are owner occupied, which is higher than the County and national average 
• 8.86% of households live in social rented accommodation putting the area in the lowest 20% of areas nationally 

Employment – 58.79% of Staffordshire Moorlands residents are of working age, placing it amongst the bottom 40% of areas nationally. 
Employment rates are higher than the Staffordshire average and although low, unemployment rates are also higher than the county average.  
 

• Staffs Moorlands has a high proportion of residents who are employed as managers, directors and senior officials but a very low 
proportion of professional workers. The levels of employment in elementary roles is also high compared to national standards.   

 
 

Covid-19 – Grant Thornton have attempted to measure the economic vulnerability of county areas based on a range of metrics including 
employment in at-risk sectors. Staffordshire has the 15th highest vulnerability score out of 26 areas nationally (Derbyshire is ranked 4th). A new 
basket of community recovery measures has been pulled together by the Information Team, which includes inward looking measures such as 
demand for services as well as external contextual measures and these are being monitored from September 2020.  

 

The following pages provide further and supporting analysis from Grant Thornton’s Place Analytics Tool on some key contextual data that 
helps the Council understand the issues facing our local population and to plan services accordingly.  

P
age 46



 

 

 
 

 

P
age 47



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 48



 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 49



Chapter 2: Our Financial Context 

The District has faced significant financial challenges over recent years because of austerity measures along with cost 
pressures within services and greater volatility in financing streams. The shift in local authority financing is increasing the 
focus on locally generated income streams and reducing the reliance on core Central Government funding. This increases 
the control and influence the Council has over local income generation but also makes it vulnerable to fluctuations within 
the local economy, hence increasing financial risk. The impact of the Coronavirus pandemic will no doubt increase this financial risk. The table 
below compares Council spend per capita against all District Councils and shows that Staffs Moorlands has low spend nationally at £101.71 per 
head. However, the spend per head on Environmental and Regulatory Services has now increased and is assessed as high compared to the national 
picture.    

Staffordshire Moorlands 

2018/2019  

(£000s) Unit 

Unit 
Cost 
(£) 

Unit Cost 
Score 

TOTAL SERVICE NET EXPENDITURE (RO Bal) / Population 10,008 98,397 101.71 Low 

TOTAL HOUSING SERVICES (GFRA ONLY) (RO Bal) / Population 832 98,397 8.46 Low 

TOTAL CULTURAL & RELATED SERVICES (RO Bal) / Population 1,933 98,397 19.64 Average 

TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL & REGULATORY SERVICES (RO Bal) / Population 4,342 98,397 44.13 High 

TOTAL PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES (RO Bal) / Population 902 98,397 9.17 Low 

TOTAL CENTRAL SERVICES (RO Bal) / Population 2,235 98,397 22.71 Very Low 

 

 

P
age 50



RECOVERY 

FINANCIAL 
RECOVERY 

COMMUNITY 
RECOVERY 

ECONOMIC 
RECOVERY 

REINSTATING 
SERVICES 

POSITIVE 
LEGACY 

Financial challenges and opportunities 

In addition to the challenges posed by Covid-19, which are set out in detail in the Statement 
of Accounts and focus on a multi-faceted recovery programme, outlined below are some of 
the more significant developments which also have a potential impact on the financial 
position of the Authority.  
 
Changes to Local Government Finance 

Revenue Support Grant - The Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 
presented the Local Government finance settlement 2016/17 to the House of Commons on 
17th December 2015. This was made in the context of the Chancellor’s Autumn Statement / 
Spending Review and included a four year settlement offer to Authorities for Revenue 
Support Grant (the Local Government core grant) which confirmed the phasing out of the grant by 2020. Consequently 2019/20 was the first 
year of zero revenue support grant funding for the Council.     

Business Rates – As part of the current Business Rates Retention system, authorities can retain a 50% proportion of any growth in business 
rates over and above a centrally established baseline. The Council’s proportion is further increased by participation in the Staffordshire 
Business Rates pool, which removes the 50% ‘growth levy’ payable to Government.   

In October 2015, the Government announced a forthcoming package of reforms to the Business Rates Retention System including a move to 
Local Government retaining 100% of Business Rates and an end to Revenue Support Grant (as discussed above). This has subsequently been 
revised to a 75% retention scheme, and during the year, Government invited Authorities to make an application to ‘pilot’ the 75% scheme in 
2019/20. Staffordshire Authorities were successful in being named as a pilot for 2019/20 – which has generated a forecast windfall of 
£521,000 in 2019/20. 

Uncertainly remains around how the new system will be phased in and in what form – the approved pilots will support the Government in 
forming the final model. In light of the Coronavirus pandemic, Government have announced a delay to the implementation of the new system 
until 2021/22. Therefore, no financial assumptions based on the new system have been included with the Council’s financial plans at this stage 
- these will be fed into the plans once we have more certainty around how the system will operate.    

P
age 51



There is also a risk that the new system may revisit the original ‘baseline funding level’ for Authorities – which is the amount retained by 
Authorities based on an assessment of need. Any review may favour Authorities with Adult Social Care and Children Services, where there is 
national recognition of financial pressures, to the detriment of District Councils. 

Council Tax - The Council has the capacity to vary Council Tax levels, following the abolition of capping. However, the Council’s ability to 
increase Council Tax by more than a certain percentage is subject to referendum. The threshold was temporarily increased to 2.99% from 1st 
April 2019 (to better reflect CPI), and a Council Tax increase of 2.9% was applied by the Council for 2019/20. The threshold has been reduced 
back to 2% from 1st April 2020, consequently a Council Tax increase of 1.9% has been applied in 2020/21.    

New Homes Bonus - In the provisional Local Government financial settlement released in December 2019, the Government confirmed that in 
Spring 2020 it would be consulting on a replacement for the New Homes Bonus scheme (a financial reward scheme awarded to Authorities 
who demonstrate an increase in housing provision on an annual basis).  

The new housing incentive scheme will reflect a more targeted approach that rewards local government where they are ‘ambitious’ in 
delivering housing growth. At this stage, there is no further detail on what form the new scheme will take. Whilst the allocation of New Homes 
Bonus is secure for 2020/21 (the Council will receive £194,890 in funding next year) beyond that no commitment is made for future years. 

In the absence of any further information, the current MTFP assumes the Council will continue to receive funding equivalent to that confirmed 
for 2020/21 but does so with the recognition of the risk this represents to the viability of the Plan beyond 
2020/21. 

The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy originally included an assumed £400,000 from stimulated 
housing growth, primarily from New Homes Bonus over the four years (2017-21). The low level of growth 
experienced in the District over the last few years has meant that little progress has been made against this 
target. The added uncertainty surrounding the replacement scheme casts further doubt on this target.  

Social Housing - The Government announced in July 2015 far reaching legislative and financial changes for 
the social housing sector. One of the most significant announcements being the reduction in social housing 
rents by 1% per annum from April 2016 for 4 years (2019/20 being the last year). The Government 
announced that from 2020/21, Authorities will be allowed to increase rents from 2020/21 by CPI +1%. 

 

P
age 52



This has significantly impacted on the affordability of the Ascent business plan (the joint venture company established by the Council and Your 
Housing Group Limited) to deliver affordable housing across the District. Consequently, forecast revenue receipts have been revised to account 
for the reduction in rental income and as a result a number of strategic options continue to be considered for the future of Ascent with 
changes - which may potentially involve the dissolution of Ascent – to potentially take place during 2020/21.   

Impact of Brexit 

At this stage it is impossible to predict the impact of the Brexit process on the Authority’s finances and financial planning. It has the potential 
to influence a number of local and national economic drivers such as inflation, interest rates, the valuation of assets and liabilities (for example 
the Council’s property portfolio and pension liability) and the demand for and funding of services.   

Currently the timing and direction of Brexit’s influence on these areas is a matter of debate. To give an idea of the potential financial 
consequences, the table below quantifies the impact on the Authority’s 2020/21 budget had there been a 1% change in its key economic 
drivers. 

Risk item Impact on MTFP Risk Item Impact on MTFP 

1 % change in inflation 155,000 1 % change in interest rates 88,000 

 

Brexit will also have implications on specific project funding bids which have in the past been submitted to European established bodies, it is 
unclear what, if any, mechanism will replace this. The overall wider impact and any specific changes to Local Government finance will be 
further assessed within the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan.   

Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme  

2017-18 was the first year of the Council’s new 4-year Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme, which targets £3.1m in financial savings by 
31st March 2021 to offset the forecast budget shortfall and ensure the Council is financially stable. The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy 
was developed and presented as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan to Full Council in February 2017. 

The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy aims to both reduce expenditure and increase income. The need to grow income is now more of a 
priority as the Council moves towards being self-financing and no longer heavily reliant on direct Government funding. The Strategy has been 
developed on the underlying principle of protecting frontline service delivery.  

P
age 53



The Efficiency Programme is focused on five areas: - 

• Major Procurements - there is the opportunity to focus attention on several large service functions which are currently provided by an 
external contractor / supplier. This will also allow a fundamental review of these services with proper consideration of the current 
financial constraints. The individual projects will focus on Waste Collection, Leisure Management and Facilities Management 

• Asset Management Plan – continuation of the existing priority of rationalising the Council’s asset base with a focus around priorities to 
allow for the necessary capital investment 

 

• Growth – development of a clear focus on housing and economic growth based upon the established Local Plan 
 

• Income Generation – focus on increasing the yield from existing sources on income and a drive towards identifying new sources of 
income 

 

• Rationalisation – a commitment to reducing expenditure on non-priority areas of spend e.g. management arrangements, non-statutory 
services, and channel shift. 

 

The delivery of efficiency and rationalisation projects is monitored by the Transformation Board made up of senior managers; a Director is 
allocated as ‘project executive’ and a full business case appraisal is completed for each project. 

The efficiency target for 2019/20 was originally set at £475,000.  However, due to slippage in the delivery of the programme in 2018/19, the 
programme was re-profiled and the target for 2019/20 increased to £842,000.  The table below shows the projected re-profiled Efficiency 
Programme: - 

 

 

 

 

P
age 54



 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 TOTAL 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Original Programme 661,000 830,000 475,000 1,175,000 - 3,141,000 

Amended 
Programme 

661,000 395,000 935,000 702,000 448,000 3,141,000 

Variance - (435,000) 460,000 (473,000) 448,000 - 

Achieved Q4 2018/19 - 93,000 (93,000) -   

Revised Target 661,000 488,000 842,000 702,000 448,000 3,141,000 

                  

Consequently, the Efficiency Plan has been extended by one year to reflect the anticipated timing of savings materialising.  

The savings achieved in 2019/20 primarily relate to the renegotiation of the Leisure Centres operation contract and insurance contract and 
additional income. Continued progression against the efficiency programme is dependent on achieving significant savings from the alternative 
delivery model for Waste, Streets and Parks via the trading company - Alliance Environment Services. There are also significant income 
generation targets focusing on housing and economic growth, linked to the approval of the Local Plan  

However, the Coronavirus pandemic does present many pressures to the Council’s MTFP as outlined, with significant losses anticipated during 
2020/21. We recognise that there remains uncertainty over the longevity of the impacts and that this may affect our current financial 
assumptions, and so we will be undertaking an early review of the MTFP. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 55



Chapter 3: Our Vision 

Staffordshire Moorlands’ new 4-year Corporate Plan sets out the Council’s Vision for 2019 to 2023 – achieving excellence in the delivery of high 
quality services that meet the needs and aspirations of our communities – and is underpinned by four aims:  

Aim One: To help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live and work  
 
Our key objectives are: 

 
 Increased supply of good quality affordable homes 
 Develop a positive relationship with communities 
 An effective relationship with strategic partners 
 Effective support of community safety arrangements including CCTV 
 Provision of sports facilities and leisure opportunities focused upon improving health 

 

To meet these objectives, we will… 

 Review the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy in order to integrate communities and sports clubs into the delivery of its objectives 
 Develop and implement an ongoing indoor leisure facilities improvement plan focused on improving the health and wellbeing of residents 
 Develop and implement an outdoor leisure facilities improvement plan focussed around the “sports village” concept  
 Complete the review of the CCTV system and implement the agreed recommendations 
 Develop a strategy for further development of affordable and specialist housing 
 Develop a Private Sector Housing Strategy to improve conditions for homeowners and private tenants 
 Review the Council’s community safety arrangements in order to maintain strong partnerships with community groups 
 Refresh the Council’s Communications Strategy in order to ensure that there is a more effective dialogue with residents 

 

Working with and supporting our partners we will seek to influence positive outcomes around… 

 Reducing crime, the fear of crime and anti-social behaviour 
 Ensuring effective health provision particularly for the elderly 
 Combating illegal money lenders such as loan sharks    

 

P
age 56



 

Aim Two: To use resources effectively and provide value for money 
 
Our key objectives are: 
 

 Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money 
 

 Ensure our services are easily available to all our residents in the appropriate channels and provided “right first time” 
 

 A high performing and well motivated workforce 
 

 Effective procurement with a focus on local business 
 

 Effective use of ICT 
 

 More effective use of Council assets 
 

To meet these objectives, we will… 

 Develop and implement a plan to identify new and innovative ways of generating income 
 Implement the Council’s Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme 
 Develop a new Organisational Development Strategy to ensure that our workforce is developed effectively 
 Continue to embed good information management practices through the ASSURED framework 
 Develop a new ICT Strategy to enhance and support the delivery of services 
 Develop a new Procurement Strategy with a focus on spending money locally 
 Develop an Access to Services Strategy to ensure that Council services are accessible to all 
 Refresh and implement the Asset Management Plan, including a review of public estate, and ensure adequate facilities management 

arrangements are in place   
 
 

 
 

 

P
age 57



Aim Three: To help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns and villages 
 
Our key objectives are:  

 
 

 Encouraging business start-ups and enterprises 
 

 Flourishing town centres that support the local economy 
 
 Encourage and develop tourism 
 
 High quality development and building control with an “open for business approach” 

 

To meet these objectives, we will… 

 Implement the Council’s Growth Strategy to bring about the regeneration of towns and rural communities 
 Develop a masterplan for bringing redundant mills back into use 
 Support the development of Cornhill and improved rail links 
 Support the development of the former Churnet Works site in Leek 
 Develop a Tourism Strategy to maximise the positive impact to our communities  
 Develop and implement plans to improve the public market operations 
 Adopt a new Local Plan 

 
 

Working with and supporting our partners we will seek to influence positive outcomes around… 

 The provision of bus services which connect our villages with our three market towns for services, shopping and leisure 
 Expanding the Growth Deal Partnership to provide inward investment 
 Supporting the Churnet Valley Railway with their plans to bring trains back to Leek 
 Improved access and traffic flows to our town centres 

    

 

P
age 58



Aim Four: To protect and improve the environment and respond to the climate emergency 
 
Our key objectives are:  
 

 Effective recycling and waste management 
 

 Meeting the challenges of climate change 
 

 Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health 
 

 Provision of quality parks and open spaces 
  

 Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of residents, businesses and visitors 
 

To meet these objectives, we will… 

 Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the transfer of services to AES, to deliver ground maintenance services on behalf of the Council in order 
to achieve improved performance and value for money outcomes  

 Develop a Climate Change Strategy and an action plan of response to a declared climate emergency 
 Review the Council’s waste and recycling arrangements to increase recycling and to respond to the emerging new national strategy   
 Develop a plan to improve Brough Park and John Hall Gardens 
 Identify and implement an approach to reduce the cost of country parks 
 Develop a new Parking Strategy to ensure that our car parks meet the needs of residents and visitors 
 Review the Environmental Enforcement Policy in order to take steps to further reduce environmental crime 

 
 

Working with and supporting our partners we will seek to influence positive outcomes around… 

 The provision of waste and recycling centres across the district 
 The provision of accessible on-street parking 

 
 

 

 

P
age 59



43%
34%

23%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

2019/20 Trends

 
Chapter 4: Demonstrating value for money - our performance and how we compare 

At the close of 2019/20 the Council had achieved 67% of its key performance indicator targets for the year (a 12% reduction on the previous 
year due in part to the impact of the coronavirus pandemic) and had maintained or improved performance levels in 66% of these measures (up 
from 63% last year).  

 

       

The service areas which fell short of target include households in temporary accommodation, FOI request response times, planning 
enforcement resolution times, fly-tipping incidents and estimated recycling rates. The impact of lockdown due to the coronavirus pandemic 
can also be seen in some of the outturn results. 

For those measures that fell below the target set for the year we have developed actions for improvement, where feasible, as part of our 
performance reporting to senior managers and members. As well as comparing performance over time and against target, we also compare 
our performance with other Councils nationally. 

 

 

 

2019/20 Targets

Target Met

Target Not Met

Not Available

P
age 60



Aim 1: A safer and healthier environment 
 
Delivering on our housing targets: 
 Benefits processing times for new claims 
- Benefits processing times for changes of circumstance 
- Households in temporary accommodation 
 Homelessness prevention 
 8% (7 out of 91) of housing register applicants in priority need have been waiting in excess of 6 months 
 Housing Benefits processing – accuracy rates  

 
In 2018/19 Staffs Moorlands’ performance in determining new Housing Benefit claims has dropped to the 8th fastest (out of 18 councils in the 
West Midlands) at 23 days (up from 19 days). However, in 2019/20 this performance was vastly improved upon with an end of year processing 
time of just 15 days. The Council’s costs increased in 2018/19 and are now the 9th lowest in the region, having previously been the 4th lowest. 
The correlation charts in Appendix A detail the regional performances and identify those councils with lower costs in 20158/19. The number of 
households in temporary accommodation has increased from 5 to 11 from 2009 to 2018 but remains relatively low and stable.  

 
Contextual Measures:  
 79% of benefit overpayments were recovered 
 42 affordable homes completed in 2018/19  
 281 homes stood empty for more than two years: down from 308 last year 
 3 landlords are signed up to the Landlord Accreditation Scheme     

 
Achievements 
 Major housing sites were granted approval at Daisy Bank Farm Upper Tean, Blythe Vale and Cecilly Mill Cheadle 
 Work started on site for six affordable homes in Wetley Rocks in partnership with Peak District Rural Housing Association 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 61



Delivering on community safety and positive community relations: 
Benchmarking confirms that the Staffs Moorlands area enjoys relatively low crime levels (the second lowest in the comparator group) but the 
Council’s spend on CCTV is now the 6th highest (up from 10th highest due to an increase in expenditure from £153k to £184k) in the West 
Midlands comparison group. A CCTV review project is nearing completion.    
 
Contextual Measures:  
 105 voluntary groups supported 

 
Achievements 
 The SPACE scheme was again a big success (summer diversionary activity for young people aged 8-18). The programme runs for six 

weeks offering both targeted activity and universal provision across the Moorlands 
 Supported Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service to deliver the Safe & Sound Project by linking local partner agencies together to deliver 

workshops covering Fire Safety, Anti-Social Behaviour, What to do in an emergency, Road Safety, fraud/scam awareness, Mental Health 
and Wellbeing 

 Intoxicated Campaign successfully launched prior to Christmas and a Commendation from Staffordshire Police for our Licensing Team 
for their contribution towards reducing issues within Leek Town Centre 
 

Delivering on our leisure targets: 
- External funding awarded to help support the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy 
 Number of new sports participation programmes created in priority areas 
 Number of voluntary clubs/organisations supported with funding applications 

 
2018/19 benchmarking evidences that relative spend by Staffs Moorlands on the provision of sports and recreation is amongst the top 40% of 
councils nationally at £706,000 and is the 6th highest in the West Midlands comparator group. The Council has now extended its current 
contract with its leisure partners and savings were expected over the life of the contract prior to lockdown. The wider health outcomes within 
the Staffs Moorlands also need to be considered as the Council implements its sport and physical activity strategy. Latest data shows that the 
district has the 2nd highest proportion of residents taking part in 150+ minutes of exercise each week in the county at 64.9%.    
 
 
 

P
age 62



Contextual Measures:  
 24% of the local population are ‘inactive’, down from 33% (Nov 2019 Active Lives Survey) 
 13.2% of the local population volunteer in sports clubs, up from 10.8% (Nov 2019 Active Lives Survey)  
 3 new volunteering programmes have been created in priority areas 

 
Achievements 
 We successfully gained planning permission 

and installed the flood lights on the new 
skate park at Brough Park. A condition of 
Sport England funding which contributed 
£50,000 towards the project 

 Working on behalf of Cheadle Town Council, 
we delivered a project to refurbish two 
tennis courts, install a new fenced MUGA, 
improve the toddler play area and created a 
large skate park extension at the Tean Road 
Recreation Ground 

 Continued to celebrate and showcase local 
sporting talent and volunteering through 
our annual Sports Awards 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 63



Aim 2: Meeting financial challenges and providing value for money 
 

Delivering on our effective use of resources targets: 
 Council tax and business rates collection 
 Media releases taken up and social media followers (Facebook followers have more than doubled) 
 Internal audit recommendations implemented on time 
- Sundry debt reduction 
- On-contract spend 
 Invoices paid on time 
 Efficiency savings met  
- Procurement activity on forward plan 
 Budget variance (Q3) 

 
2018/19 benchmarking reveals that Staffs Moorlands has the 4th highest Council Tax collection rate in the region at 98.66% (38th highest 
nationally – an improvement of 11 places). Costs have increased from £237,000 to £378,000 in 2018/19, taking our national ranking from 165 
to 131 out of 200 councils nationally. Performance in collecting Business Rates has increased significantly in 2018/19, placing the council 41st 
highest in the country at 99.13%.  
 
Contextual Measures:  
 357 retweets on Twitter; down from 370 
 Income generated equates to 54% of the net budget (2018/19) 
 18.45m in external funding levered (2018/19)  

 
Achievements 
 Further savings across post and print as we roll out the Hybrid Mail project and promote electronic communication  
 Unqualified Statement of Accounts / successful external audit process with minimal errors 
 Delivered a balanced budget for 2019/20 and Medium Term Financial Plan 

 

 
 

P
age 64



Delivering on our customer access and right first time targets: 
- Website assessment through Socitm’s Better Connected survey 
 Complaints responded to within 10 days 
 Repeat complaints 
 Channel shift contacts (assisted versus self-serve access) 
- FOI requests dealt with on time 

 
The benchmarking material on complaints levels indicates that we have very low levels of ombudsman complaints (amongst the bottom 20% 
nationally with just 5 in 2018/19) and the picture for general complaints shows a clear reduction during the 2019/20 year. A new system for 
managing and recording complaints went live in April 2018 and has seen a reduction in the number of complaints received and a reduction in 
repeat issues due to a triage approach.                

 
Contextual Measures:  
 14% of FOI requests were diverted to the Council’s website / publication scheme (down from 24% last year) 
 81 complaints were received during 2019/20, down from 118 the previous year 
 The cost of handling FOI requests was estimated at £28,000 

 
Achievements 
 Introduced a Bereavement Care service for our customers following training for frontline staff and a review of relevant documents 
 Suicide awareness training to assist with vulnerable customers and identify possible safeguarding cases 
 To date, 250 online forms available for customers to self-serve this will increase as we continue building forms to add to our websites 
 18,783 One Vu accounts now active as customers can report changes, raise requests, submit information, and track requests through 

their accounts 
 

Delivering on our high performing and well motivated workforce targets: 
 Sickness absence per FTE 
 Workplace accidents 
- Reportable / lost time workplace accidents 

 

P
age 65



Sickness absence was low in 2018/19 and well below the regional average. Staff appraisals have been paused whilst new corporate plan 
priorities and aligned service plans were agreed but will shortly recommence. Overall accident levels decreased last year to just 12, and two of 
the four lost time accidents were down to operative error.        
 
Contextual Measures:  
 We received 64 compliments last year, down from 82 
 Staff turnover stood at 7.6%, down from 9.2% the previous year 

 
Achievements 
 A reduction in workplace accidents and no serious workplace accidents 
 15 promotions (at management and officer level) and 7 secondment opportunities 
 7 work experience placements and 6 post entry training agreements in place 

 
Delivering on our effective use of assets targets:   
 Council-owned business units that are occupied 
 IT network and system availability  

 
Achievements 
 Continued to strengthen and embed our Information Governance framework through 

ASSURED, including a programme of peer challenge for all Information Asset 
Registers 

 Completed Butter Market refurbishment 
 Boundary walls and fencing has all been renewed at Town Yard in Leek, which 

alongside Leekbrook is fully let – as is the rest of the commercial portfolio 
 

Delivering on our procurement targets:   
- On-contract spend 
- Procurement activity 
 Invoices paid on time 

 

P
age 66



Achievements 

 Small business support for procurement tendering 
 Insurance tender delivered with substantial savings 
 New on-line purchase card facility implemented 
 Combined cross-service procurement exercises 

 
Delivering on our technology targets: 
 IT network and system availability  

 

Achievements 

 Began work on the rollout of Office 365 and Windows 10 
 Procured and rolled out councillor iPads in response to the 2019 local elections 
 Completed the refresh of the Intranet and briefed service areas on the improved functionality, which included user customisation 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 67



Aim 3: To support economic development and regeneration 
 

Delivering on our encouraging business start-ups objective: 

Benchmarking reveals that our business formation rate was the lowest in the County and the West Midlands region at 8.84% 
but had improved slightly on the previous year’s rate.      

Contextual Measures:  
 4165 enterprises are operating within the Staffs Moorlands, an increase of 45 on the previous year 

 

Achievements 

 Secured £1.35 million in Local Growth Funding to co-finance road improvements required to enable expansion of Blythe Vale Business 
estate (thereby helping to retain growing firms and longer term to attract business growth) 

 Facilitated a wide range of business events  
 Distributed the E-newsletter to approx. 1000 businesses each month 

 

 Delivering on our flourishing town centres targets: 

 The district had an average town centre vacancy rate of 11%, down from 14.9% - Leek 8%, Cheadle 16.7%, and Biddulph 13.1%.  
 
Cheadle has been selected as a pilot for the Future High Street Fund and new housing in Cheadle and Biddulph as part of the Local Plan 
delivery will support increased footfall and therefore increased shop occupancy levels. Economic Recovery, post lockdown, has been at the 
forefront of the council’s overall recovery plans with a programme of targeted business support. 
 
 Celebrated 800 years of Leek markets in the Autumn with a series of seasonal markets and special events 
 Cheadle town centre was named as one of the first 14 pilot towns set to benefit from expert support to regenerate the high street 

 
  

 

P
age 68



Delivering on our promoting tourism objective: 
Visitors to the Staffs Moorlands added £312m of spend to the local economy according to the latest research reports and local business 
benefited from over 1.68m overnight stays. The Council’s spend on Tourism has dropped from the top 20% of councils nationally at £206,000 
to the top 40% at £145,000. 
 

Achievements 

 A record-breaking year for Open Art entries at the Nicholson Gallery, with 92 
artists submitting work and almost 280 works displayed 

 Staffordshire Embroideries donated to the Gallery in December and exhibition 
opened to the public in February 2020 

 Peak Cycle Hire opened at Manifold Valley Visitor Centre in Summer 2019 
 

 
 
Delivering on our high quality development and building control targets:  
Contextual Measures:  
 No costs were awarded against the Council last year for planning appeals 
 283 customers attended the new Planning Surgeries: up from 252 last year 

 
 Planning appeals successfully defended 
 100% of Priority 1 planning enforcement cases visited within 24hours 
- Planning enforcement cases were resolved in 13 weeks 
 Major, minor and other planning applications determined in time 
 Planning applications with pre-app enquiries 
- Agent Satisfaction with the planning application process 

 

P
age 69



2018/19 benchmarking data across the West Midlands region shows that Staffordshire Moorlands performs above the mean for the 
processing of major, minor and other planning applications, and had a 100% record on majors. The costs of development control have 
increased to £362,000 placing the council in the middle 20% of councils nationally and the 8th highest in the region.   
 

 
         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 70



Aim 4: To protect and improve the environment 

Delivering on our effective recycling and waste management targets: 
- % of household waste recycled (estimate) 
- Kg of residual household waste (estimate) 
 Missed Bins 
 

Regional benchmarking for 2018/19 places Staffs Moorlands amongst the highest performing but also higher cost authorities in the West 
Midlands for waste and recycling. We have the 3rd lowest residual waste rates in the region (dropping from the top spot) and the second 
highest recycling rates but are also the 5th and 6th highest for waste and recycling costs. Nationally our waste collection costs are amongst the 
top 40% of councils.   
 
Achievements 

 Successfully completed Phase 3 of the transfer of services to Alliance Environmental Services Ltd, to deliver waste, streets and ground 
maintenance services on behalf of the Council in order to achieve improved performance and value for money outcomes 

Delivering on our high quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health targets: 
 

 Street cleanliness 
 Regulatory inspections 
 High risk premises inspections 
- Permitted processes inspections (properties due for inspection in March could not be accessed) 
 Food premises that are broadly compliant with Food Standards Agency standards 
- Fly-tipping incidents  
- Community clean-up campaigns (the March event had to be postponed due to the national lockdown) 

 
Our 2018/19 fly-tipping results were much reduced and placed us 3rd lowest in the regional comparator group but in 2019/20 the figures have 
risen again in line with national trends. We will be launching a comms campaign this year and reviewing our enforcement policy to help 
address the rise in numbers. The Council’s spend on public conveniences remains the second highest across the regional comparator group at 
£377,000. Food hygiene in establishments across the District looks healthy with only 17 premises achieving 0-2 stars (4 fewer than last year) 
and 706 premises achieving 3 stars or above (up from 675 last year).  
 
 
 

P
age 71



Achievements 
 The Council issued 84 fixed penalty notices for environmental antisocial behaviour in 2019/20 

 
Delivering on our quality parks and open spaces targets: 
 Green Flag maintained for Ladderedge Country Park 

 
Council spend on parks and open spaces has increased to £939,000 and places the council amongst the middle 20% of councils nationally.    
 
Achievements 
 
 We increased the amount of volunteer days provided across the Staffs Moorlands Countryside sites, reducing our cost of service 

provision and enabling us to do more with our resources 
 John Hall Gardens – successful community partnership working with Rethink and Grow Moorlands 
 In summer 2019 we opened a woodland burial area within the Buxton Road cemetery in Leek. The first burial occurred here in August 

and can accommodate around 300 graves offering an alternative to a formal burial plot 
 

Delivering on our car parking targets: 
 
Contextual Measures:  
 855 PCNs were issued in 2019/20 of which 86.9% were collected 
 35.2% of car park spaces are covered by the Park Mark scheme 
 3.8% of all spaces are allocated as disabled parking bays 

Achievements 

 The resurfacing and relining of 11 car parks and the bus station 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 72



Delivering on our climate change targets: 

The Council declared a climate emergency on 10th July 2019 and committed to work with partners across the district and region towards 
making the Staffordshire Moorlands carbon neutral by 2030. Latest government data shows the district produces 11.8t of CO2 per capita (2018 
figures, published June 2020) compared to 15.5t in 2005.  

Since the declaration, the council has created a new Cabinet post with specific responsibility for driving the Council’s climate change agenda 
and an initial plan has been developed.  

A Climate Change sub-committee has also been 
established, with agreed terms of reference and a work 
programme. Work has been undertaken to organise 
training sessions, secure Council and district data, 
consider key tools to inform and support Council 
targets, identify opportunities across Council service 
areas to take action, and to start to develop joint work 
and partnerships with other local authorities and 
organisations. 

Further actions are planned for 2020/21, including the 
use of a community climate change fund to support 
local initiatives and the eco-schools project. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

P
age 73



Chapter 5: Our Future Priorities 2020-2021 

2019/20 saw the development and adoption of a new Corporate Plan by the Council for the period up to 2023. As such most of the current 
actions remain relevant and have been rolled forward into 2020/21 as well as new priorities that have emerged in response to the coronavirus 
pandemic and the need for new economic and community recovery plans.    

Corporate Plan Aim Rolled forward Priority Actions  New Priority Actions 
Aim 1: Develop a positive 
relationship with communities 
 

Refresh the Council’s Communication Strategy in order to ensure that there is a 
more effective dialogue with residents 
 

Implement the Covid-19 
Community Recovery Plan   

Aim 1: Increased supply of 
good quality affordable 
homes 

Develop a strategy for further development of affordable and specialist 
housing 

 

  

Develop a Private Sector Housing Strategy to improve conditions for 
homeowners and private tenants 
 

Aim 1: Effective support of 
community safety 
arrangements including 
CCTV 

Complete the review of the CCTV system and implement the agreed 
recommendations 

 

Review the Council's community safety arrangements in order to maintain strong 
partnerships with community groups 
 

Aim 1: Provision of sports 
facilities and leisure 
opportunities focused upon 
improving health  

Develop and implement an outdoor leisure facilities improvement plan focused 
around the 'sports village' concept.    
  

 

Review the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy in order to integrate communities 
and sports clubs into the delivery of its objectives. 
 
Develop and implement an indoor leisure facilities improvement plan focused on 
improving the health and wellbeing of residents   
 

Together with partners we will seek to influence the following outcomes: 
 Ensuring effective health, particularly for the elderly 
 Combating illegal money lenders such as loan sharks 
 Reducing crime, the fear of crime and anti-social behaviour 

 

P
age 74



Corporate Plan Aim Rolled forward Priority Actions  New Priority Actions 
Aim 2: More effective use 
of council assets  

Continue to embed good information management practices through the 
ASSURED framework 
 

 

Refresh and implement the Asset Management Plan, including a review of public 
estate, and ensure adequate facilities management arrangements are in place   
 

Aim 2: Services easily 
available and provided right 
first time 

Develop an Access to Services Strategy to ensure that Council services are 
accessible to all 
 
 

 

Aim 2: Effective procurement 
with a focus on local business 
 

Develop a new procurement strategy with a focus on spending money locally 
 

 

Aim 2: A high performing and 
well motivated workforce 
 

Develop a new Organisational Development Strategy to ensure that our 
workforce is developed effectively 
 

 

Aim 2: Effective use of 
resources to ensure value 
for money 

Develop and implement a plan to identify new and innovative ways of 
generating income  

Implement the Covid-19 Financial 
Recovery Plan 

Implement the Council's Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme 
 

Aim 2: Effective use of ICT 
 

Develop a new ICT strategy to enhance and support the delivery of services 
 

Implement the Covid-19 Positive 
Legacy Plan 

Aim 3: Encourage business 
start-ups and enterprise 

Support the development of the former Churnet Works site in Leek 
 
 

 

Aim 3: Encourage and  
develop tourism 
 

Develop a Tourism Strategy to maximise the positive impact to our communities 
 

The action remains but the onus of 
the strategy will now be on 
recovery 

Aim 3: High quality 
development control 

Adopt a new Local Plan – completed sept 2020  

Aim 3: Flourishing town 
centres 

Develop a Master Plan for bringing redundant mills back into use Implement the Covid-19 Economic 
Recovery Plan Support the development of Cornhill and improved rail links 

Implement the Council's growth strategy to bring about the  regeneration 

P
age 75



Corporate Plan Aim Rolled forward Priority Actions  New Priority Actions 
 of towns and rural communities 

Develop and implement plans to improve the public market operations 
 

Together with partners we will seek to influence the following outcomes: 
 Expand the Growth Deal Partnership to provide inward investment 
 Support the Churnet Valley Railway with their plans to bring trains back to Leek 
 Provide bus services which connect our villages with our three market towns for services, shopping and leisure 
 Improve access and traffic flows to our town centre 

 
Aim 4: Effective recycling and 
waste management 
 

Review the Council's waste and recycling arrangements to increase recycling and 
to respond to the emerging new national strategy 
 

 

Aim 4: Car parking 
arrangements that meet 
the needs of residents, 
businesses and visitors 

Develop a new Parking Strategy to ensure that our car parks meet the needs of 
residents and visitors  
 

 

Aim 4: Meeting the 
challenges of climate 
change 

Develop a climate change strategy and an action plan of response to a declared 
climate emergency 
 

 

Aim 4: Provision of high 
quality public amenities, 
clean streets and 
environmental health 

Review the Environmental Enforcement Policy in order to take steps to further 
reduce environmental crime 
 

 

Aim 4: Provision of quality 
parks and open spaces 

Identify and implement an approach to reduce the cost of country parks 
 

 

Develop a plan to improve Brough Park and John Hall Gardens 
 

Together with partners we will seek to influence the following outcomes: 
 Provide waste and recycling centres across the district 
 The provision of accessible on street parking 

 
 

 

P
age 76



References 

The benchmarking data used within this Report has been drawn from the following sources: 

1. Grant Thornton’s Place Analytics online tool 
2. Grant Thornton’s CFO Insights online tool 
3. The LGA’s benchmarking tool – LG Inform 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 77



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDICES 

 

P
age 78



Aim 1: a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live and 
work                      

Increased supply of good quality affordable homes 

The following chart shows the correlation between Housing Benefit costs and New Claims average speed of processing 
against the West Midlands Non-Metropolitan group in 2018-19 using Grant Thornton’s CFO Insight tool. Both costs and 
processing times have increased. Housing Benefit costs have increased from £307k to £489k and the average speed of 
processing has increased from 19 to 23 days. Tamworth, Lichfield and East Staffordshire process new claims faster at a 
similar or lower cost. The council’s performance in 2019/20 was vastly improved with a speed of just 15 days. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 79



This chart shows the correlation between Housing Benefit costs and Change in Circumstances average speed of processing 
against the group. In 2018-19, both costs and processing times have increased. Processing times have increased from 7 to 
8 days and the rank has fallen from 8th to 11th out of 15. Tamworth, Lichfield and East Staffordshire process change of 
circumstances faster at a similar or lower cost. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 80



5

16
15

21

15

12 12 12
11 11

0

5

10

15

20

25

 2009 -
2010

 2010 -
2011

 2011 -
2012

2012 -
2013

2013 -
2014

 2014 -
2015

 2015 -
2016

 2016 -
2017

 2017 -
2018

2018 -
2019

This time series shows changes in the number of households in temporary accommodation in Staffordshire Moorlands 
since 2009.  Overall there has been an increase of 120% between Mar 2009-Mar 2019 (2009: 5 households, 2019: 11 
households) but the figure remains relatively low and stable. The mean for All English District Authorities at the end of Q3 
2019/20 was 55 households. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 81



Effective support of community safety arrangements including CCTV 

The chart below shows the cost of CCTV compared to the total number of crimes (percentile) for Staffordshire Moorlands 
against the West Midlands group 2018-19. Costs have increased from £154,000 to £183,000 (rank has increased from 10th 
to 6th highest spend out of a group of 16) and the total number of crimes are low at 4,671 (10th lowest out of a group of 
11). North Warwickshire spent less on CCTV and has fewer crimes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 82



Provision of sports facilities and leisure opportunities focused upon improving health 

This map shows which quintile Staffordshire Moorlands falls into for sport and recreational facilities (including golf) (RO) 
£000’s for all English districts in 2018-19. Compared to the West Midlands Group, Staffordshire Moorlands rank has 
increased from 8th to 6th highest spend (out of a group of 19) but costs have decreased from £722k to £706k. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 83



This bar chart shows the proportion of the population in Staffordshire Moorlands who participate in 150+ minutes of 
exercise per week compared to other council areas in Staffordshire (Nov 18-19 Sport England). Staffordshire Moorlands 
residents participating in 150+ minutes of exercise per week have increased from 56.7% in Nov 17-18 to 64.9%. The 
Staffordshire average is 61.2 %.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 84



This map shows spend per head of population on sports and recreation facilities for all English districts (RO, £/head 2018-
19) and shows that Staffordshire Moorlands sit in the top 40% for unit spend on sports and recreational facilities at £7.18 
per head, ranked 59 out of 200 areas, a slight decrease from £7.33, ranked 55  in 2017-18.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 85



Aim 2: To use resources effectively and provide value for money  

Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money  

The map below has been produced using Grant Thornton’s CFoI analytical tool and shows that Staffordshire Moorlands 
has a high rate of Council Tax collection at 98.66%, sitting within the top 20% of districts nationally. In 2017/18, the rate of 
98.6% sat in the top 40%. The cost of Council Tax Collection is low compared to the group, 131st out of 200 areas at 
£378,000 but represents an increase from £237,000 in 2017-18.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 86



This map shows Non-Domestic rate collection across all English districts. Staffordshire Moorlands has a high rate of 
collection at 99.13%, sitting within the top 40% of districts nationally (rounding has just prevented this from being in the 
top 20%). This is an improvement compared to 2017/18 when it sat in the mid 20%. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 87



Ensure our services are easily available to all our residents in the appropriate channels and 
provided ‘right first time’  

The table below has been produced using LG Inform and shows the number of formal complaints from 2018/19 Q4 to 
2019/20 Q3 for Staffordshire Moorlands and Staffordshire Moorlands CIPFA nearest neighbours. 

Number of formal complaints received (from 2018/19 Q4 to 2019/20 Q3 (Pre-release)) for Staffordshire Moorlands 
& Staffordshire Moorlands CIPFA nearest neighbours 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 88



This map shows the total number of Ombudsman complaints received by English Districts in 2018-19. The Staffordshire 
Moorlands score of 5 is low compared to the national context, sitting within the bottom 20% of all districts. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 89



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Staffordshire
Moorlands

Redditch Bromsgrove Wychavon Stratford-on-Avon Nuneaton and
Bedworth

Tamworth North Warwickshire Rugby

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Staffordshire Moorlands Wychavon Stratford-on-Avon Nuneaton and Bedworth Tamworth North Warwickshire Rugby

Short term days Long term days

A high performing and well motivated workforce  

The charts below compare the average sickness absence days per employee in Staffordshire Moorlands 2018/19 against 
other areas in the West Midlands and is generated using LG Inform tools. Staffordshire Moorlands had an average of 4.48 
days sickness absence per FTE. The mean for the West Midlands was 7.8 days. The second chart shows the short-term and 
long-term days. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 90



Aim 3: create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns 
and villages  

Encourage business start-ups and enterprises 

This time series demonstrates changes in business formation rate from 2010-2018. The rate of new businesses as a 
proportion of total business stock had increased from 7.53% in 2010 to 11.46% in 2013 but has fallen to 8.84% in 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 91



This bar chart shows the Staffordshire Moorlands new business formation rate % for 2018 compared to other authorities 
in the county. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 92



Encourage and develop tourism 

This map shows the total spend on tourism (RO £000’s 2018-19) across all English districts. Staffordshire Moorlands sits in 
the top 40% of districts nationally, spending £145,000 on tourism. Spend in 2017-18 £206,00 which sat in the top 20%. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 93



High quality development and building control with an ‘open for business’ approach 

This bar chart was produced using LG Inform tools and shows the % of planning applications processed within 13 weeks or 
agreed time for major developments in 2018/19 compared to local authority districts within the West Midlands. 
Staffordshire Moorlands processed 100% of major applications within 13 weeks, no change from 2017-18. The mean for 
the West Midlands was 90%. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 94



This bar chart was produced using LG Inform tools and shows the % of planning applications processed within 8 weeks or 
agreed time for minor developments in 2018/19 compared to local authority districts within the West Midlands. 
Staffordshire Moorlands processed 92% of minor applications within 8 weeks compared to 90% in 2017-18. The mean for 
the West Midlands was 84%. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 95



This bar chart was produced using LG Inform tools and shows the % of planning applications processed within 8 weeks or 
agreed time for other developments in 2018/19 compared to local authority districts within the West Midlands. 
Staffordshire Moorlands processed 95% of other applications within 8 weeks, no change from 2017-18. The mean for the 
West Midlands was 90%. 

 

 

 

 

. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 96



The map below shows the spend on development control (RO) £000’s 2018-19 across all English districts. Staffordshire 
Moorlands spent £362,000 on development control, which places it in the middle quintile compared to all districts 
nationally. Spend in 2017-18 was £180,000 which sat in the lowest 40%.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 97



Aim 4: To protect and improve the environment and respond to the  
Climate emergency 
Effective recycling and waste management 

This line chart shows the proportion of household waste that is sent for reuse, recycling or composting from 2009-2019. 
Within Staffordshire Moorlands, the recycling rate has decreased from 61.84% in 2009 to 56% in 2018-19 but is still amongst 
the top 20% nationally. Other areas in the top quintile have achieved between 51.92% and 63.3%.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

P
age 98



This bar chart shows the residual household waste per household in kilograms (2018-19) for Staffordshire Moorlands 
compared to the 10 nearest neighbours within the West Midlands Group. Staffordshire Moorlands had 390.5kg of residual 
waste per household, the lowest amount within this group was Warwick with 370.10kg. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 99



The map shows the unit spend on Waste Collection (RO, £/dwelling 2018-19) across all English districts. Staffordshire 
Moorlands has a unit spend of £35.23 and sits within the top 40% of all districts nationally. In 2017-18 the unit spend of 
£55.86 sat in the top 20%. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 100



The map shows the unit spend on Recycling (RO, £/dwelling 2018-19) across all English districts. Staffordshire Moorlands 
has a unit spend of £23.21 and sits within the top 40% of all districts nationally. In 2017-18 the unit spend of (£4.74) sat in 
the lowest 20%. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 101



This scatter chart shows the correlation between the waste collection RO (£000’s) and the kg of residual waste per 
household. Warwick has a slightly lower amount of residual waste, but at a much lower cost. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 102



This scatter chart shows the correlation between the recycling RO (£000’s) and the % of household waste sent for reuse, 
recycling or composting. Warwick have similar recycling rates but their costs are lower. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 103



Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health 

The table shows the number of fly tipping incidents in 2018-19 compared to the 10 nearest neighbours from the West Midlands 
Group. Compared to the whole West Midlands, Staffordshire Moorlands were ranked 17th lowest (out of 19) with 295 incidents, 
this compares favourably to 2017-18 when they were ranked 15th lowest with 365 incidents. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 104



This chart shows the cost (in £ 000’s) of Public Conveniences (RO) compared to the 10 nearest neighbours from the West 
Midlands group in 2018-19. Staffordshire Moorlands have the 2nd highest spend in the group at £377,000, an increase compared 
to £289,000 in 2017-18.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 105



Provision of quality parks and open spaces 

This map shows the cost of open spaces (RO) £000’s 2018-19 across all English districts. Staffordshire Moorlands are ranked 91st 
out of 200 areas at £939,000 and sit in the mid quintile of all districts nationally. In 2017-18 Staffordshire Moorlands were ranked 
93rd with a spend of £892,000. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 106



Meeting the challenges of climate change 

This map shows the Environmental Initiatives RO in 2018-19 across all English districts. This value refers to net current 
expenditure for environmental education, grants related to environmental initiatives and individual environmental projects. 
Staffordshire Moorlands are ranked 77th out of 200 areas with £13,000 and sit in the second quartile. This is a decrease from 
£29,000 in 2017-18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 107



This map shows CO2 per capita emissions 2018 in the context of All Local Authority Districts in the West Midlands using LG Inform 
Tools. The Staffordshire Moorlands score was 11.8 CO2 emissions per capita which is ranked 3rd in the group. The lowest was 
Worcester at 3.4. 

 
 

P
age 108



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet

1 December 2020

Appendices Attached
 Appendix A (2020/21 – Second Quarter (Financial Report)
 Appendix B (2020/21 – Second Quarter (Procurement Report) 
 Appendix C (2020/21 – Second Quarter (Performance Report)
 Appendix D (2020/21 – Second Quarter (Write Offs) CONFIDENTIAL

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Council’s overall 
performance and financial position for the period ended 30th September (“Second 
Quarter 2020/21”).

2. Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that the Cabinet: 
 Note the Second Quarter 2020/21 financial, procurement and performance 

position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this 
covering report.

 Approve the write offs set out in Appendix D.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report essentially summarises the Council’s financial, procurement and 
performance position after considering service activity up to the end of the Second 
Quarter (i.e. 30th September 2020). 

3.2 Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B (Procurement) 
and Appendix C (Performance). 

TITLE: Second Quarter Financial, Procurement and 
Performance Review 2020/21

PORTFOLIO HOLDER Cllr Sybil Ralphs – Council Leader SMDC

CONTACT OFFICERS: Keith Pointon – Interim Head of Finance
Vanessa Higgins – Information Business 
Partner 

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 109

Agenda Item 8.3



3.3 The position can be summarised as follows:

Subject Headline Reference
Finance The Finance headlines for the Second Quarter are:

Performance against Budget
 At the Second Quarter stage the General Fund projected outturn for 

2020/21 is an overspend of £106,130.  
Efficiency Programme
 At Quarter Two £137,000 in savings have been taken against the 

2020/21 general fund efficiency target of £519,000. It is anticipated 
that there will be a £380,000 shortfall in the year.

Capital Programme
 The revised Capital Programme budget for 2020/21 is 6.67 million 

including the carry forward of capital underspends from 2019/20.  
The projected outturn for the year is £2.91million; a variance of £3.76 
million – mostly in respect of programme slippage due to Covid19.

Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 30 September 2020 totalled £16.3 million. 

The Ascent loan and debenture currently stands at £19 million.
 Council borrowing at 30 September 2020 is forecast to total £16 

million by the year end (£14m relates to the Ascent loan)
 The Council’s net interest income receipts is projected as a £43,700 

surplus above budget.
Revenue Collection
 55.60% of Council Tax was collected by 30 September 2020 

compared to 56.34% for the same period last year.
 50.32% of Business Rates was collected by 30 September 2020 

compared with 55.57% for the same period last year.
 At the end of the Second Quarter debt that was over 60 days old 

was £101,700 which compares with £67,310 at 30 September 2019 

Appendix A

Procurement The Procurement headlines for the Second Quarter are:
 9 procurement activities were completed 
 The Procurement forward plan includes 53 procurement activities for 

completion in 2020/21 (either SMDC only or joint)
 At the 30 September 2020, 76% of procurement activity undertaken 

was on the forward plan and the Council paid 97% of its invoices 
within 30 days during the year



Appendix B 

Performance The Performance headlines for the Second Quarter are:
 83% of the key performance indicators on track (40% of which are 

better than the previous year)
 The Council received 23 complaints, 70 comments and 53 

compliments
 Priority Actions - 7 green, 2 completed, 1 red rated, remainder yet to 

commence

Appendix C

4.      How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the effective 
management of performance and financial resources, which is the subject of this 
report.

Page 110



5.      Options and Analysis

5.1 Detailed Analysis is contained within the main body of the Report.

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2 Workforce
None.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality 
and Diversity policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the 
report.

6.5 Legal
None.

16.6 Climate Change
None.

6.7   External Consultation
  None.

6.8          Risk A    Risk  Assessment
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are 
identified and explained in the financial report attached at Appendix A.

CLAIRE HAZELDENE
Acting Director (Finance & Customer Services)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Report appendices A-C Keith Pointon
01538 395400 Ext. 4193
Vanessa Higgins 
01538 395400 Ext. 4195

6.4

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



1

 

APPENDIX A

2020/21

Second Quarter 
 Financial 

Review

 

Page 113



2

1.      Background and Introduction

1.1. In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and 
recommended good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to 
members. This is the second report for 2020/21.

1.2. The report summarises overall financial performance for 2020/21 with 
particular emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council. 
Specific considerations are as follows:

 General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers budgetary 
performance on the General Account by looking at variations in income 
and expenditure and the funding received by the Council. 

 Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 3) – considers 
progress in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation savings forecast 
for 2020/21. 

 Alliance Environmental Services (Section 4) – highlights the 
performance of the Council’s Joint Venture Company providing Waste 
and Fleet services.

 Capital Programme (Section 5) – provides an update to Members on 
progress against the Council’s capital plan 

 Treasury Management (Section 6) – sets out the key statistics in 
terms of investments and borrowings;

 Revenue Collection (Section 7) – considers progress-to-date in 
collecting the Council Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debts.

Page 114



3

2. General Fund Revenue Account

2.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the 
General Fund Revenue Account against budget by setting out variations 
in income and expenditure and funding received by the Council. 

Service (with staff*) 2020/21
Budget

Expected 
Outturn 
2020/21

Variance
Contribution 
to / (Use of) 
Earmarked 
Reserves

Net Variance

 £ £ £ £ £
Alliance Leadership Team 51,780 41,930 (9,850) - (9,850)
Audit 9,940 7,110 (2,830) - (2,830)
ICT 694,760 684,480 (10,280) - (10,280)
Human Resources 52,360 52,260 (100) - (100)
Member Services 308,800 270,300 (38,500) - (38,500)
Property Services 531,870 954,870 423,000 - 423,000
Benefits (218,610) (191,710) 26,900 (41,500) (14,600)
Planning Applications (342,460) (340,550) 1,910 - 1,910
Building Control 36,510 (4,140) (40,650) - (40,650)
Customer Services 106,300 75,440 (30,860) - (30,860)
Legal Services 64,520 44,520 (20,000) - (20,000)
Electoral Services 97,790 81,450 (16,340) - (16,340)
Licensing and Land Charges (210,960) (184,200) 26,760 - 26,760
Regeneration 630 82,840 82,210 (5,500) 76,710
Communities and Cultural 171,680 178,680 7,000 - 7,000
Housing Strategy 43,110 43,110 - - -
Transformation 6,760 4,370 (2,390) - (2,390)
Community Safety and Enforcement 159,550 152,550 (7,000) - (7,000)
Finance Income & Procurement (172,710) 82,780 255,490 - 255,490
Corporate Finance* 5,818,310 6,367,750 549,440 - 549,440
Waste Collection 1,810,320 1,920,750 110,430 - 110,430
Street Scene 387,220 379,070 (8,150) - (8,150)
Leisure Services 181,210 906,560 725,350 - 725,350
Horticulture 689,780 670,750 (19,030) (5,200) (24,230)
Environmental Health (24,670) (18,430) 6,240 - 6,240
      
Net Total of Services 10,253,790 12,262,540 2,008,750  1,956,550
      
Net Interest (401,170) (444,870) (43,700)  (43,700)
 9,852,620    11,817,670 1,965,050 (52,200) 1,912,850
Funding  
- external (10,107,180) (14,633,710) (4,526,530) 4,521,710 (4,820)
- reserves contribution to/(from)     
     general contingency 276,010 276,010 -  -
     use of carry forward from 19/20 (13,750) (13,750) - -
     earmarked (7,700) (52,200) (44,500) 52,200 7,700

- covid19 support (1,809,600) (1,809,600) (1,809,600)
  
Projected (Surplus)/Deficit - (4,415,580) (4,415,580) 4,521,710 106,130
    

* Staff budgets are currently budgeted within Corporate Finance.

Page 115



4

2.2. A revenue budget of £9,838,870 was set for 2020/21. In accordance with 
Financial Procedure Rules, the roll forward of £13,750 in unused budgets from 
2019/20 has been authorised.

Horticulture (£13,750): in respect of the playground works to be completed in 
2020/21

This brings the 2020/21 budget to £9,852,620

2.3.  The table above shows how this budget has been allocated to services.

2.4. The Q2 projected outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for the year is 
£9,958,750. This represents a projected deficit for the year of £106,130.  

2.5. There are no areas of significant underspend (>£50,000):

2.6. There are five areas of significant overspend (>£50,000):

 Property (£423,000 overspend); Covid-19 has impacted this service 
significantly.  Firstly car parking, where a significant reduction in income is 
forecast to produce a net £259,000 shortfall and Public Conveniences with 
additional cleaning costs resulting in a £35,000 overspend.  Industrial Unit 
vacancies are higher than anticipated, possibly an indirect effect of Covid 
19, leading to a £21,000 shortfall in income. The protracted negotiation of a 
replacement contract for property maintenance could potentially add 
approximately £100,000 to in-year costs (discussions are still taking place 
with Derbyshire County Council in respect of this).  

 Finance Income and Procurement (£255,490 overspend); Covid-19 has 
significantly impacted the Recovery service with income generated from 
summons activity predicted to be some £200,000 below original 
expectations. Further budget pressure in the region of £70,000 is predicted 
in local taxation from the level of spending on external services to support 
billing processes.  This has been exacerbated to a degree by the heavy 
involvement of staff in administering the Covid-19 business support grants 
– Government funding has been received to partially offset this.

 Corporate Finance (£549,440 overspend); Covid-19 has significantly 
impacted the level of savings achievable in the current year Efficiency 
Programme, especially those savings premised on growing fees and 
charges, and realising additional income streams. The assumption at this 
stage is that there will be a shortfall in savings of £380,000.  A heightened 
risk remains surrounding the savings taken in 2019/20 arising out of the 
council’s Leisure Management contract. The costs associated with 
delivering the Efficiency Programme and the anticipated savings in the 
establishment is collectively estimated to be in the region of £60,000. The 
in-year Efficiency Plan savings situation will be kept under review over the 
coming months and will be incorporated into the revision of the Medium 
Term Financial Plan. While Covid 19 related communication and mitigation 
initiatives account for £46,000 of unbudgeted spend there is also an 
anticipated cumulative £62,000 overspend against a number of existing 
headings.

Page 116



5

 Waste Collection (£110,430 overspend); Covid-19 has had both a 
negative and positive impact on the service .  Additional operating costs 
have resulted from social distancing and cleansing requirements while 
Trade Waste income has reduced during periods of lockdown.  There has 
however been an increase in recycling volumes during the pandemic 
restrictions which has generated increased income to partially offset the 
negative effects of Covid 19.

 Leisure (£725,350 overspend); The pandemic has seen the closure and 
curtailment of leisure facilities and activities significantly impacting the 
council’s leisure contractor. At present, subject to the authority continuing to 
support the contractor the additional cost consequence to the council is 
anticipated in the region of £725,000. 

   
2.7. The £43,700 underspend on net interest costs is detailed in section 6.

2.8. The level of funding anticipated for the year is £49,320 above that budgeted due 
to the following:

External Funding: (£4,526,530)

 Business Rates Retention (£4,526,530 additional funding):
o The Council expects to receive £4,528,260 in additional S31 grants in 

the year following the announcement and award of Extended Retail 
Relief of 100% (33% was forecast in the budget based on the best 
knowledge at the time); and Nursery Discount (which was not 
anticipated in the budget). Both of these increases to relief were 
announced by the government in response to the Covid-19 situation. 
Accounting practice dictates that these grants are treated as general 
fund revenue in the year. However, the extended reliefs impact the 
Collection Fund by increasing the deficit in the year, which will need 
to be distributed in future years, therefore this additional funding 
needs to be earmarked to accommodate this and cannot be used to 
support other services.

o This increase in Business Rates Retention Funding is to forecast to 
be slightly offset by a small increase in net levy payable on growth to 
the Staffordshire Business Rates Pool of £1,730 compared to the 
budgeted amount.

Contribution to Reserves: (£4,477,210)

 Earmarked Reserves (£44,500 additional usage):
o Earmarked reserves are created to match available funding with 

future projects and activities.  Often it is not possible to anticipate 
when eligible spend will occur and so as the year progresses services 
will identify projects and schemes where earmarked reserves can be 
applied. To date across the authority usage amounts to £44,500 more 
than nominally anticipated at the beginning of the year.

o Business Rates earmarked reserve of £4,521,710 created to match 
S31 grant income received to the future needs of the Collection Fund.

Page 117



6

Covid 19 funding (£1,809,600)

In response to the financial strain placed on local authorities by the pandemic the 
Government is providing financial support in the form of grants towards 
exceptional costs and compensation for loss of income.  It is anticipated that this 
support will amount to £1,809,600.

Exceptional Costs Support: (£1,551,991)

 General Support (£1,279,832 funding):
The Council has received these monies to support its general 
activities as impacted by the pandemic. 

 Discretionary Grants Administration (£130,000 funding):
This additional grant relates to the costs incurred administering the 
allocation of discretionary grants to Covid impacted businesses in the 
District.

 Enforcement Grant (£39,516 funding):
This funding relates to the costs incurred enforcing lock down 
requirements in the District.

 Isolation Grants Administration (£24,836 funding):
This funding relates to the costs incurred administering the allocation 
of Isolation grants to Covid impacted individuals in the District.

 Track and Trace (£77,807 funding):
This funding from the County Council is towards the Council’s 
responsibilities for local track and trace.

Compensation for loss of income: (£257,609)

 Loss of Income (£257,609 funding):
Councils have been promised the facility to claim for up to 75% of net 
losses against budget for income streams that satisfy set criteria.  
Based on a prudent interpretation of the guidance, £257,609 is 
currently anticipated in funding.

3. Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme

3.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s 
Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2020/21.

3.2. The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan (approved in February 2019) 
included the four-year (2017/18 – 2020/21) Efficiency and Rationalisation 
Strategy targeting savings of £3.14 million.  This was required to balance the 
forecast budget deficit position of £2.7m and also the carry forward of 
unachieved efficiencies from 2016/17 of £0.4m.

3.3. The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy is premised on the need to both 
reduce expenditure and increase income. The need to grow income is now 
more of a priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing. 
The strategy has been developed with the underlying principles of protecting 
frontline service delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to enable 
the Council to ensure that its service spending is determined by the 
established priorities set out in the Corporate Plan.

Page 118



7

3.4. The 2020/21 budget was set in February 2020 with the assumption of 
£702,000 of savings in the year.  This figure comprised £1,175,000 from the 
original strategy reduced by an expected £473,000 over-achievement of 
savings against the 2019/20 target.  In the event a further £183,000 of savings 
were realised in quarter 4 of 2019/20, reducing the amount to be achieved in 
2020/21 to £519,000.  The major focus of the savings programme in 2020/21 
being on growth, income generation and major procurements.

3.5. At the end of Quarter Two, £137,000 of savings have been taken against the 
20/21 efficiency target.

3.6. The current situation, regarding the on-going effect of the Covid-19 pandemic, 
places into doubt some of the savings taken out of the budget during 2019/20; 
particularly those relating to the Leisure Services contract. There is also a 
significant risk that the current year savings will not be achieved in full, 
particularly those relating to growing fees and charges and income generation. 
At this stage it is assumed that there will be a shortfall in savings of £380,000. 
This will continue to be monitored over the next few months as the situation 
develops.

3.7. The longer-term effect of this will feature as part of the updated 2021/22 – 
2024/25 Medium Term Financial Plan.

3.8. The Authority carries a longstanding reserve earmarked to support the 
Efficiency Strategy, which can be drawn on to offset one-off costs of delivering 
the efficiency programme, such as redundancy costs. The reserve currently 
stands at £493,000. It has not been necessary to draw on this reserve in 
previous years, so it remains intact to underwrite performance against future 
savings targets in the Efficiency Programme.

4. Alliance Environmental Services

4.1. Alliance Environmental Services Ltd (AES) delivers waste, fleet, street 
cleansing and grounds maintenance services to both Staffordshire Moorlands 
District and High Peak Borough Councils. The Councils are shareholders of the 
company along with ANSA, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire East 
Council. 

4.2. AES’s financial performance and impact on this Council’s budget is summarised 
below:

2020-21 £
  AES Contract budget 4,473,920
  Management fee 4,692,510
Allocation of AES efficiency (125,460)
Contract pressures 30,890
Covid-19 costs 79,270
Total management fee payable 4,677,210
Allocation of Joint Operation profit (93,130)
Net total 4,584,080
  Variance to budget 110,160

Page 119



8

4.3. The AES business plan for all services delivered to the Council during 2020/21 
includes a budgeted management fee of £4,692,510. The Council’s share of the 
total AES revised efficiency target for 2020/21 of £125,460 is repayable to the 
Council and is allocated against the management fee costs.

4.4. Contract pressures totalling £30,890 are forecast at quarter 2; the majority of 
which relate to the pay award for 2020-21 which was budgeted at 2.00%, but 
was agreed at 2.75%. Additional costs of £79,270 are also anticipated as a 
result of the Covid-19 outbreak; these relate to provision of cleaning products, 
PPE and additional agency costs.

4.5. Under accounting standards, AES’s financial performance is incorporated in to 
the Councils’ single entity statements as a ‘Joint Operation’ as opposed to 
separate group accounts being reported.  The profit is therefore apportioned 
between the two Councils and the respective services in line with the input of 
budgeted resources from each department. The Council’s share of the forecast 
profit at the end of quarter 2 is £93,130 and is offset against the management 
fee costs.

5.       Capital Programme 

5.1. This section of the report provides an update to members on the Council’s 
Capital Programme.

5.2. The table below shows a high level (service) summary of the General Fund 
Capital Programme position at 30th September 2020. Further detail – on a 
scheme by scheme basis – is contained in Annex A:

Service
2020/21 

Approved 
Budget 

Q2 Changes 
2020/21 
Revised  
Budget

Expected 
Outturn 
2020/21

Expected 
Variance 
2020/21

 £ £ £ £ £
Housing Standards 1,785,320                  -   1,785,320 515,000    (1,270,320) 
Property Services 1,300,900                  -   1,300,900 667,300       (633,600) 
ICT 140,060           68,450 208,510 116,610         (91,900) 
Leisure Services 50,000                  -   50,000 -         (50,000) 
Fleet Management 2,582,070                  -   2,582,070 1,134,760 (1,447,310)
CCTV 275,100                  -   275,100 275,100                  -   
Regeneration 46,850                  -   46,850 26,850         (20,000) 
Horticulture 421,920                  -   421,920 170,000       (251,920) 
Total 6,602,220           68,450 6,670,670 2,905,620    (3,765,050) 
Funding:-      
External  Contributions 1,767,710                  -   1,767,710 520,000    (1,247,710) 
Capital Receipts 93,000                  -   93,000 50,000         (43,000) 
Capital Reserves 214,900                  -   214,900 400,000         185,100 
Earmarked Reserves 220,850                  -   220,850 220,850                  -   
Borrowing 4,305,760 68,450 4,374,210 1,714,770    (2,659,440) 
Total 6,602,220 68,450 6,670,670 2,905,620    (3,765,050) 

Page 120



9

5.3. The 2020/21 General Fund Capital Budget was approved by Members in 
February 2020 as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan (£6,005,380); and 
then updated in July (£596,840 – relating to carry forwards from 2019/20); a 
new project  was approval during the second quarter of £68,450  resulting in a 
revised overall capital programme 2020-21 of  £6,670,670

5.4 The changes made to the capital programme since approval in February 
are as follows:- 

 The carry forward of 2019-20 capital budget variances as a result of 
projects which were either behind schedule or had progressed quicker 
than expected in the year 

 ICT  New Project £68,450 – approval was granted by Cabinet Delegated 
Decision on 18th September for the purchase of the Civica Digital 
Transformation Suite

5.5 The Covid-19 out-break has contributed to delays in delivery of the Capital 
Programme. At this stage, a £3,765,050 underspend is projected. The slippage 
has been re-profiled in the latest Medium Term Financial Plan Review to reflect 
a more realistic timing of capital expenditure in the current circumstances.

5.6  In addition to operational issues caused by the impact of  Covid-19, the actual  
demand for Disabled Facilities is forecast to be lower than Government support 
received towards the grant programme;  a total underspend of £1,240,320 is 
anticipated, this surplus is ring-fenced and will be drawn down as required.

5.7 Overall capital funding which will be applied to the 2020/21 Capital Programme 
is lower than forecast, reflecting the revised timing of capital spend, hence a 
reduced borrowing requirement of £2,659,440 against the revised budget.

6. Treasury Management

6.1. This section of the report sets out the key treasury management statistics in 
relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a 
high level treasury management summary.  The Audit and Accounts Committee 
receives detailed operational updates on treasury management.

Investments

6.2. Cash Investments held on the 30th September 2020 totalled £16.3million. 
Interest earned on these investments during quarters 1 & 2 totalled £28,710 and 
the average level of funds available for investment was £17.1million.

6.3. The Council budgeted to receive £88,510 in investment income in 2020/21. A 
shortfall of £48,720 is anticipated against this budget is due to falling interest 
rates following the Bank of England base rate reduction to 0.10% in March 2020.

Ascent Joint Venture 

6.4. The Council has a debenture of £5million paying 2% and loan of £14million 
paying an average 3.61% with Ascent, the joint venture company established 
to deliver affordable housing across the District.

Page 121



10

6.5. The investment income budget included £100,000 income from the debenture 
and £546,910 from the loan. The debenture interest is on target, while a small 
shortfall of £40,410 is forecast against the loan interest income budget due to 
lower PWLB rates on the tranche roll dates that expected at budget setting 
stage.  

6.6. A report was submitted to Cabinet on 18th June 2019 (exempt by the virtue of 
paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972) 
reviewing the Ascent Business Plan and Delivery Model. Following this report 
the current expectation is that the original Loan and Debenture will be returned 
to the Council from Ascent and a new Loan arrangement direct to Your Housing 
is proposed. The outcome of this may impact the interest income outturn.

     Borrowing

6.7. External debt is forecast to be £16million by the end of the year, an increase of 
£6million from the opening external debt balance of £10million. £14milion funds 
the Ascent loan; and £2million other general fund capital expenditure. This 
approach ensures that cash flow is available for liquidity as required due to the 
uncertainty surrounding Covid expenditure and reduced revenue income. It also 
takes advantage of the extremely cheap funding available in the current climate 
from other local authorities. The Council budgeted to incur £332,730 in interest 
charges in 2020/21. An underspend of £132,830 is anticipated against the 
budget due to falling interest rates.

7. Revenue Collection

7.1. This section of the report details progress to date in collecting the Council Tax, 
Business Rates and Sundry Debt.

7.2. The Q2 collection rate was as follows:

 Council Tax – 55.60% of Council Tax was collected by 30th September 
2020, compared to 56.34% for the same period last year.

o The effects of Covid-19 on collection rates are being monitored. 
The variance in the collection of Council Tax appears to be 
largely due to the delay in the commencement of recovery action 
and/ or inability to pay as opposed to deferred payment plans;

 Business Rates – 50.32% of Council Tax was collected by 30th September 
2020, compared to 55.57% for the same period last year.

o An analysis of the 15 NNDR accounts with the highest Rateable 
Values indicates that deferred payment plans account for the 
majority of the variance in collection rates and this will unwind 
over the year assuming businesses can maintain their deferred 
plans when they commence. 

7.3 At the end of Quarter Two the value of sundry debt that was over 60 days old 
was £101,700 which compares with £67,310 at 30th September 2019.

Page 122



11

ANNEX A

Capital Programme Update 30th September 2020

Capital Schemes
2020/21 

Approved 
Budget 

Q2Changes 
2020/21 
Revised  
Budget

Expected 
Outturn 
2020/21

Expected 
Variance 
2020/21

 £ £ £ £ £

Housing Standards      
Private Sector Grants 1,755,320  1,755,320 515,000 (1,240,320)
Landlord Accreditation Scheme 30,000              -   30,000              -   (30,000)

Total Environmental Health 1,785,320 0 1,785,320 515,000 (1,270,320) 
Property Services      
Asset Management Plan 1,300,900              -   1,300,900 667,300 (633,600)

 Total Property 1,300,900              -   1,300,900 667,300    (633,600) 
ICT 140,060 68,450 208,510 116,610      (91,900) 

 Total ICT 140,060       68,450 208,510 116,610      (91,900) 
Leisure Services      
Sports - Small Schemes         50,000              -        50,000              -        (50,000) 

Total Leisure Services         50,000              -        50,000              -        (50,000) 
     

Vehicle & Plant Purchase 2,582,070              -   2,582,070 1,134,760 (1,447,310)
Fleet Management 2,582,070              -   2,582,070 1,134,760 (1,447,310) 

CCTV - Upgrade 275,100              -   
    

275,100 275,100               -   
CCTV 275,100              -   275,100 275,100               -   

Regeneration      
Moorlands Partnership Grants 46,850              -   46,850 26,850 (20,000)

Total Regeneration 46,850              -   46,850 26,850      (20,000) 
Horticulture      
Brough Park Improvements 421,920              -   421,920 170,000 (251,920)

Total Horticulture 421,920              -   421,920 170,000    (251,920) 
      

Total Programme 6,602,220       68,450 6,670,670 2,905,620 (3,765,050) 

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

2020/21

Second Quarter
 Procurement 

Review

Page 125



1. Introduction

1.1 A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy is being met from Procurement activity which was agreed 
by Full Council in February 2017.

1.2 The current Procurement Strategy was developed to ensure that its objectives linked 
closely with the Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and objectives.  The key 
actions included, delivery of cashable savings, development of a professional 
Procurement unit, updated Procurement Rules to support transparency and the 
implementation of electronic tendering processes and procurement systems.

1.3 The Procurement Strategy is now due for updating and is scheduled for presentation 
during 2020 initially as an Information Digest report to obtain Member feedback prior 
to final approval.  The revised strategy will focus on the following key objectives to 
support the aims of the Council’s Corporate plan:

 Delivering Value for Money
 Commercial focus and effective Contract Management
 Maintaining Transparency and Ethical practices through effective leadership
 Promoting Responsible and Sustainable Procurement 
 Supporting the Local Economy and Business Growth
 Delivering Social Value (CSR) through our Contracts

2. Second Quarter Completed Procurements

2.1 The activity supported by the procurement function during the second quarter July – 
September 2020 is summarised below:

First Quarter  High Value 
(> £181,000)

Low Value    
(< £181,000)

Total

SMDC Only - 3 3
JOINT (SM/HP) 1 5 6
TOTAL 1 8 9

2.2 Annex A provides details of the 9 procurements exercises reviewed and completed 
during Quarter two.

3. 2020/21 Procurement Forward Plan

3.1 The table below details the number of exercises which fall into either low or high 
value (profiled over full contract term) scheduled for completion or starting in 
2020/21.

2020/21

Activity

High Value 

(> £181,000k)

 Low Value

 (< £181,000k)
Total

SMDC 3 26 29
JOINT (SM/HP) 5 19 24
TOTAL 8 45 53

Page 126



In addition to the above, there are 128 listed entries brought forward from previous 
years (for review and completion for both HPBC and SMDC combined). 

3.2 Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity that is scheduled for 
delivery in 2020/21 includes:-

 IT Managed Service Support Contract
 Facilities Management and Building Condition Surveys
 Supporting delivery of the Fleet Replacement Strategy
 Car Parks Strategy 
 Brough Park Play and Recreational improvements

4. Procurement Performance

4.1 This section reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement activity and 
the payment of suppliers.

4.2 Performance for the second quarter is highlighted below:-

Performance Indicator Target
Performance at 
30th September 

2020
% of Alliance Procurement 
Activity on Forward Plan 65% 76%

Annual contract spend as % 
of gross expenditure budget 89% 91%

% Of invoices paid within 30 
days 96% 97%

  

4.3 For 2020/2021 additional new performance indicators have been introduced, these 
are currently being measured to establish targets to implement for 2021/2022.
 % of EOI (expressions of interest) that come from businesses within the local 

area (over £5,000)
 % of Contracts awarded to local suppliers following submission of EOI

(over £5,000)
 Supplier (Creditor) spend within the local area as a % of total spend

Page 127



ANNEX A

Second Quarter Procurement Activity Completed - SMDC

Contract Title Brief contract 
description

Recurring 
or One Off 

Service Area Procedure Award Detail Term 
(years)

 Total 
Contract 
Value £

Surfacing Path 
repair at 
Ladderedge 
county park

Minor works contract One Off Service 
Commissioning

Open 
request for 
Quotations

County 
Grounds

n/a 4,500

Viability Study – 
The Green 
Cheadle

Consultancy 
appointment

One Off Development 
Control 

Quotation Keppie 
Massey

6-8 
wks

1,850

The following items were removed or deferred from the Procurement work plan for 20/21

Purchase of outdoor tables for Market stalls Not procured

Page 128



Second Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – JOINT (HPBC & SMDC)

Contract Title Brief contract description Recurring 
or One Off 

Service Area Procedure Award Detail Term / 
Duration

 Total 
Contract 
Value £    

Arboricultural 
Works 
Framework

Provision of Tree works 
services across HPBC and 
SMDC – framework of 
multiple contractors

Recurring Planning & 
Development 
Control

Open 
Tender 
(OJEU)

Acorn 
Arboricultural 
Services
Ascent Tree 
Solutions
Bankswood 
Treecare Ltd
Hamps Valley 
Ltd
Idverde ltd
N&J Tree 
Services Ltd
P Storer Tree 
services
P M Training Ltd

2 + 2 
yrs

360,000

Revenues and 
Benefits System 
Civica Open 
Portal upgrade

System upgrade programme 
and additional functionality

One Off Revenues & 
Benefits

CCN 
(Existing 
Contract)

Civica n/a 189,900

Organisational 
Development 
Leadership
Consultancy

Consultancy Appointment One Off Transformation / 
HR 

Single 
Source – 
Direct 
Award 

Camburg 3 
months

33,000

Network Pan 
Testing – IT 
security

Security testing IT systems Recurring Transformation 
ICT

Open 
request for 
Quotations

MTI Technology 
Ltd

1 + 2 
yrs

15,000

Air Quality 
Analysis

Analysis and reporting on 
diffusion tube data from air 
quality monitoring sites

Recurring Env Health Single 
Source – 
Direct 
Award

Bureau Vertas 1 yr 2,500

The following items were removed or deferred from the Procurement work plan for 20/21

Seasonal Bedding Plants and Floral Displays 
Supply

Recurring Grounds 
Maintenance

n/a Alliance Environmental Services (AES) 
Contract novation

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Staffs Moorlands Performance & Customer Feedback Report: 2020/21 (Q2) 

  

P
age 131



83%

17%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

On Track Off Track

40% 40%

20%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

Staffordshire Moorlands Q2 Summary  

The following report provides Councillors with an overview of performance at Staffs Moorlands for the period April to September 2020 in 
relation to the Council’s corporate plan priorities and the associated performance targets and projects. The report also provides an overview of 
the results from the Council’s customer feedback system in terms of how we handle and learn from complaints and the level of comments and 
compliments.       

Performance Overview  

There are 131 ‘monthly’, ‘quarterly’, and ‘annual only’ reported performance measures at Staffs Moorlands (27 more than last year). The chart 
below shows the results for the first half of 2020/21 against the monthly and quarterly measures only and reflects the revised targets agreed in 
response to the pandemic. The Q2 results show that 83% of all measures are currently ‘on track’ to meet target by the end of the year and 60% 
of measures are performing equal to or better than last year’s Q2 result. The actions being taken to address the ‘off track’ measures are 
detailed at the end of this report. 

The report also provides an update on the progress of key projects that contribute to the priority actions outlined in the 2019-2023 Corporate 
Plan. The table below right explains the colour coding used to describe the status of these projects / actions.  

Customer Feedback Overview  

There has been a 40% reduction in complaints during the first half of 2020/21 compared to last year and there have been no repeat 
complaints. Performance in handing complaints in 10 days is 1% beneath target at a respectable 96%. Further information about any lessons 
learned is included in the report.    

 Off Track 

 In danger of going off Track 

 On Track 

 Not yet started / Decision 
awaited 

 Complete / Closed 

P
age 132



0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

On Track Off Track

SM Aim 1: Sept Results 2020/21

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

SM Aim 1: Sept Trends 2020/21 

Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live and work 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Overall performance is very strong against aim one with only one ‘off track’ measure at SMDC – the proportion of homelessness applications 
opened at the prevention rather than relief duty stage. However, settled accommodation rates have improved significantly. The trend shows 
that all measures, where comparable, are performing better than last year.         

 

Celebrating Success:  

At the end of Q2, the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets: 

 settled accommodation outcomes from homelessness prevention and relief duties  
 processing benefit new claims and change of circs 
 temporary accommodation placements 

 

 

 

P
age 133



2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Priority Actions Status Commentary – September  
Develop a strategy for further 
development of affordable and specialist 
housing 

 This project is similar to the Ascent project, we will look at the options to supply affordable 
housing: Homes England has a new funding opportunity. 

Complete the review of the CCTV system 
and implement the agreed 
recommendations 

 The upgrade of the control room has started. A progress meeting was arranged with the 
contractor at the end of September. Should start replacing the cameras this month. 

Develop and implement an indoor leisure 
facilities improvement plan focused on 
improving the health and well- being of 
residents 

 Stage 2 project documentation supplied. Consultancy spec is out to tender, deadline is 
2.10.20. Evaluation and meetings scheduled to occur in October. 

Develop and implement an outdoor 
leisure facilities improvement plan 
focused around the 'sports village' 
concept 

 The suggested project list has been shared with Senior Management. Projects are all at third 
party locations therefore progress with each will be linked to the facility owner/clubs’ 
aspirations. 

Develop a Private Sector Housing 
Strategy to improve conditions for 
homeowners and private tenants  

 The strategy is being produced and will incorporate links with the Climate Change agenda 

Refresh the Council’s Communication 
Strategy in order to ensure that there is a 
more effective dialogue with residents  

 A report is going to ALT/Cabinet. Also, an information digest report will be sent to members. 
A meeting has been held with comms to start on the corporate narrative and select key 
individuals to take part 

Review the Council's community safety 
arrangements in order to maintain 
strong partnerships with community 
groups  

 Review of CSS at both Councils to be completed by April 2021 along with proposals for the 
future.  

Review the Sport and Physical Activity 
Strategy in order to integrate 
communities and sports clubs into the 
delivery of its objectives 

 Next steps:  
• Undertake scoping work including review of current data/statistics, review of Sport 
England, Active Derbyshire and SASSOT’s strategy position, engage stakeholders/partners 
• Formulate draft strategy for circulation/comments 
• Member review/approvals 
 
 

P
age 134



Individual project updates within the action: 
Active Communities Plan - This plan was ready to be launched in March 2020 but put on hold 
due to the closure of leisure centres. Parkwood's outreach staff not due to be brought back 
until the end of October so at present it is unclear when this will recommence and whether 
the focus of the plan is still appropriate/realistic. 

Continuing Influencing actions 
Ensuring effective health provision 
particularly for the elderly 
 
 

A special meeting of the Council’s Health O&S Panel was held on 22nd July 2020. Cllr Alan White (SCC 
Cabinet Member for Health & Wellbeing) and Dr Richard Harland provided members with a presentation 
on the Covid-19 Local Outbreak Control Plan. Following the presentation members had the opportunity 
to ask questions and make comments. 
The next meeting of the Panel is scheduled to take place on 14th Oct 2020, at which representatives 
from the Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust and the North Staffordshire CCG will be in 
attendance to provide an update on Covid-19 and Community Hospitals. At the request of a councillor, 
the Panel will also consider an item on Public Health Initiatives (Drugs and Alcohol Overview) from Tony 
Bullock, Staffordshire County Council. 

New Influencing Actions – The following actions are new to the 2019-2023 Corporate Plans. The project delivery 
mechanism for each is being set up through the Transformation Board and updates will begin as each project launches.  
 Combating illegal money lenders such as loan sharks 
 Reducing crime, the fear of crime and ASB 

 

Managing our strategic risks 

The Council has identified, assessed, and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim One: 

• Meeting the increased and changing demands on council services caused by demographic changes in the local population (including an 
aging population) 

• The ability to effectively engage with our communities 
• Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults (meeting the legal duty) 
• Influencing strategic relationships at county and regional level in support of local area objectives 

 

P
age 135



0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

On Track Off Track

SM Aim 2 : Sept Results 2020/21

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

SM Aim 2 : Sept Trends 2020/21

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Staffs Moorlands remains ‘off track’ for sundry debt collection rates despite a reduction in the target. There has been a significant increase in 
audit recommendations implementation, but FOI response times remain down. The amended targets for council tax and business rates 
collection have brought the Q2 results back on track although weaker than last year.   

Celebrating Success:     

At the end of Q2, the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets: 

 sickness absence 
 IT systems and network availability 
 repeat complaints 
 social media followers 
 procurement activity on the forward plan 
 customer interactions and portal accounts 
 invoice processing, 

 

P
age 136



 

2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Priority Actions Status Commentary – September 
Develop and implement a plan to 
identify new and innovative ways of 
generating income 
 

 Individual project updates within the action: 
3.1 Advertising/Sponsorship- need to look at the work already done and review timescales. 
We are unlikely to be able to focus on this until later in the year.  Priority focus being to 
review current income levels / prospects for the MTFP period. On hold. 
3.2 Fees & Charges- Work on 2021/22 fees and charges to commence Oct in preparation for 
formal presentation in Feb. 
3.3 Empty properties- The Empty Property review commenced July 2020; we will review the 
actions during 2020/21. The team have been issuing letters to empty properties.  
3.4 Building Control- we are awaiting information back from the Derbyshire consortium 
(latest financials etc); a meeting will be arranged with finance to progress this. 
3.5 Trade Waste - need to determine an approach with AES. Finance to pick this up in 
October after initial review of the MTFP. 

Continue to embed good 
information management practices 
through the ASSURED framework 

 The IGG met on September 23rd, 2020 where the revised Terms of Reference for the Group 
were agreed. IAR challenge sessions were held with Assets and Democratic / Community 
Services and all IARs will now be stored centrally to facilitate shared access and a single 
master copy. A large proportion of the IGG action plan is now complete and will be 
refocused on the remaining actions 

Refresh and implement the Asset 
Management Plan, including a 
review of public estate, and ensure 
adequate facilities management 
arrangements are in place 

 Individual project updates within the plan: 
14.1 Asset Management Plan- Further training being undertaken with CIPFA to deliver AMP. 
Once the database is complete, a policy / strategy will be created. 
14.2 Capital program- New R/A/G status programme in place to aid quick reporting  
14.4 Land Disposal strategy- Programme reviewed as part of Aug MTFP reintegration.  
14.5 Norse Contract Options FMA – Norse to work up business case. Meeting undertaken 
22/23 September to set scene. Visits to Essex to be arranged. Potential scope of the project 
to be agreed 
14.5.1 Facilities Management Arrangements- Awaiting budget review from Vertas. DCC still 
undertaking works. 

Develop an Access to Services 
Strategy to ensure that Council 
services are accessible to all 
 

 Process for the Access to Services Strategy completed and released to Information Digest. 

P
age 137



Priority Actions Status Commentary – September 
Implement the Council’s Efficiency 
and Rationalisation Programme 
(This will focus on several projects 
including procurement, income 
generation, trading, advertising, and 
sponsorship, etc.) 

 To be reviewed in light of COVID-19 as part of the review of the MTFP – Will be reviewed 
every year. Individual project updates within the action:  
2.2 Refresh Efficiency & Rationalisation programme- Within the medium-term financial plan. 
Possible upfront funding required to implement the programme. The initial review is to be 
presented in September 2020, the formal review as part of MTFP for March 2021. An early 
review will be undertaken as part of the MTFP update - to be presented to September 
Committee cycle 
2.3 Hybrid mail- This will be complete once fully rolled out, SD and Rents now being picked 
up. We are now entering into a 2-year contract with PSL following roll out of the pilot in 
2017/18. ‘high volume’ Service Areas are now live on Hybrid Mail; this equates to approx. 
80% of our outgoing mail. 273,019 items of mail were posted in 2019/20. 30% posted via 
Hybrid Mail, making savings of £10,548. We predict the use of Hybrid Mail for 2020/21 
increases to 60%. We continue to roll this out across services, Customer Services training 
taking place, completion Oct 2020. 

Develop a new Organisational 
Development Strategy to ensure 
effective workforce development   

 Information Digest has been completed and circulated to members. The strategy will 
identify several projects for delivery. Camburg have met with AMT and we are aiming to get 
this finalised for the next committee meeting. 

Develop a new procurement 
strategy with a focus on spending 
money locally 

 New strategy to go to Cabinet/ALT, information digest report to go to all members.  Formal 
strategy to be presented in the autumn, which will result in an action plan over the next 3 to 
4 yrs. 
 
Draft Procurement Strategy Discussion Paper presented to Cabinet ALT and feedback 
provided.  Based on this, there are some further amendments / information to include prior 
to release.  Briefing note presented to SMDC Climate Change working group for comment. 

Develop a new ICT strategy to 
enhance and support the delivery of 
services 

 A report is going to ALT/Cabinet. Also, an information digest report will be sent to members. 
Socitm review commenced. Individual project updates within the strategy:  
2.2 Meetings AV equipment- On hold due to COVID-19. 
2.3 ILAP/Assure - reached testing stage but the software is not ready, on hold until IlAP is fit 
for purpose 
2.4 Civica Pay- Project board has met, migration to commence May 2021.  
2.5 Civica Open Revenues- Cabinet approval granted, project board set up and PID under 
development. 
2.6 Env Health/Licencing- no roadmap for flare implementation, collective needs to be 
completed first. 
 
 

P
age 138



Priority Actions Status Commentary – September 
2.7 Asset Management-Concerto: PC pilot study is up and running, timeline for completion 
is the end of this year. Training planned for the full team, go live is planned for Jan 2021. 
2.8 Collective- delayed due to COVID-19 19, resources to be allocated and will get back on 
track as soon as possible. The data cleanse exercise has progressed slowly but should be 
signed off in the coming weeks. A test data migration exercise is complete, and this will be 
tested in September. We are aiming for a go live date March/April 2021. Work is underway 
with the developers re the intuitive web forms and our web provider have developed a 
solution for displaying the calendars online. Vehicle installs at HP have taken place and the 
training approach for users in the office and drivers has been agreed. Further work required 
on the trade collections; this has been agreed. A new timeline has been created and we 
await a response from Bartec.   
2.9 Committee Management- looking at production of the forward plan and the quality of 
reports. Training to be implemented. 
2.10 ICT upgrade- M365 is ongoing, Teams has been made a priority and is nearing 
completion, 131 users are now enabled on a corporate device.  RDSW10- super users are  
testing the main systems, live staff migrations will commence 24/08 and will be handled by 
the NPS onsite team. IT requirements are being evaluated to enable a more agile approach 
between home/office working. The intention is to evaluate our IT requirement needs using 
the outcomes of the staff IT / homeworking survey and the deliverables from PLA1  
Reinstating Services work & Positive Legacy workstreams, where new ways of working are 
being considered, (e.g. laptops/docking stations etc). When Northgate have a clear idea 
what route we want to take with hardware, they will cost that solution for us. 

Managing our strategic risks 

The Council has identified, assessed, and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim Two: 

• Delivery of MTFP through the Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy 
• Staff resources and retention 
• Effective contract management 
• Effective Information Governance arrangements (breach of data protection regulations) 
• Maintenance of Council's portfolio of public buildings assets  
• Investment into council assets and long-term planning 
• Financial and Legislative impacts from world events e.g. Brexit  
• Cyber risk and IT Security 

P
age 139



0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

On Track Off Track

SM Aim 3: Sept Results 2020/21 

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

SM Aim 3 : Sept Trends 2020/21 

Aim 3: Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns and villages   

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

The Council has a perfect record under Aim Three with all targets currently ‘on track’ as at the end of September 2020 and 100% of major 
planning applications have been determined on time.          

   

Celebrating Success:     

At the end of Q2 the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets: 

 Major, Minor, and other planning applications processed on time 
 major and minor developments allowed on appeal 

 
 
 
 

P
age 140



 

2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Priority Actions Status Commentary – September  
Support the development of Cornhill 
and improved rail links 

 10.1 Cornhill development (East): Business case to be submitted.  
10.2 Cornhill development (West): Full planning approval for site already granted. 
10.3 Rail projects- We have appointed project management consultants (Jonathan Cornes 
Associates) to facilitate the project delivery. 

Support the development of the 
former Churnet Works site in Leek 

 No update 

Develop and implement plans to 
extend the public market operations  

 Tender specification issued for Leek Market Hall improvements - expected start date Nov 
2020. Note being prepared for market operation options. 

Adopt a new Local Plan  Action Completed. The Staffordshire Moorlands Local Plan was adopted by full council in 
September 2020. 

Develop a master plan for bringing 
redundant mills back into us 

 Work has been conducted in this area previously and a review of this work will take place 
initially. We also need to identify what has been empty long term and understand the reasons. 

Implement the Council’s growth 
strategy to bring about the 
regeneration of towns and rural 
communities 

 Individual project updates within the strategy: 
6.8 Biddulph Wharf Rd masterplan- additional budget support may be required  
6.9 Investment & Acquisition strategy- To be reviewed. 
6.10 Cheadle town centre masterplan - Final Masterplan Options Appraisal report received, 
SMDC Cabinet to approve next steps. Provisional dates agreed for meeting of new Cheadle 
town centre project - delivery board to be supported by a stakeholder panel. Project being 
considered for submission to OPE bid (round 8). To be discussed with SCC.  

Develop a Tourism Strategy to 
maximise the positive impact to our 
communities 

 Not yet commenced. 

Influencing Actions                
Support the Churnet Valley Railway 
with their plans to bring trains back 
to Leek 

Heritage Rail Link:  External funding secured at 80% intervention level from The European Agriculture Fund 
for Rural Development (EARDF) with CVR responsible for match/funding for the remaining element. 
Appointed project management consultants (Jonathan Cornes Associates) to facilitate project delivery.  

New Influencing Actions – The following actions are new to the 2019-2023 Corporate Plans. The project delivery 
mechanism for each is being set up through the Transformation Board and updates will begin as each project launches. 
 

P
age 141



 Expand the Growth Deal Partnership to provide inward investment 
 Provide bus services which connect our villages with our three market towns for services, shopping, and leisure. 

 Improve access and traffic flows to our town centre 
 

Managing our strategic risks 

The Council has identified, assessed, and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim Three: 

• External funding for growth / regeneration schemes 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 142



0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

On Track Off Track

SM Aim 4: Sept Results 2020/21

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

SM Aim 4 : Sept Trends 2020/21

 

Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

The council has just one ‘off track’ measure at the end of Q2: the kg of residual waste. We measure this quarterly using estimates until the 
tonnages are confirmed but the amounts collected during lockdown were higher than the previous year. Fly tipping is now a contextual 
measure but the 2020/21 data reveals significant increases compared to last year, which is believed to be an issue nationally and is being 
addressed through a comms strategy in addition to ongoing enforcement activity.              

 

Celebrating Success:     

At the end of Q2, the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets: 

 missed bins 

 paper consumption 

 estimated recycling rates 

 

 

P
age 143



 

2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Priority Actions  Status Commentary – September  
Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the 
transfer of services to Alliance 
Environmental Services Ltd, to deliver 
waste, streets, and ground 
maintenance services on behalf of the 
Council in order to achieve improved 
performance and value for money 
outcomes. 

 COMPLETED 
Phase 3 (streets and ground maintenance) transfer completed 1st April 2020. 
Awaiting return of IT equipment. Closure/lessons learnt report has been provided. Project 
completed. 

Identify and implement an approach 
to reduce the cost of country parks 

 SOTCC have not progressed the freehold transfer of Wetley Moor to SMDC having not 
obtained member approval to date. In addition, they have not provided an up to date 
position regarding the tenancy situation without which SWT are not prepared to progress 
the transfer. The project has stalled as Officers are unable to obtain a response from 
SOTCC about timeframes for such to occur, despite ongoing attempts. 

Develop a plan to improve Brough 
Park and John Hall Gardens 
 

 Brough Park Improvement plan- Four tenders were received for the new play area, the 
designs were disappointing. As a result, we are going back to the suppliers who bid asking 
them to revisit the designs. Early signs are that they will improve on this.  
 

Develop a climate change strategy & 
an action plan of response to a 
declared climate emergency 

 Plans to be produced by the end of the year. Ongoing projects will come out of this piece 
of work. Procurement paper taken to Staffs Moorlands. 

Review the Council's waste and 
recycling arrangements to increase 
recycling and to respond to the 
emerging national strategy 

 On hold- Await consultation and communications from the Government. Individual 
projects within the action: 
14.1/14.2 COVID-19 has delayed central Gov't progress, expectations not expected to be 
known until 2021 14.2 TEEP has not started.  

Review the Environmental 
Enforcement Policy in order to take 
steps to further reduce 
environmental crime 

 Policies to be reviewed and updated in the next 12 months  

Develop a new Parking Strategy to 
ensure that our car parks meet the 
needs of residents and visitors 

 Individual project updates within the strategy: 
15.1 Parking strategy -Specification of requirement has been issued and fee proposal 
received. Contract being prepared 
 

P
age 144



Priority Actions  Status Commentary – September  
15.3 Pay & Display machines - Initial scoping meeting held with procurement to recap 
where we are and put into context for the new project manager.  

Influencing Actions 
Provide waste and recycling centres 
across the district 

SMDC are part of the wider Staffordshire Waste partnership which has regularly meetings both at 
Officer and member level. This ensures we can influence any decisions being taken at a county level 
regarding provision of such centres by SCC 

The provision of accessible on street 
parking 

Staffordshire parking board has ceased to meet during the current COVID-19 Crisis. Last attendance 
was at the last board, December 2019. 

 

Managing our strategic risks 

The Council has identified, assessed, and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim Four: 

• Meeting the environmental regulatory framework (e.g. air quality and waste regs) 

• Energy supply (inc fuel) 

P
age 145



 

 

P
age 146



 

 

P
age 147



 

Areas for Improvement: September 2020 

Measure of Success (PI)  Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2020/21 

Result  
September 

2020   

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve) 

% of initial homelessness 
applications opened at the 
prevention and relief duty 

stages 

Aim 1: Increased supply of 
good quality affordable 

homes 

Head of Housing 60% 
prevention 

45% 
prevention 
55% relief 

We are seeing a higher number of presentations 
at relief stage due to relationships and sofa 
surfing arrangements breaking down, however 
settled accommodation rates have improved 
significantly. 

Collection rates: Sundry 
Debt (value of SD over 60 

days) 

Aim 2: Effective use of 
financial and other 

resources to ensure value 
for money 

Head of Revenues 
and Benefits 

 

Match 
2019/20  

£101,700.27 Collection rates have been affected by the impact 
of COVID-19. 

% of Internal Audit 
recommendations 

implemented within 
timescale (snapshot at end 

of each quarter) 

Head of Internal 
Audit 

92% 74.12% 

The usual audit recommendation follow-up 
process was suspended during April-June but has 
been slowly reintroduced from July with 
performance improving. 

FOI requests: % responded 
to within statutory time 

frame (include numbers in 
commentary) 

Aim 2: Ensure our services 
are easily available to all 

our residents in the 
appropriate channels and 
provided 'right first time 

Head of Legal and 
Elections 

95% 74.72% 
192/264 

Response timescales have been affected by the 
impact of COVID-19. 

Complaint handling: % dealt 
with within 10 working days 

Head of Customer 
Services 

97% 96% 

1 complaint responded to outside of the 10 
working days (11 days), as we have received a low 
number of complaints overall this affects the % 
year to date target. 

P
age 148



Measure of Success (PI)  Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2020/21 

Result  
September 

2020   

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve) 

KG's of residual waste per 
household. 

Effective recycling and 
waste management 

Head of Service 
Commissioning 

385kg 210.08kg Q2 results are estimated as disposal tonnage data 
is not yet available from SCC, similarly, recycling 
tonnage data for September is awaited from our 
contractors. Tonnages collected during lockdown 
in Q1 were 835 tonnes higher than during the 
same months last year, which will have an impact 
on our results in 2020-21. 

 

 For a full list of all performance measures and the Q2 results please visit the Performance Management page on the Intranet or click on this link.  

 

P
age 149

https://hpbc.alliance-online.org/system/files/documents/attachments/staffs_moorlands_q2_2020-21.pdf


T
his page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet

1 December 2020

1. Reason for the Report

1.1     This report presents the Council’s updated Medium Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP) for the period 2021/22 – 2024/25. The MTFP presents the Council’s 
priorities in the context of the likely resources available, providing a financial 
context to future decision-making.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Cabinet approves the updated Medium Term Financial Plan.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The medium term financial planning process provides the Council with the 
opportunity to plan its delivery of public services in accordance with local 
priorities. 

3.2 The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is updated in accordance with the 
budget cycle.  This version of the MTFP presents the Council’s finances over a 
four-year period, namely 2021/22 to 2024/25.  It sets the context for the 
preparation of the 2021/22 budget which will be presented for approval by the 
Council in February 2021.  

3.3      The current Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which set out the Council’s 
finances over a four-year period, namely 2020/21 to 2023/24 was formally 
approved in February 2020.  

3.4 This resulted in a small surplus position of £17,840 on the General Fund by the 
end of 2023/24, with an overall contribution of £35,950 into reserves over the 4 
year life of the plan.   

TITLE: Medium Term Financial Plan 2021/22 – 
2024/25 Update 

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR Cllr Sybil Ralphs – Leader

CONTACT OFFICERS: Keith Pointon – Interim Head of Finance

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 151

Agenda Item 8.4



3.5 However, since the MTFP was approved, the Coronavirus pandemic has had, 
and is likely to continue having an adverse impact on the Council’s financial 
position.  The financial impact is arising from additional expenditure in dealing 
with the crisis both externally and organisationally, lost income and savings 
targets that may not be met within the same timeframe due to resources being 
diverted elsewhere.

3.6 The 2020/21 projected outturn (as per the Quarter 2 financial report) is currently 
forecasting a £0.1 million deficit.  At the end of 2019/20, the Council established 
a Covid-19 earmarked reserve specifically to support with the financial impact 
of Covid-19 totalling £500,000 - utilising part of the 2019/20 underspend 
generated.  Consequently, part of this earmarked reserve can be drawn to cover 
the projected 2020/21 deficit

3.7 The current four year MTFP was updated in September to reflect Covid-19 
related pressures and updated economic forecasts in order to begin to 
understand the medium term financial impact.  This version moves the MTFP 
on a year, incorporating 2024/25 as year 4.

3.8 It is extremely difficult to forecast how long the recovery period will be and what 
the impact of further lockdowns / tiered systems will be and what impact the 
economic recession will have.  The report details the assumptions that have 
been made at this point (as well as the risks), which will be continually under 
review as new information becomes available and the 2020/21 position 
develops.   

3.9 This version of the updated MTFP provides: 
 A focus on the transformation programme and the consequential financial 

implications, including the capital programme and efficiency & 
rationalisation plan 

 Updated inflation and interest assumptions using the latest forecasts and 
the impact of any budgetary demand

 Updated income assumptions based on latest information
 Forecasts the reserves position and identifies significant areas of risk

3.10 At this stage, the updated MTFP highlights a required use of reserves over the 
4 year period of £1.8million in order to balance.  Utilising the Covid-19 recovery 
earmarked reserve and re-designating the pensions earmarked reserve, would 
result in a required drawdown from contingency reserves of £843,780, as 
shown below:

£
MTFP Four Year Use of Reserves requirement 1,793,780
Covid-19 Recovery earmarked Reserve (500,000)
Pensions Re-designated Reserve (450,000)
Balance to be funded 843,780
General Fund Contingency (843,780)
Balance to be funded -
General Fund Contingency Balance 31st March 2020 2,419,000
Drawdown over 2021/22 – 2024/25 (843,780)
Forecast General Fund Contingency Balance by 31st March 2025 1,575,220

Page 152



3.11 Consequently, at the end of year 4 of the plan (2023/24) there would be an 
estimated balance of £1.575million in General Fund Contingency reserves – 
£0.475 million above the required £1.1 million minimum required balance as set 
out by the Chief Finance Officer in the MTFP approved in February 2020.

3.12 The updated MTFP illustrates a requirement to draw from reserves in all four 
years of the plan – with an estimated £259,830 required in year 4 (2024/25).  
Over the next few months the Plan’s position will be refined to incorporate 
amongst other things, the spending review announcement in December, which 
is expected to give details of any further Government support.

3.13 If reserves are utilised as forecast to fund the deficit position, a plan would need 
to be put into place in to rebuild reserves over the longer term.

3.14 The final version of the Budget 2021/22 and updated MTFP will be presented 
for formal approval in February 2021.  Between now and mid-January, Heads 
of Service will be working with Finance to:

 Undertake a review of the Asset Management Plan capital programme 
forecast profile of spend  

 Undertake review of ‘other’ capital programme projects forecast profile of 
spend

 Refine capital programme forecasts for the new ‘year 4’ – 2024/25
 Review current fees and charges in year performance and update forecast 

level of recovery for 2021/22.  Commence the 2021/22 fees and charges 
exercise. 

 Update forecasted impact on major contracts (AES / Leisure / Facilities 
management) in 2021/22

 Identify any further increased / reduced budget demands for 2021/22 
 Review of the Efficiency programme
 Identify any other significant financial impact on the MTFP

4.      How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the 
effective management of financial resources, which is the subject of this report.

5.       Alternative Options

5.1  There are no options to consider at this stage.

6.  Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted significantly on the working

6.4

Page 153



arrangements for the Council’s employees.
The response to the pandemic has seen the following changes in working
practices:

 Where possible staff are working from home;
 Frontline staff are working safely with the appropriate PPE;
 Staff have been redeployed from time to time in order to support the

additional demand created by several new service functions, e.g.
small business and discretionary grant processing; providing support
for vulnerable people etc.

The Council has maintained and continues to maintain a good dialogue with
staff representatives and trade unions and they have and continue to be
supportive of the Councils approach.
The Council has established a recovery plan that ensures the safety of
staff as we look to reinstate services – although currently now back in 
‘response’ phase as part of the second lockdown.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and 
Diversity policies.

An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken on the 
Corporate Plan, which feeds into budget plans.

6.4 Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the 
report.

6.5 Legal
There have been and continue to be a significant number of regulatory
changes during the response and recovery from the pandemic which may 
impact on the MTFP going forward.

16.6 Climate Change
The COVID-19 response has resulted in some positive benefits in respect of
carbon reduction, including:

 Reduced employee travel during lockdown;
 Reduced energy consumption in public buildings due to building

closures and reduced use; and
 Improved air quality due to general reductions in travel.

It is important that these areas are reviewed to identify potential new ways of
working as part of the recovery process that will have a positive legacy on the 
climate change challenge.

6.7 Consultation
The Council’s annual budget plans are the subject of an annual public 
consultation exercise. 

Page 154



6.8  Risk A Risk Assessment
Financial risks have been identified within the report.
In addition, the pandemic has resulted in a number of risks that need to be 
assessed and managed and may have a financial impact, these include:

 Inability to deliver critical services due to loss of staff,
 Inability to maintain the financial stability of the Council,
 Failure to deliver health and safety responsibilities,
 Safeguarding issues arise through the enhanced level of community

support,
 Staff are at increased risk of the disease in certain services,
 Increased risk of fraud and cyber security,
 Lack of PPE for key workers,
 Increase in community safety issues which are difficult to respond to

due to capacity,
 The economy is deflated post-recovery leading to ongoing economic

problems in town centres and the broader economy,
 Increased demand on certain services e.g. Benefits and economic

support.
Risk assessments have been completed for all services and mitigation 
measures have been built into the Council’s recovery plans.  

CLAIRE HAZELDENE
Interim Executive Director (Finance & Customer Services)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Various background working papers Keith Pointon
Interim Head of Finance
01538 395400 Ext. 4193

Page 155



7. Introduction

7.1 The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is a key element of the Council’s 
budget and policy frameworks. It aims to ensure that resources are directed 
effectively and efficiently towards delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan. It 
describes the financial direction of the Council for planning purposes and 
outlines the financial pressures the Council is likely to experience over the next 
4 years.

7.2 The medium term financial planning process establishes how available 
resources will be allocated to services in line with Council priorities which have 
been determined following consultation with residents, councillors and other 
stakeholders. The process facilitates the Council in planning the prudent 
management of its finances, in building resilience and in providing for the needs 
of residents over the long term.  

7.3 The Medium Term Financial Plan is driven by local priorities. The Council’s 
spending strategy is set out in the Corporate Plan formally adopted by members 
of the Council.

7.4 Following the elections in May 2019, there was a fundamental review of the 
Corporate Plan focussing on the period 2019-2023 (up to the end of the current 
political administration).  The Corporate Plan was agreed by Council on 16th 
October 2019 with 2020/21 representing the first full year of the new Corporate 
Plan.

7.5 The Corporate Plan establishes the Council’s vision, corporate objectives and 
key priorities for the medium term.  It in effect establishes the Council’s 
commitment in the delivery of service and community leadership to the 
residents of the Staffordshire Moorlands. 

7.6 The Coronavirus pandemic has had, and is likely to continue having, an 
adverse impact on the Council’s financial position.  The financial impact is 
arising from additional expenditure in dealing with the crisis both externally and 
organisationally, lost income and savings targets that may not be met within the 
same timeframe due to resources being diverted elsewhere.

7.7 There is concern about the longer-term financial impact this will have on the 
delivery of corporate plan objectives.  Therefore, to attempt to understand and 
forecast this and to allow more time to effectively plan the longer term response, 
an early review of the MTFP was undertaken and this was presented to 
Members in September 2020. 

7.8 The September update focused on updating the MTFP as approved in February 
2020 - therefore no additional financial years were added and no additional 
budget demand items were included.  The review simply updated the current 
MTFP in light of the estimated financial impact of Covid-19.

7.9 This update moves the MTFP on, adding an additional year, now focusing on 
the 4 year period 2021/22 – 2024/25.

Page 156



8. Current Approved Medium Term Financial Plan

8.1 The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which set out the Council’s finances 
over a four-year period, namely 2020/21 to 2023/24 was formally approved in 
February 2020.  A balanced budget for 2020/21 was presented, providing for a 
net general fund budget of £9,838,870.

8.2 A new financial year (2023/24) was added to the MTFP and the overall financial 
assumptions were updated for the four years. This resulted in a small surplus 
position of £17,840 on the General Fund by the end of 2023/24. An overall 
contribution of £35,950 into reserves was forecast during the 4 year life of the 
plan.

8.3 The MTFP also included an updated General Fund Capital Programme of 
£17,704.640 over the period 2019/20 – 2023/24

8.4 The report did flag the risks around the outcomes of national funding reviews 
(i.e. fair funding; business rates retention; and new homes bonus) which may 
have a detrimental impact on the future financial position.   

8.5 The forecast general fund reserves position over the life of the current approved 
MTFP is shown below:-

Contingency 
Reserves

2019/20 
(£)

2020/21 
(£)

2021/22 
(£)

2022/23 
(£)

2023/24 
(£)

Balance at Year End 2,153,280 2,429,290 2,365,840 2,171,390 2,189,230
Minimum Requirement 1,052,000 1,107,000 1,107,000 1,107,000 1,107,000
Headroom 1,101,280 1,322,290 1,258,840 1,064,390 1,082,230

8.6 A summary of the approved four year revenue position for the General Fund 
is shown in ANNEX A.

9. Coronavirus Pandemic – 2020/21 (Current Year) Impact

9.1 As a priority, the financial impact that Covid-19 would potentially have on the 
current financial year (2020/21) was reviewed in June 2020.  This was updated 
as part of the Quarter 1 Financial Report in September and has now been 
updated again within the Quarter 2 Financial Report, which also takes account 
of the confirmed and estimated future Government funding.

Quarter 2 Financial Update

9.2 The 2020/21 forecast has been updated as part of the Quarter 2 Financial 
Update (see separate report on this agenda).  

9.3 In summary, the Quarter 2 Financial Update forecasts a £106,130 deficit for 
2020/21 after taking into account Covid-19 related funding.  The deficit is mainly 
due to the impact from losses in fees and charges income, additional costs in 
supporting the operation of the leisure centres, waste collection, additional 
cleaning and a potential shortfall in realising efficiency savings.

Page 157



9.4 When establishing the 2020/21 budget, it included a contribution into general 
fund contingency reserves of £0.28million.  Therefore, the forecast deficit 
position results in a variance to this assumption of £0.11million – with an overall 
£0.17million contribution to reserves. 

9.5 However, at the end of 2019/20, the Council established a Covid-19 earmarked 
reserve specifically to support with the financial impact of Covid-19 totalling 
£500,000 - utilising part of the 2019/20 underspend generated.

9.6 Therefore, this reserve will be used first to fund any 2020/21 in year deficit.  
Based on the quarter 2 projection, £106,000 would be drawn from the 
earmarked reserve, leaving £394,000 for future years. 

9.7 The 2020/21 financial position will be monitored and updated throughout the 
year taking into account the actual recovery of income levels and services and 
any further updates on Government funding.

Government Covid-19 Funding

9.8 Following on from two allocations of non-ring fenced grant to Local Authorities, 
on 2nd July 2020, the Secretary of State for the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) announced a package of 
financial support for local government, providing three central pillars of support:

COVID-19 related expenditure
- An overall £4.3 billion non ring-fenced allocation.  The Council had received 

three allocations of non-ringfenced funding from Government totalling 
£1,160,514.  The allocations reflect the factors from which the MHCLG 
monthly data returns (as completed by each Local Authority) correlate most 
closely with expenditure.  The allocations also take account of population, 
deprivation and the way that service costs vary across the country.

- At the time of writing a fourth tranche of funding has been announced by 
Government of which £119,318 is allocated to SMDC.

Irrecoverable income loss
- Recognises that Councils have lost a great deal of income from sales, fees 

and charges (SFC) since the start of the pandemic.
- Reimbursements of lost income where these losses are more than 5% of 

planned income - Government will fund 75p in every pound.  The income 
scheme will cover transactional income from the delivery of services which 
is unavoidably irrecoverable – this will be the net loss. The 5% deductible 
will be based on total SFC’s budgets - it is not a line by line analysis. No 
forms of commercial income will be covered by this scheme.  

Losses in tax revenue
- Tax deficits can be repaid over three years rather than the usual one

Page 158



- There is uncertainty at this point how much tax loss will materialise, so the 
government will agree a fair apportionment of irrecoverable council tax and 
business rates losses, between central and local government, for 2020 to 
2021.

9.9 In addition, Government has provided financial support to Councils to:
 administer the business grants and self isolation payment process
 support homelessness activity
 support the reopening of high streets
 support with the cost of compliance and enforcement of Covid restrictions

9.10 The Council has also received funding from Staffordshire County Council to 
support track and trace compliance and enforcement duties.

9.11 The table below provides a summary of Government and County funding 
(confirmed and estimated) 

Covid Grant Support SMDC
  £ 
Covid 19 General Support- Phases 1-4 1,279,832
Covid 19 Grants Admin Support 154,836
Covid 19 Income Loss Support (est) 257,000

General Support 1,691,668
Covid 19 Track & Trace (via County) 77,807
Covid 19 Compliance Enforcement 39,516
Covid 19 Rough Sleepers Initiative           1,584 

Service Specific Support 118,907
Total  1,810,575

Tier Classifications / Second National Lockdown 

9.12 In an attempt to contain localised increases in Covid-19 cases, the Government 
introduced a 3-tiered system at the end of September 2020.  The three tiers – 
medium, high and very high – represented various restrictions dependent on 
the classification.

9.13 Staffordshire had been placed in the ‘tier 2 – high’ category from 31st October 
2020 – which introduced restrictions on household mixing indoors.  

9.14 However, on 31st October, the Prime Minister announced a second national 
lockdown in England from 5th November to 2nd December.  Similar to the first 
national lockdown, all non essential shops, leisure and hospitality businesses 
are required to close, but education facilities will this time remain open.  

9.15 There will no doubt be an impact on the provision of Council services and 
consequential increased costs / reduced income.  This impact will be estimated 
within the report and assumptions made in respect of further Government 
funding as a result of the national lockdown.

Page 159



9.16 The 2020/21 position will be monitored regularly and formally reported to 
Members as part of the usual quarterly financial reporting process.   Finance 
will be working with Services on a monthly basis to assess the 2020/21 position.

10. Medium Term Financial Plan Update

10.1 Whilst the Council appears to be in a position to offset the majority of the impact 
of COVID-19 on the 2020/21 budget via Government funding and use of 
reserves, there is concern about the longer-term financial impact this may have 
on the delivery of corporate plan objectives.  

September 2020 Update

10.2 Therefore, an initial review of the MTFP was undertaken and presented to 
members in September 2020

10.3 The September update focused on updating the MTFP as approved in February 
2020 - therefore no additional financial years were added and no additional 
budget demand items were included.  The review simply updated the current 
MTFP in light of the estimated financial impact of Covid-19.

10.4 In summary, the updated MTFP estimated a 4 year revenue position of:-
 

2020/21  
Projection

2021/22  
Projection

2022/23  
Projection

2023/24  
Projection

 £ £ £ £
Deficit / (Surplus)     345,160     803,170      386,130     298,760
     Cumulative Deficit (call on reserves)     345,160   1,148,330  1,534,460  1,833,220
     

10.5 The MTFP approved in February 2020 included an assumed £35,950 
contribution into reserves over the four year life of the Plan.  The September 
update showed that in order to balance the updated MTFP position, there would 
now need to be an overall £1,833,220 use of reserves.

November 2020 Update

10.6 This MTFP update report now focuses on the 4 year period 2021/22 – 2024/25 
– adding an additional financial year and including any new budget demand 
items.

10.7 The following sections of this report will focus on the four key areas which form 
part of the MTFP:

 Transformation Programme
 Financial Forecasts
 Funding & Income Generation
 Risks, Contingencies & Reserves

11. Transformation Programme

Page 160



11.1 The Council’s ‘transformation programme’ incorporates all major projects which 
meet the strategic priorities of the authority and have significant financial 
implications, including:-

 The Capital Programme
 Treasury management implications of capital programme and economic 

changes
 The Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme
 The Council’s major contracts 
 Member Priority Projects

11.2 The delivery of transformation programme projects is monitored by the 
Transformation Board made up of Directors, along with key Heads of Service 
and officers.  A Director is allocated as ‘project executive’ and a full business 
case appraisal is completed for each project.

11.3 The table below details the proposed budget for each area of the 
Transformation programme, changes made compared to the February 
approved MTFP, assumptions that have been taken in making those changes 
and any further work required to identify the financial implications of the 
programme are discussed and will feed into future MTFP updates.

Transformatio
n Programme

Covid-19 Changes / Assumptions Proposed Budget  / 
Changes to Feb Approved 

position             (£)
Capital 
Programme – 
General Fund

The Capital Programme presented to Members in 
February 2019 has been reviewed, re-profiled and 
updated to reflect the latest position in terms of capital 
projections to 31st March 2025.

The review also estimates the impact Covid-19 has 
had on delivery of the approved programme.  Some 
projects have inevitably been delayed due to the 
lockdown period (and potentially during the second 
lockdown period), social distancing measures and 
contractor availability.

New proposed projects include:-

£100,000 -Leek Town Football Club – contribution 
towards a 3G pitch
£68,450 – Investment in ICT Digital Transformation
Annual support to ongoing commitments 

£50,000 Moorlands Partnership grant funding
£50,000 ICT investment 

Consequently, the five year capital programme 
(including 2020/21) is forecast at £16,090,850
The updated general fund capital programme is 
detailed in ANNEX B
In accordance with the requirements of the 2017 
edition of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 

Capital Programme Budget:

2020/21 £2,905,620
2021/22 £3,780,280
2022/23 £3,930,510
2023/24 £2,809,050
2024/25 £2,665,390
TOTAL £16,090,850

Changes to Feb 2020 position:

2020/21  decrease (£3,696,600)
2021/22  increase   £367,520
2022/23  increase   £1,322,410
2023/24  increase   £438,220
2024/25  increase   £2,665,390

Page 161



and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code for Capital 
Finance in Local Authorities, a Capital Strategy was 
produced and approved alongside the MTFP in 
February 2020.
The Strategy, which will be updated and presented to 
members alongside the MTFP report in February 
2021, explains how capital expenditure and 
investment decisions are taken in line with the 
Council’s Corporate Plan and service objectives, 
taking account of stewardship, value for money, 
prudence, risk management, sustainability and 
affordability. 

Capital 
Programme 
Funding – 
Borrowing 
Requirement

The capital programme can be funded from a number 
of options which include external grants and 
contributions from third parties comprising of 
Government and lottery funding; capital receipts from 
asset sales as part of the asset management plan; 
earmarked revenue reserves and borrowing.
The main element of spending within the current 
programme which is expected to be funded from 
external resources is support towards Disabled 
Facilities Grants. Estimated capital receipts of 
£75,000 will be available over the next five years 
subject to a review of surplus assets. Revenue and 
capital reserves of £400,000 are forecast (at this 
stage) to be applied over the period. 

Borrowing is therefore the main funding option for the 
programme. The Treasury Management Strategy 
then considers whether this is funded externally or 
internally - both options have a consequence on 
revenue either through reduced investment income or 
increased external interest liability.

As a result of the reprofiling of the capital programme, 
the funding position has consequently changed 
between years.  
The impact on the Council’s borrowing requirement to 
fund any unfinanced capital expenditure is shown.

Borrowing Requirement:

2020/21 £1,714,770
2021/22 £2,242,890
2022/23 £2,430,510
2023/24 £1,309,050
2024/25 £1,165,390

Changes to Feb 2020 position:

2020/21 decrease (£2,590,990)
2021/22 increase   £345,780
2022/23 increase   £1,322,410
2023/24 increase   £449,220
2024/25 increase   £1,165,390

Treasury 
Management 
implications 
of capital 
programme 
changes 

The treasury management implications (borrowing 
costs associated with the estimated borrowing 
requirement) have also been updated to take account 
of both the re-profiled capital programme and capital 
funding programme.

Borrowing Costs Budget (Total):

2021/22 £239,690
2022/23 £317,070
2023/24 £397,880
2024/25 £453,760

Changes to Feb 2020 position 
(implications of capital spend):

2021/22 £50,250
2022/23 £66,940
2023/24 £74,470
2024/25 £43,090

Page 162



Efficiency 
Programme 
Review

The current Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy 
was approved by Members in February 2017, which 
identified a programme of £3.1 million in savings to be 
made over the period 2017/18 – 2020/21.  
When setting the MTFP in February, there remained 
a £1.150 million savings target to be achieved in 
2020/21 and 2021/22.  Following additional savings 
that were realised in quarter 4 of 2019/20, the overall 
target remaining has been reduced to £967,000.
At quarter 2 stage, it assumed that there will be a 
£380,000 shortfall against the 2020/21 target of 
£519,000 due to Covid-19 pressures (this will be 
monitored during the year) – which is built into the 
£106,000 deficit projected at Quarter 2.  
At this stage it is proposed that the actual year-end 
shortfall on the 2020/21 saving target (currently 
forecast at £380,000) is rolled forward into 2021/22 to 
be offset by the significant fleet procurement savings 
due to be realised in that year.
The Covid-19 recovery phase and impact on the 
Council’s financial position is forecast at this stage to 
continue into 2021/22 (if not longer).  Therefore, it is 
recognised that delivering the 2021/22 savings 
requirement of £448,000 (together with any shortfall 
from 2020/21) may prove to be extremely difficult.  
However, as mentioned previously, there are 
significant savings planned for realisation in the next 
12 months in regard to fleet procurement.
In addition, the Council has an earmarked reserve 
established to support with any reprofiling 
requirements of the efficiency programme with 
£493,000 currently set aside.  Therefore, if there was 
a shortfall in achieving savings in 2021/22, this 
reserve could be used.
No assumptions in respect of any ‘new’ efficiency 
programme have been incorporated into this iteration 
of the plan.

Efficiency Programme targets:

2021/22 £448,000*
2022/23   -
2023/24   -
2024/25   -

*plus an estimated additional £380,000 in 
unachieved savings rolled forward from 
2020/21

Changes to Feb 2020 position:

2021/22   -
2022/23   -
2023/24   -
2024/25   -

Major 
Contracts

One of the major cost pressures as a result of Covid-
19 has been the impact on some of the Council’s 
major contracts.  However, there are also other 
potential pressures, as well as potential savings that 
need to be reflected in the MTFP forecast.
Leisure Centres 
Financial support has been provided in respect of the 
Council’s leisure centre operation during the 
lockdown and recovery period – which is being rolled 
on a monthly basis.  The leisure centre operation has 
seen income receipts wiped out during the period the 
leisure centres were closed and is forecasting slow 
recovery phase as footfall is reduced in the early 
stages of recovery to maintain social distancing and 
facilities are opened on a phased basis.   The second 
lockdown means that the facilities will once again 
close during this period.

Changes to Feb 2020 position:

2021/22  £272,000
2022/23   -
2023/24   -
2024/25   -

Page 163



An estimated £743,000 spend pressure is currently 
assumed in 2020/21 which is largely covered by 
Government COVID-19 support grants.
Recognising that leisure centre recovery may be 
prolonged and income levels may not reach pre-
COVID-19 levels in the near future, a £272,000 
growth item has been built into the MTFP in 2021/22 
based on latest forecasts of Leisure Centre recovery 
– this is reversed back out from 2022/23 on the 
working assumption of a return to pre COVID-19 
levels.
At this stage, it is not assumed that the recently 
announced Government funding to support 
externalised Leisure contracts will extend into 
2021/22.

Alliance Environmental Services
Alliance Environmental Services (AES) delivers 
waste, fleet, street cleansing and grounds 
maintenance services to the High Peak Borough and 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Councils. The 
Councils are shareholders of the company along with 
Ansa, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire 
East Council. 
The company has experienced additional cost 
pressures as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic in 
regard to additional agency and overtime costs to 
enable social distancing and additional cleaning and 
personal protective equipment – the amount 
apportioned to SMDC is forecast at £79,270 in 
2020/21.
Change demand items flagged by AES which will 
affect the management fee from 2021/22 include: 
Increased waste tonnage costs (ongoing covid effect); 
Recycling contracts decline in market, impact on 
income, offset partially by an increase in recycling 
credits from increased tonnage (covid effect).

Facilities Management
In 20/21 the Cleaning & Caretaking Contract was 
taken over by Vertas, the Council are currently 
working with Vertas to mitigate the overspend in the 
20/21 to a balanced budget in 21/22.  Therefore 

Changes to Feb 2020 position 
(change demand items):

2021/22 £151,200
2022/23   £25,690
2023/24   £30,290
2024/25     -

Member 
Priority 
Projects 

During the development of the Corporate Plan a 
number of priority actions have been identified and 
prioritised by members.
Any costs or revenue associated with these actions 
will need to be included in the MTFP. The impact of a 
number of them is already included in this iteration of 
the plan but additional work will need to be 
undertaken to develop a number of the actions further 
and at the same time identify any financial 
implications.  
More detail on this will provide in the February 
iteration of the MTFP.

Page 164



12. Financial Forecasts

12.1 A review of financial forecasts includes:-
 Updated interest rate forecasts
 Updated inflationary projections
 Any pensions impact relating to economic changes
 Estimation of any additional medium term costs of COVID recovery:

- Reinstating Services
- Economic recovery
- Community recovery

 Potential financial savings developing from new ways of working in 
accordance with recovery plan stream:-
- Taking advantage of the positive legacy

12.2 The table below details the proposed budget for each area of review, changes 
made compared to the February approved MTFP and assumptions that have 
been taken in making those changes:-

Financial 
Forecasts

Covid-19 Changes / Assumptions Proposed Budget  / 
Changes to Feb 

Approved position             
(£)

Interest 
Rates

Following the decrease in the Bank of England base 
rate to 0.10% in March 2020, and the context of the 
impact of the coronavirus pandemic, the expectation is 
that interest rates will continue at current low levels 
throughout the period of the MTFP, with only a small 
potential increase in the 4th year. 
The Council’s advisors Link do not include negative 
interest rates in their forecast, but their average earning 
forecast shows an expectation of near 0% return.

The forecast of borrowing interest rates similarly 
remains at current levels, although the outcome of the 
recent PWLB consultation may impact this. 

Consequently, the cost of borrowing and the return on 
cash investments has reduced compared to the 
previous MTFP iteration.

Borrowing Costs Budget 
(Total):

2021/22 £239,690
2022/23 £317,070
2023/24 £397,880
2024/25 £453,760

Investment Income Budget 
(Total):
2021/22 (£20,790)
2022/23 (£23,080)
2023/24 (£22,950)
2024/25 (£37,420)

Net changes to Feb 2020 
position (implications of 
interest rates):
2021/22 (£75,010)
2022/23  £8,050
2023/24  £6,370
2024/25 (£1,680)

Inflation The Retail Price Index (RPI) and Consumer Price Index 
(CPI) 12 month rate, as at October 2020, stood at 1.3% 
and 0.9% respectively.  Inflation forecasts are made 
reflecting the composition of the Council’s expenditure, 
resulting in an inflation rate specific to the Council.
This includes the impact on staff pay, supplies and 
services, premises related costs an transport. 
The inflationary effects of Covid-safe working 
arrangements will feed through the system as 
increased supplies and service costs as contracts are 
renewed and uplifted.

Inflationary Uplift (Total):

2021/22  £431,400
2022/23  £333,730
2023/24  £268,230
2024/25  £272,910

Net changes to Feb 2020 
position:

2021/22  £66,340
2022/23 (£39,280)
2023/24  £10,190
2024/25     -

Page 165



Budget 
Demand

The Medium Term Financial Plan presented to Council 
in February 2020 analysed and projected forward both 
income and expenditure.  This has been revised to 
reflect known changes in budgetary demand.
The below items merit further explanation:

2021/22
Leisure centres - support has been included to the sum 
of £272,000 for one year only.

Car parks - income loss due to Covid has been included 
to the sum of £81,000 for one year only.

Recycling - On-going Covid related cost pressures of 
£151,000 have been included in the plan. 

No further Covid-related budget demand items are 
included in the Plan at this stage.

Any financial savings realised as a result of work 
practices changed due to Covid will be offset against 
the remaining efficiency programme targets. Relevant 
areas of potential saving include printing, travel costs, 
postage and utilities.

Changed Budget Demand 
(Total):

2021/22   £621,900
2022/23  (£444,810)
2023/24  £27,790
2024/25  £2,500

Pensions The Pension Fund triennial valuation, which took place 
in 2019, fixed the Council’s contributions for the first 2 
years of this plan. A further valuation is to take place in 
2022, which will set the contributions payable up until 
2025/26.
At this stage the plan assumes no further increase in 
contributions will be necessary arising out of the 2022 
valuation. 
At the 2019 valuation the Staffordshire Moorlands 
portion of the Pension Fund had a funding level of 84%.

The impacts of Covid19 are not expected to have an 
effect on pension contribution rates at this stage. The 
long term nature of Pension Fund forecasting means 
the impacts of short term financial shocks are mitigated. 
This situation will continue to be monitored following the 
outcome of this next valuation.

The Council carries an earmarked reserve for Pension 
purposes, which was originally set up to meet 
extraordinary pension costs outside if the actuarial 
valuation process. It has become obsolete having 
never been used for this purpose and is potentially 
available for re-designation. This will be reviewed 
alongside all other earmarked reserves and Third Party 
funds.

N/a

13. Funding & Income Generation

Page 166



13.1 The key areas of funding and income generation include:
 Council Tax and Business Rates collection 
 Income from Government Grants
 Longer term impact on fees and charges income

13.2 The table below details the proposed budget for each area of review, changes 
made compared to the February approved MTFP and assumptions that have 
been taken in making those changes:-

Funding & 
Income 

Generation

Covid-19 Changes / Assumptions Financial Impact (£’000’s)

Council Tax 
Income

The Council has the capacity to vary Council Tax 
levels, following the abolition of capping.  However 
the Council’s ability to increase Council Tax by more 
than a certain percentage is subject to referendum. 
Government consultation is currently on-going 
regarding the level of this percentage.

In line with the consultation, this iteration of the MTFP 
assumes that a 1.9% Council Tax increase will be 
implemented throughout the 4 year life of this Plan.

Provision for tax base growth remains unchanged 
from the levels assumed in February. A provisional 
figure has been included for Year 4. Further work will 
be carried out in the course of the next few months to 
recalculate likely changes in the tax base. 

There is an increased risk associated with non-
payment as a result of the impact of Covid-19, with 
some households potentially struggling to meet 
instalments.  Collection Rates for 2020/21 are behind 
what they normally are, however this is currently 
largely distorted by deferred payments plans.  
Having said that, it is recognised that there will be an 
impact on collection rates in 2020/21.  However, the 
financial impact will only be realised if outstanding 
debts are not collected in the near term and are 
subsequently written off.  

Council Tax Income Budget 
(inc. impact of Council tax 
increase and tax base 
changes):

2021/22   £5,693,590
2022/23   £5,867,080
2023/24   £6,043,480
2024/25   £6,223,240

Net changes to Feb 2020 
position:

2021/22   -
2022/23   -
2023/24   -
2024/25   -

Business 
Rates 
income

Under the 50% Business Rates Retention system, 
the Authority retains 40% of Business Rates less a 
tariff that is payable into a pool of Staffordshire 
Authorities. This amount is then compared to a 
Funding Baseline (estimated at £2,665,170 for 
2021/22): any amount in excess of this Baseline is 
subject to levy, or conversely if the amount of 
retained Business Rates is below this Baseline, the 
loss is capped by a safety net payment. The MTFP 
does not anticipate the Council falling below the 
Baseline.
As part of the Staffordshire Pool, the levy or the 
safety net payment is made to or from the Pool 
instead of Central Government. If the Council was not 

Business Rates Income 
Budget:

2021/22 (£3,818,950)
2022/23 (£3,925,270)
2023/24 (£4,017,850)
2024/25 (£4,201,490)

Net changes to Feb 2020 
position:

2021/22 £281,370

Page 167



in the Staffordshire Pool it would have to pay 50p in 
the £1 to the Government as a levy, effectively 
limiting the income the Council can gain from 
business rates growth. However, as part of the Pool, 
the Council retains 40% of this levy plus 20% or 
£215,000, whichever is the larger; meaning that for 
every £1 achieved above the baseline at least 60% 
is retained by the Council with the remainder going to 
the Pool to be distributed within Staffordshire.
The benefit to the Council of being part of the Pool 
arrangement is estimated to be £506,080 in 2021/22.

Extended Retail Relief was announced by 
Government in March 2020 which awarded full 
Business Rates relief to all retail, hospitality and 
leisure related businesses. It is unknown at this stage 
if the extended Retail Relief will continue into 
2021/22.  Either way, the Council would either be 
reimbursed via Government grant or the amount 
would be collectable from businesses.
However, as a result of Covid-19 and the impact 
recession and social distancing measures are having 
on businesses, there is a risk that the District may 
see a reduction in the business tax base and 
therefore business rates retention. A reduction of 1% 
has been included in this version of the MTFP. This 
will be reviewed at the next iteration.

There is also a risk associated with non-payment, 
with businesses potentially struggling to meet 
instalments.  Collection Rates for 2020/21 are behind 
the normal trend, however this is currently largely 
distorted by deferred / changed payments plans. A 
financial impact of lower collection rates will only be 
realised if outstanding debts are not collected in the 
near term and are subsequently written off.  Prior to 
the Covid-19 climate an annual provision for bad 
debts of 0.6% was usually included in the budget. 
This has been increased to 1% for 2021/22; 0.8% in 
2022/23; returning to 0.6% in 2023/24 and 2024/25.

2022/23 £284,110
2023/24 £379,630
2024/25     -

Collection 
Fund Impact

The Government announced that it will extend the 
period over which Councils must manage exceptional 
deficits on the collection fund relating to 2020/21 
owing to the Covid-19 situation, from the usual one 
year to three years.  This is intended to ease 
immediate pressures on Councils when budget 
setting for 2021/22, protecting their ability to deliver 
essential local services.

The hardship element of the Local Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme; and the Extended Retail Relief 
and Nursery Discount on Business Rates are all 
funded by grants, therefore do not impact on the 
exceptional deficit.

Distribution of 2020-21 
exceptional deficit (Council 
share):

2021/22 to 2023/24:

Council Tax £11,000 per 
annum

Business Rates £32,000 per 
annum

Page 168



New Homes 
Bonus

The replacement for the New Homes Bonus scheme 
(the intended subject of consultation in Spring 2020) 
has been delayed by Covid19.

The February 2020 iteration of the MTFP assumed 
that any replacement scheme would be as beneficial 
to the Council as the former scheme. In the absence 
of detailed guidance this assumption remains in 
place. As was the case in February; this remains a 
significant risk.

This assumption will be revised in December when 
the provisional Local Government financial 
settlement is released. Any changes will be 
incorporated into the February 2021 MTFP update.

New Homes Bonus Budget:

2021/22  £195,000 
2022/23  £195,000
2023/24  £195,000
2024/25  £195,000

Net changes to Feb 2020 
position:

2021/22  £0
2022/23  £0
2023/24  £0
2024/25     -

Government 
Grants – 
Covid-19

The Council has received Government funding 
towards Covid-19 pressures during 2020/21.  This 
has included non-ringfenced grants, specific grants 
(for additional services provided such as the 
administration of the grants process and compliance 
and enforcement of restrictions) and partial 
reimbursement of irrecoverable fees and charges 
income.
It is assumed at this stage that this funding will not 
continue into future years. 

Government Grants Budget:

2021/22   -
2022/23   -
2023/24   -
2024/25   -

Net changes to Feb 2020 
position:

2021/22   -
2022/23   -
2023/24   -
2024/25   -

Fees & 
Charges

The assumed annual increase in base income has 
been suspended for years 1 and 2 of the plan, whilst 
fees and charges income levels recover from the 
Covid19 shock.

The MTFP assumes that income losses suffered in 
2020/21 arising out of the Covid19 outbreak have 
substantially recovered by 2021/22 except for in the 
area of car parking, which is expected to recover by 
2022/23. This working assumption will be kept under 
review over the next few months as the formal fees 
and charges process is completed before the budget 
is set in February.

F&C Total Budget (inc 
inflation):

2021/22   £5,759,900
2022/23   £5,840,900
2023/24   £5,865,900
2024/25   £5,990,900

Net changes to Feb 2020 
position:

2021/22   £106,000
2022/23   £50,000
2023/24   £52,580
2024/25   £0

14. Updated Revenue Position

14.1 Based on the above forecasts, the updated revenue forecast for the general 
fund is summarised below.  

Page 169



Budget Heading
2021/22  

Projection
2022/23  

Projection
2023/24  

Projection
2024/25  

Projection
 £ £ £ £
Employees 6,365,390 6,567,600 6,691,250 6,817,000
Premises 2,207,550 2,240,660 2,274,270 2,308,380
Transport 141,260 141,260 142,670 144,100
Supplies & Services 8,017,650 7,752,250 7,889,600 8,003,720
Benefits 5,010 5,010 5,010 5,010
Borrowing 239,690 317,070 397,880 453,760
Financing Costs 231,380 231,380 231,380 231,380
     
Total Expenditure 17,207,930 17,255,230 17,632,060 17,963,350
     

Fees and Charges / Other Income
      

(5,759,900)
     

(5,840,900)
      

(5,865,900)
     

(5,990,900)

Interest Receipts 
          

(20,790)
         

(23,080)
          

(22,950)
         

(37,420)

Ascent LLP Income 
         

(553,600)
       

(553,600)
        

(553,600)
       

(553,600)
     
Net Expenditure 10,873,640 10,837,650 11,189,610 11,381,430
     

Council Tax
      

(5,693,590)
     

(5,867,080)
      

(6,043,480)
     

(6,223,240)

Business Rates Retention
      

(3,818,950)
     

(3,925,270)
      

(4,017,850)
     

(4,201,490)

New Homes Bonus
         

(194,890)
       

(194,890)
        

(194,890)
       

(194,890)

Earmarked Reserves
      

(3,982,790)
           

(7,700)
            

(7,700)
           

(7,700)

Contingency Balances
                    

0
                   

0
                    

0
                   

0

Collection Fund
        

3,952,470
         

(12,800)
          

(13,540)
         

(46,280)
     

Total Financing
      

(9,737,750)
   

(10,007,740)
    

(10,277,460)
   

(10,673,600)
     

Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus)
        

1,135,890
         

829,910
          

912,150
         

707,830
     

Efficiency Requirement (cumulative)
         

(448,000)
       

(448,000)
        

(448,000)
       

(448,000)
     
     

Deficit / (Surplus)
           

687,890
         

381,910
          

464,150
         

259,830
     

Cumulative Deficit (call on reserves)
           

687,890
       

1,069,800
        

1,533,950
       

1,793,780
     

14.2 The MTFP approved in February 2020 included an assumed £35,950 
contribution into reserves over the four-year life of the Plan.  In order to balance 
the updated MTFP position, there would now need to be an overall £1,793,780 
use of reserves. 

Page 170



15. Risks, Contingencies & Use of Reserves

Impact on Reserves / Contingences

15.1 When setting the Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan in February 2020, 
the general fund contingency reserves balance as at 31st March 2020 was 
estimated to total £2.153 million.

15.2 The 2019/20 provisional outturn position highlighted a £1.32 million surplus – 
of which £500,000 was set aside specifically to fund COVID-19 recovery 
activities.  After other earmarked reserves movements, the general fund 
contingency balance as at 31st March 2020 was £2.419million (£0.260 million 
higher than forecast in the MTFP presented in February).  

15.3 The Council carries reserves as a contingency for situations where risks cannot 
be fully mitigated. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the 
Chief Finance Officer (CFO) to report on the robustness of the estimates 
included in the budget and the adequacy of the reserves that the budget 
provides.

15.4 While there is no detailed guidance on calculating the level of general reserves, 
the Council is encouraged to take into account the strategic, operational and 
financial risks facing the Council. These amounts are then moderated to 
acknowledge the likelihood of all risk events occurring together.  When setting 
the Budget in February, the minimum level of general fund contingency 
reserves required was set at £1,107,000.

15.5 In addition to utilising the £0.5million COVID-19 earmarked reserve (and 
proposed re-designation of the £0.450 million Pensions earmarked reserve) in 
offsetting the impact in the current financial year, the Council could utilise 
contingency reserves of up to £1.3 million, which would leave the contingency 
balance at the minimum required amount of £1.1 million over the life of the 
current MTFP. 

15.6 The updated MTFP currently shows a forecast cumulative deficit position of 
£1.793million over the four years – which represents the required use of 
reserves in order to balance the 4 year plan.    Utilising the Covid-19 recovery 
reserve and potential re-designation of the Pension reserves (as discussed in 
para. 12.2) would leave £0.844million to be funded from General Fund 
Contingency reserves:

£
MTFP Four Year Use of Reserves requirement 1,793,780
Covid-19 Recovery earmarked Reserve (500,000)
Pensions Re-designated Reserve (450,000)

Page 171



Balance to be funded 843,780
General Fund Contingency (843,780)
Balance to be funded -

General Fund Contingency Balance 31st March 2020 2,419,000
Drawdown over 2021/22 – 2024/25 (843,780)
Forecast General Fund Contingency Balance by 31st March 2025 1,575,220

15.7 At the end of year 4 of the plan (2024/25) there would be an estimated balance 
of £1.575million in General Fund Contingency reserves – which would be 
£0.475 million above the required £1.1 million minimum balance.

15.8 The updated MTFP illustrates a requirement to draw from reserves in all four 
years of the plan – with an estimated £259,830 required in year 4 (2024/25).  
Over the next few months the Plan’s position will be refined to incorporate 
amongst other things, the spending review announcement in December, which 
is expected to give details of any further Government support.

15.9 If reserves are utilised as forecast to fund the deficit position, a plan would need 
to be put into place in to rebuild reserves over the longer term.

15.10 All of the above is subject to the assumptions as detailed in sections 11-13 
which is extremely difficult to forecast – and does not assume any further 
Government support at this stage.  These assumptions will be continually 
monitored.

Risk Identification and Management

15.11 The early identification and management of risks is critical to the Medium Term 
Financial Planning process. Risks are assessed, mitigated and actively 
managed to ensure that the Council delivers its services effectively within the 
funding at its disposal. The principal risks to the Medium Term Financial Plan 
are summarised in ANNEX C.

15.12 Risk areas will be closely monitored and reviewed on an on-going basis and 
remedial action taken as appropriate.  Risks associated with specific projects 
will be identified within the project methodology documents and reviewed 
monthly by the Transformation Board.

15.13 The table below highlights specific financial risks that are embedded within the 
Medium Term Financial Plan:

 

Revenue Risks Capital Risks

Page 172



15.14 In addition, there are a number of Covid-19 related financial risks to the MTFP 
to be regularly reviewed and considered:-

 The impact that a recession may have on Council Tax and Business 
Rates collection and increased risk of non-payment which is not 
subsequently collected

 The period of recovery is prolonged which has further cost pressure 
consequences for the Council – especially in regard to the operation of 
leisure centres

 Fees and Charges income levels do not return to pre-Covid levels as 
forecast

 The economy is deflated post-recovery leading to ongoing economic 
problems in town centres and the broader economy, as well as 
community safety issues, which lead to increased cost pressures

 Increased demand on certain services e.g. Benefits and economic 
support.

 Further national lockdowns / tiered systems imposed which leads to 
further pressures on businesses and households and additional costs to 
the Council in providing support

16. Future MTFP Updates

16.1 The next iteration of the MTFP will be presented alongside the setting of the 
2021/22 Budget in February 2021.

16.2 The forecasts will be updated to reflect latest information, intelligence and 
monthly in year actuals and an additional year will be added to the plan.  In year 
financial performance will be closely monitored within the quarterly financial 
reports.

ANNEX A

 Inflationary assumptions
 Interest rates
 Revenue consequences of 

capital
 Housing benefits
 Fees and charges
 Universal Credit
 Business Rates Retention 

scheme
 Council Tax collection
 New Homes Bonus
 Financial benefits from 

partnerships / shared services
 Pension costs
 Insurance costs
 Waste management costs
 Brexit implications

 Interest rates 
 External funding
 Capital receipts
 Capacity to deliver capital 

programme
 Project overspend
 Project overrun
 External factors (e.g. 

planning objections, judicial 
reviews etc. leading to 
project delay)

 Housing Joint Venture
 Suppliers / Contractors / 

Contract Management
 Weather 
 Brexit implications

Page 173



Approved General Fund Revenue Budget (approved February 2020)

Budget Heading
2020/21  

Projection
2021/22  

Projection
2022/23  

Projection
2023/24  

Projection
 £ £ £ £
Employees 6,125,260 6,362,590 6,607,110 6,731,860
Premises 2,199,930 2,232,550 2,265,660 2,301,510
Transport 141,260 141,260 142,110 142,960
Supplies & Services 7,445,390 7,658,200 7,755,230 7,849,320
Benefits 5,010 5,010 5,010 5,010
Borrowing 332,730 724,750 810,120 866,870
Financing Costs 231,380 231,380 231,380 231,380
     
Total Expenditure 16,480,960 17,355,740 17,816,620 18,128,910
     

Fees and Charges / Other Income
      

(5,205,900)
   

(5,315,900)
        

(5,340,900)
     

(5,465,900)

Interest Receipts 
          

(88,510)      (119,970)
           

(152,030)
       

(186,370)

Ascent LLP Income 
         

(645,390)      (655,100)
           

(655,100)
       

(655,100)

Recharges
                    

0                  0
                       

0
                   

0
     
Net Expenditure 10,541,160 11,264,770 11,668,590 11,821,540
     

Council Tax
      

(5,507,650)
   

(5,693,590)
        

(5,867,080)
     

(6,043,480)

Revenue Support Grant
                    

0                  0
                       

0
                   

0

Business Rates Retention
      

(4,025,430)
   

(4,100,320)
        

(4,209,380)
     

(4,397,480)

Rural Service Delivery Grant
                    

0                  0
                       

0
                   

0

New Homes Bonus
         

(194,890)      (194,890)
           

(194,890)
       

(194,890)

Earmarked Reserves
            

(7,700)          (7,700)
              

(7,700)
           

(7,700)

Contingency Balances*
           

276,010        (63,450)
           

(194,450)
           

17,840

Collection Fund
         

(379,210)        (54,530)
             

(44,800)
         

(45,540)
     

Total Financing
      

(9,838,870)
 

(10,114,480)
      

(10,518,300)
   

(10,671,250)

Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus)
           

702,290
     

1,150,290
          

1,150,290
       

1,150,290
     

Efficiency Requirement (cumulative)
         

(702,290)
   

(1,150,290)
        

(1,150,290)
     

(1,150,290)
     

Deficit / (Surplus)
                    

0                  0
                       

0
                   

0
     

*overall contribution into reserves of £35,950
ANNEX B

Page 174



Updated General Fund Capital Programme

Service Area 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Total 
 £ £ £ £ £ £
Asset Management Plan 667,300 947,150 1,404,360       915,490      1,065,390 4,999,690
Housing Grants 515,000 1,515,650 1,500,000    1,500,000      1,500,000   6,530,650 
ICT Strategy      116,610     141,900        50,000         50,000          50,000 408,510
Fleet Management 1,134,760 723,660 876,150       301,640                 -   3,036,210
Other Schemes 471,950 451,920 100,000         41,920          50,000 1,115,790
Total Revised Programme 2,905,620 3,780,280 3,930,510    2,809,050      2,665,390 16,090,850 
Original Programme 6,602,220 3,412,760 2,608,100 2,370,830 - 14,993,910 
Change increase (decrease) (3,696,600) 367,520 1,322,410 438,220 2,665,390 1,096,940
Financed by: -       
External Contributions 520,000 1,512,390 1,500,000 1,500,000      1,500,000 6,532,390
Capital Receipts        50,000       25,000                 -                   -                   -   75,000
Capital Reserve 400,000                 -                   -                   -                   -   400,000
Earmarked Reserves      220,850                 -                   -                   -                   -   220,850
Borrowing 1,714,770 2,242,890 2,430,510 1,309,050      1,165,390 8,862,610
Total Revised Financing 2,905,620 3,780,280 3,930,510 2,809,050      2,665,390 16,090,850
Original Programme 6,602,220 3,412,760 2,608,100 2,370,830 - 14,993,910
Change increase (decrease) (3,696,600) 367,520 1,322,410 438,220 2,665,390 1,096,940

Comparison with February 2020 increase (decrease)
Service Area 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Total 
 £ £ £ £  £
Asset Management (633,600) (647,460) 396,260 418,220 1,065,390 598,810
Housing Grants (1,270,320) - - - 1,500,000 229,680
ICT Strategy (23,450) 91,900 - - 50,000 118,450
Fleet Management (1,447,310) 571,160 876,150 - - -
Other Schemes (321,920) 351,920 50,000 20,000 50,000 150,000
Total Programme (3,696,600) 367,520 1,322,410 438,220 2,665,390 1,096,940
Financed by:-       
External Contributions (1,247,710) 12,390 - - 1,500,000 264,680
Capital Receipts (43,000) 9,350 - (11,000) - (44,650)
Capital Reserve 185,100 - - - - 185,100
Earmarked Reserves - - - - - -
Borrowing (2,590,990) 345,780 1,322,410 449,220 1,165,390 691,810
Total  Financing (3,696,600) 367,520 1,322,410 438,220 2,665,390 1,096,940

ANNEX C

Page 175



Medium Term Financial Plan – Principal Risks

Risk Category Risk Mitigation and Controls

Financial 
Implications

Robustness of financial 
assumptions within Efficiency and 
Rationalisation Strategy

Structured project management 
arrangements have been put in place with 
detailed business cases for each initiative – 
these will be strengthened in the service 
review process

Financial 
Implications

Additional financial pressures 
emerge – cost & income 

The strategy is kept under constant review 
and adjustments will be made where 
necessary

Service Continuity Interruptions to key services or 
performance standards

Resource implications and impact are 
identified as part of the business case 
process. Service continuity and 
maintenance of standards of service are 
key requirements of any new proposals

Corporate 
Governance

Maintaining stakeholder 
confidence; lack of clarity on 
accountability

Ongoing review of standards of internal 
control (e.g. Financial Procedure Rules 
reviewed and updated). Internal Audit Plan 
will be reviewed to account for the new 
approach proposed in the Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy

Management of 
Change

Management of corporate and 
local, cultural change; 
behavioural risks; residual effects 
of aggregation; proposed 
changes to organisational 
structure, roles & responsibilities

Progress with achievement of aims will be 
monitored through an effective performance 
management structure. Investment has 
been made in a new approach to 
Organisational Development.

People Risks Impact of cultural changes;

assessment of skills; recruitment 
& retention;

capacity issues

Continuing communications process for the 
delivery of transformation programme

Key Projects & 
Partnerships

Managing changes to shared 
service delivery arrangements

The project management methodology 
provides for an adequate transition where 
there are changes in service delivery

Performance 
Management

Adequacy of framework to 
monitor transition

Risk management processes are 
embedded

Page 176



Risk Category Risk Mitigation and Controls

Reputation and 
Relationship Risks

Maintaining existing partner 
confidence

Continuing communications process for the 
delivery of transformation programme

Programme 
Delivery

Delays in implementation of 
efficiency savings

Effective governance arrangements in place 
to monitor plans. 

Executive Directors and Senior Managers 
own delivery of efficiencies. 

Programme 
Delivery

A number of the efficiency / 
rationalisation initiatives are not 
achieved

Structured project management approach is 
in place for delivery including effective 
exception reporting

The strategy is kept under constant review

Identification of further efficiency / 
rationalisation opportunities through 
benchmarking / effective member working 
groups

Political Support Lack of Members support for 
Plan.

Regular reporting and member briefings 
including effective scrutiny arrangements

Page 177



This page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet

1 December 2020

TITLE: Wildfire Public Spaces Protection Order

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Mike Bowen - Portfolio Holder for 
Communities

CONTACT OFFICER: David Smith - Principal Officer Communities 
& Partnerships

WARDS INVOLVED: All

Appendices Attached – Draft Public Spaces Protection Order

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To introduce measures to reduce the risk of wildfires in high risk areas of the 
District.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Cabinet agrees to carry out the necessary consultation, 
publication and notification in relation to the draft Order appended to this 
report.

2.2 That the Cabinet subsequently approves the draft Order by Delegated 
Cabinet Decision unless the responses from the consultation 
necessitate material changes to the draft Order.

3. Cabinet Summary

3.1 The Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 gives local authorities 
the power to introduce a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) to control 
behaviours in a public place, which have caused or may cause a detrimental 
effect on the quality of life of those in the locality and are likely to be of a 
continuing or persistent nature and are therefore unreasonable.

3.2 Moorlands fires or wildfires can have a range of impacts including loss of life 
and property, damage to wildlife and biodiversity, carbon loss, loss of grazing 
land, and damage to water catchments and supplies. The financial cost of 
wildfires can also be substantial.

Page 179

Agenda Item 9.1



3.3 The introduction of a PSPO by the District Council could help to reduce the 
occurrence of wildfires by prohibiting the lighting of fires, barbecues, fireworks 
and Chinese (sky) lanterns. In addition, the Council could work with partners to 
raise awareness of the risks of wildfires and to encourage people to behave 
responsibly.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 Aim 1: To help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities 
to live and work

4.2 Aim 4: To protect and improve the environment and respond to the climate 
emergency

  
5. Alternative Options

5.1 The Council could work with partners to raise awareness of the risks of wildfires 
and to encourage people to behave responsibly without introducing new 
enforcement powers. 

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

The Order will assist to reduce arson, environmental crime and 
anti-social behaviour.

6.2 Workforce

The Council’s officer will be deployed to carry out targeted 
enforcement action as required. They will not, however, routinely 
patrol the moorland areas.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

None

6.4 Financial Considerations

Costs would be incurred in erecting signage within the proposed 
exclusion zone to make the public aware of the prohibitions 
contained within the order.

Legal

The draft Order has been reviewed by Legal Services. 

Page 180



6.6 Climate Change

The proposed PSPO could assist in preventing carbon loss as a 
result of wildfires in moorland areas and thus assist in reducing 
climate change.

6.7 Consultation

Under section 72 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing 
Act 2014, the Council is required to carry out “necessary” 
consultation, publicity and notification prior to introducing (or 
extending) an Order.

Necessary consultation means consulting with:
(a) the chief officer of police, and the local policing body, for the 
police area that includes the restricted area;
(b) whatever community representatives the local authority thinks it 
appropriate to consult; and
(c) the owner or occupier of land within the restricted area.

Necessary publicity means publishing the text of the proposed 
Order.

Necessary notification means notifying any parish or community 
councils, and the County Council.

The requirement to consult with the owner or occupier of land 
within the restricted area does not apply to land that is owned and 
occupied by the local authority; and applies only to the extent that it 
is reasonably practicable to consult the owner or occupier of the 
land.

6.8 Risk Assessment

None

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

6.4

Page 181



Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Albertson, K., et al 2010 Climate change and 
the future occurrence of moorland wildfires in 
the Peak District of the UK, Climate Research 
Special 24.

https://www.peakdistrict.gov.uk/looking-
after/projects-and-
partnerships/fireoperationsgroup/moorlandfires

Titterton, P. 2019 Estimating Carbon Released 
from Wildfires: A case study into the estimated 
amount of carbon released as a result of the 
wildfire that occurred on the Roaches in 
August 2018, Moors for the Future 
Partnership.

David Smith
Principal Officer Communities & Partnerships
david.smith@highpeak.gov.uk

7. Detail

7.1 The Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 gives local authorities 
the power to introduce a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) to control 
behaviours in a public place, which have caused or may cause a detrimental 
effect on the quality of life of those in the locality and are likely to be of a 
continuing or persistent nature and are therefore unreasonable.

7.2 The introduction of a PSPO to help prevent wildfires was considered in 2018 in 
response to a sky lantern festival that was advertised, but subsequently 
cancelled, on the edges of Buxton. This was due to concerns about the risk of 
lanterns drifting into Staffordshire Moorlands and potentially causing fires at a 
time of heightened fire risk. The possibility of introducing a PSPO was raised 
again by District Councillors in 2020 following large numbers of people visiting 
the Peak District after the restrictions introduced to prevent the spread of 
coronavirus were lifted.

7.3 The District Council could introduce a PSPO to help to reduce the occurrence 
of wildfires by prohibiting the lighting of fires, barbecues, fireworks and 
Chinese (sky) lanterns. The introduction of a PSPO could be supported by a 
publicity campaign to raise awareness of the dangers of wildfires and 
encourage people to behave responsibly. It is suggested that this could be 
developed with partners working together as members of the Moorlands 
Together Community Safety Partnership.

7.4 Moorlands fires or wildfires can have a range of impacts including loss of life 
and property, damage to wildlife and biodiversity, loss of grazing land, and 
damage to water catchments and supplies. The impacts can be far-reaching 
with, for example, the 2018 wildfires at Saddleworth Moor and Winter Hill 

Page 182

https://www.peakdistrict.gov.uk/looking-after/projects-and-partnerships/fireoperationsgroup/moorlandfires
https://www.peakdistrict.gov.uk/looking-after/projects-and-partnerships/fireoperationsgroup/moorlandfires
https://www.peakdistrict.gov.uk/looking-after/projects-and-partnerships/fireoperationsgroup/moorlandfires


causing poor air quality up to 50 miles away with five million people being 
exposed to levels of dangerous particulates.

7.5 Moorland fires can smoulder for weeks or even months due to the peat in the 
ground with a danger that hot-spots can flare up and catch fire again.

7.6 Wildfires can also result in substantial carbon loss and contribute to climate 
change. Peatlands represent a significant store of carbon with approximately 20 
million tonnes estimated locked up within the Active Blanket Bog (ABB) habitats 
of the Peak District National Park. 

7.7 Fighting wildfires can be costly and difficult particularly in more remote areas. 
Consequential costs including restoring burnt areas, increased costs of water 
treatment, loss of production from the land, and loss of tourism can also be 
substantial. The economic impact of the 2018 Saddleworth Moor and Winter Hill 
fires was estimated to have been £21.1M. The cost of restoring half of the 
Bleaklow 2003 fire site (4.3km2) was £1,235,000 with the cost of suppressing 
the fire being estimated at £550,000 with an estimated cost to the local economy 
of £500,000.

7.8 The Peak District National Park Authority suggest that accidental summer fires 
are the single biggest threat to the fragile ecosystem of the Peak District 
moors. Since 1976 there have been over 350 reported incidents of 'wildfires' in 
the Peak District with the majority being started by arson, discarded cigarettes, 
barbeques and campfires.

7.9 In July 2018, an area of around 50 hectares were affected by wildfire near the 
former Mermaid Inn, Thorncliffe. Up to 45 firefighters and seven pumps were 
involved in putting the fire out. At the same time, firefighters were also called 
to a fire in woodland at Dimmingsdale near Alton.

7.10 In August 2018 a further fire broke out on the nearby Roaches. The wildfire was 
started by a campfire within a forested area and then spread to the active 
blanket bog (ABB area) that is underpinned by a deep layer of peat. An area of 
65 hectares (160 acres) was burned including 4 hectares of woodland. The ABB 
habitat was severely damaged causing the loss of moorland shrubs, herbs and 
mosses including sphagnum moss. The fire is estimated to have caused the loss 
of 50 years’ worth of peat.

7.11 Moors for the Future Partnership has calculated the carbon cost of the fire, 
which burned through a layer of carbon-rich peat releasing greenhouse gasses 
into the atmosphere. The case study estimated that the fire released over 
11,000 tonnes of carbon dioxide (CO2), equivalent to running 1,426 homes for 
one year.

7.12 Nearby residents were evacuated during the initial stages of the fire and a 
search helicopter was dispatched to make sure the area was safe. Twelve fire 
appliances with welfare pods, water carriers and specialist equipment for 
fighting moorland fires, supported by a helicopter, were used to put the fire out 
over a period of around 11 days. 

Page 183



7.13 In April 2020, 50 firefighters responded to a blaze on Wetley Moor Common 
which is believed to have been started accidentally. Nine hectares of moorland 
were destroyed in the fire.

Page 184

https://www.stokesentinel.co.uk/news/stoke-on-trent-news/fire-wetley-moor-common-smoke-4069034


1

PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER (Wildfires) 2020

Section 59 Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014

The Staffordshire Moorlands District Council hereby makes the following Order:

1. This Order comes into force on XXXX and will last for a period of three years.

2. This Order applies to the land specified in the Schedule (the “Restricted Area”).

Purpose

3. The Order is intended is to help to stop or reduce activities that have had a 

detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality namely the starting of 

fires in grass and moorland areas. Such fires can contribute to climate change and 

result in risk to life; damage to biodiversity, habitats and property; and loss of income 

from tourism and other land uses.

Offence

4. Under the terms and restrictions of the Public Spaces Protection Order the 

following is prohibited:

a) Lighting a fire of any type or size in the Restricted Area without the prior written 

consent of the District Council.

b) Using any article or object which causes a naked flame and thereby poses a risk 

of fire without the prior written consent of the District Council.

c) Possessing or lighting a barbecue in the Restricted Area without the prior 

written consent of the District Council.

Page 185



2

d) Possessing, lighting or releasing a firework in the Restricted Area without the 

prior written consent of the District Council.

e) Possessing, lighting or releasing a Chinese/sky lantern or other open flame 

heat-source lantern in the Restricted Area without the prior written consent of 

the District Council.

5. A person or persons are required to surrender anything in their possession which 

a constable or authorised person has reasonable suspicion to be an article that has 

been used OR is likely to be used in conjunction with the prohibited activities referred 

to in this Order.

6. The restrictions in Article 4 to this Order shall not apply to any police, ambulance, 

fire service or Peak District National Park Authority personnel acting in pursuance of 

statutory powers or duties.

Offence of Failing to Comply with Order

7. Under Section 67 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014, it is an 

offence for a person without reasonable excuse to:

(a) do anything that the person is prohibited from doing by this Order, or

(b) fail to comply with a requirement to which the person is subject under this Order.

8. A person who is guilty of an offence shall be liable on summary conviction to a fine 

not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale.

Challenging the Validity of the Order

9. If any interested person desires to question the validity of this Order on the 

grounds that the Council has no power to make it or that any requirement of the Act 

has not been complied with in relation to this Order, he or she may apply to the High 

Court within six weeks from the date on which this order is made.

Page 186



3

IN WITNESS whereof the COMMON SEAL 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL was hereunto affixed this 
          day of          two thousand and twenty in
the presence of 

Executive Director

SCHEDULE

This Order applies to all parts of the district of Staffordshire Moorlands that:

 lie within the boundary of the Peak District National Park, are open to the air, and 

to which the public are entitled or permitted to have access (with or without 

payment); AND

 are owned by Staffordshire Moorlands District Council, are open to the air, and 

to which the public are entitled or permitted to have access (with or without 

payment.

This includes access land as defined in Section 1 of the Countryside and Rights of 

Way Act 2000 but excludes any licensed campsites or caravan sites, or land which is 

occupied by an organisation which holds a valid certificate of exemption granted under 

paragraph 12 of Schedule 1 of the Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 

1960 or under section 269(6) of the Public Health Act 1936.

Page 187



This page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet

1 December 2020

TITLE: Information Governance Update

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Tony Hall - Portfolio Holder for 
Customer Services

CONTACT OFFICER: Vanessa Higgins - Information Business 
Partner

WARDS INVOLVED: All

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To provide an Information Governance update which details how the Council 
continues to embed good information management practices through its 
ASSURED framework.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Cabinet notes the contents of this update.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 Good information management practices are the responsibility of everyone 
within the Council. To promote these good practices and to oversee the 
Council’s approach to good information governance is the role of the 
Information Governance Group (IGG).

3.2 The Council has developed a suite of policies and guidance documents as 
part of its ASSURED framework, which are accessible to all employees and 
councillors through the intranet.

3.3 The Council has made significant progress in its approach to information 
governance including the use of asset registers, impact assessments, breach 
reporting, and an ongoing action plan that ensures training is at the heart of 
this approach.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

Page 189

Agenda Item 10.1

https://hpbc.alliance-online.org/assured


4.1 Information Governance contributes to Aim Two of the Corporate Plan – to use 
resources effectively and provide value for money.   

5. Alternative Options

5.1 This report is for information only and no decision is required.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Information Governance Action Plan
Information Governance Group papers
ASSURED framework policies

Vanessa Higgins
Information Business Partner
vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk

6. ASSURED in our approach

6.1 The Council’s approach to good information management is encapsulated in 
the word ASSURED, which refers to the desired lifecycle of data within the 
organisation (Alliance, Sources, Stores, Uses, Retains, Erases, Data). The 
council has developed a suite of policies and 
guidance documents as part of its ASSURED 
framework, which are accessible to all 
employees and councillors through the intranet 
page of the same name and includes:

 Data Protection Policy
 Document Retention Schedule
 ICT Use and Information Security Policy
 Councillor ICT Equipment and Information Security Agreement
 Email Guidance
 Information Protective Marking Guidance
 Data Breach Reporting Portal

6.2 A review programme is in place for each of the Council’s key information 
governance related policies. In 2020 the ICT Use and Information Security 
Policy was reviewed and is in the process of being rolled out to all employees 
via the Council’s online training platform, Alliance e-ssentials. Next year will 
see the document retention schedule and information governance policy 
reviewed and refreshed. 

7. Information Governance

7.1 Good information management practices are the responsibility of everyone 
within the Council. To promote these good practices and to oversee the 
Council’s approach to good information governance is the role of the Information 
Governance Group (IGG). The group was first formed in 2015 and is led by the 

Page 190

https://hpbc.alliance-online.org/assured


Senior Information Risk Officer – Executive Director (People) & Monitoring 
Officer – supported by the Information Business Partner and focuses on:

 Policy development and dissemination
 Compliance monitoring and assurance against the Council’s policy
 The need to ensure good information governance compliance by third 

parties working with the Council
 Improving efficiency in the use of technology
 The technology and infrastructure to support good information governance

7.2 The IGG meets quarterly and considers set items such as data breaches, data 
protection impact assessments, information asset registers and progress 
against the information governance action plan at each meeting:

 Data breaches: the council developed a new automated breach reporting 
portal, similar to the complaints portal, earlier this year. This enables 
potential breaches, however small, to be logged via the intranet or website. 
All breaches are considered by the Data Protection Officer in the first 
instance before being reported to the IGG, and the ICO if required. 
Improvements to processes and additional training, if needed, are put in 
place to reduce further risks of breaches occurring.

 Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIAs): every project entered into by 
the Council and managed through the Transformation Board has to complete 
a stage one DPIA to assess the potential impacts of the project on personal 
data. If required, the project then proceeds to a stage two DPIA, with risk 
mitigation action required and regular updates back to the IGG.

 Information Asset Registers (IARs): during 2019 the Council made 
considerable progress in developing a suite of IARs across all of its service 
areas, which map out the key data assets used by the service. These are 
comprehensive registers which have a central role in the ASSURED 
framework in helping to ensure that data is sourced legitimately, stored 
safely, used correctly, retained for a limited period, and erased when no 
longer required. The IGG oversees a programme of challenge sessions 
whereby Heads of Service present their IARs to a critical friend challenge by 
the group to ensure the data practices within the service meet the standards 
required by the council.

 Information Governance Action Plan: the council has made good progress 
against the action plan, the main areas of focus now being a review of 
Privacy Notices; ongoing and bespoke training; preparing for the EU 
transition and its impact for GDPR; and 3rd party data assurance. Some of 
the Council’s more recently completed projects are outlined below. 

8. Information Protective Marking   

8.1 The Council worked with its strategic risk partner, Zurich, in 2018 to develop 
an approach to protectively marking documents and information being shared 
internally with colleagues and externally with partners. An information guide 

Page 191



was produced and rolled out to all employees through Alliance e-ssentials with 
face to face training sessions for teams handling bulk personal data.

8.2 The move to Microsoft 365 will bring additional protective marking and data 
protection benefits, as the improved functionality will allow greater control over 
data protection and retention policies within the platform itself.

9. Privacy Notices

9.1 As part of the GDPR preparations, the Council ensured that it had a 
comprehensive privacy notice on the website as well as tailored notices within 
individual service areas where this was required. 

9.2 Since then we have also created specific pages on the website for councillor 
privacy notices that include all aspects of the member role. In the last 12 
months we have also developed an animated privacy notice deployed through 
the website to give users an immediate, visual message about why and how 
their data is used when accessing our services.  

10. Training

10.1 Relevant training for employees and councillors on information management is 
key to the success of the Council’s approach. In the run up to GDPR 
implementation a programme of externally facilitated training was devised and 
delivered. 

10.2 This has been followed up by largely in-house tailored training linked to new 
developments and new working practices such as revisions to the ICT Use 
and Information Security Policy, Protective Marking, team specific training and 
councillor data protection training as part of the induction programme following 
last year’s elections. Maintaining a programme of information governance 
related training will remain one of the IGG’s continuing actions.      

   

Page 192

https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/YourData


Document is Restricted

Page 193

Agenda Item 12.1
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting (previously circulated)
	5.1 Reconsideration of Cabinet Report - Cheadle Town Centre Projects
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	8.1 Forward Plan
	8.2 Annual Report 2019/20
	Appendix A
	Number of formal complaints received (from 2018/19 Q4 to 2019/20 Q3 (Pre-release)) for Staffordshire Moorlands & Staffordshire Moorlands CIPFA nearest neighbours


	8.3 Second Quarter 2020/21 Finance, Procurement & Performance Review
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	8.4 Medium Term Financial Plan 2021/22 - 2024/25 Update
	9.1 Wildfire Public Spaces Protection Order
	Appendix

	10.1 Information Governance Update
	12.1 Application for write off of Non- Recoverable Debts

